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Section 1 – Registrant's Business and Operations
 
Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.
 
On May 27, 2016, we entered and closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with certain purchasers (the "Purchasers") for the
issuance and sale (the "Offering") of (i) 12% Senior Convertible Promissory Notes (the "Notes") in the aggregate principal amount of up to eleven million
dollars ($11,000,000), each with a two-year term, that are convertible into shares (the "Conversion Shares") of our common stock, par value $0.001 per
share (the "Common Stock") and (ii) warrants (the "Warrants") to acquire shares (the "Warrant Shares") of our Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the
Purchase Agreement. The purchase of six million dollars ($6,000,000) of Notes is expected to occur in three tranches and, at our option, up to an
additional five tranches of an aggregate of five million dollars ($5,000,000) (each, a "Tranche"; and, collectively, the "Tranches"). The first Tranche of
$3,250,000 closed simultaneously with the execution of the Purchase Agreement (the proceeds of which included repayment of two recently received
demand notes in the aggregate amount of $1,250,000). The second Tranche is expected to be made 30 days thereafter in the amount of $2,000,000 and the
third Tranche is expected to be made in a subsequent 30 days in the amount of $750,000. At any time more than 30 days after the third Tranche, we may
request that the Purchasers lend to us up to an aggregate of five million dollars ($5,000,000) in up to five additional Tranches (each for the purchase and
sale of one million dollars ($1,000,000) of Notes). We will also grant Warrants, as described below, in connection with each additional Tranche. To access
the additional Tranches, we must give the Purchasers 30 days' notice prior to each additional Tranche and at least 30 days must have occurred between
each additional Tranche and the immediately previous additional Tranche. The final additional Tranche may not occur later than May 27, 2017. At the
Purchasers' discretion, we may request that the additional Tranches occur in intervals of less than 30 days and for greater than one million dollars
($1,000,000) each.
 
We incurred certain fees in connection with the Purchase Agreement, all of which were paid on or about May 27, 2016: (i) we reimbursed the Purchasers
for their legal fees ($35,000); (ii) we paid a commitment fee to the Purchasers in connection with their making the additional Tranches available to us
($100,000); (iii) we reimbursed the Purchasers for their due diligence expenses ($40,000); and (iv) we paid an advisory fee to Aegis Capital Corp.
("Aegis"), which served as the placement agent in this Offering ($60,000). Aegis will receive additional compensation for each additional Tranche. Certain
affiliates of Aegis are participants in the Offering and Aegis will not receive an advisory fee on any capital invested by affiliates of Aegis.
 
The Purchase Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, and covenants by, among, and for the benefit of the parties. The Purchasers were
granted limited participation rights in certain future financings.
 
The proceeds from the Offering are intended to be used for general corporate proceeds.
 
The Offering is exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Act (in
that the Notes, the Conversion Shares, the Warrants, and the Warrant Shares were sold by us in a transaction not involving any public offering) and
pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. The Notes, the Conversion Shares, the Warrants, and the Warrant Shares are restricted
securities that have not been registered under the Act, and will not be registered under the Act, and may not be offered or sold absent registration or
applicable exemption from the registration requirements.
   
12% Convertible Promissory Notes
 
Each Note accrues interest at a rate of 12% per annum, of which nine months' interest amount is guaranteed, payable on each conversion date for the
principal amount then being converted and on the maturity date in either cash or, at the holder's option, in shares of Common Stock. The term of each
Note is 24 months after issuance. All principal and interest due and owing under each Note is convertible into shares of our Common Stock, at any time at
the election of the holder, at a conversion price equal to the lower of (i) $0.50 or (ii) either (y) 82.5% of the average of the three lowest daily VWAPs in
the 15 trading days prior to the Conversion Date (if we have filed a Registration Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission that becomes
effective on or before August 25, 2016) or (z) 81% of the average of the three lowest daily VWAPs in the 15 trading days prior to the Conversion Date (if
a Registration Statement has not become effective by such date). Should an Event of Default have occurred, the conversion price will automatically
become the average of the three lowest VWAPs in the 15 consecutive trading days prior to the Conversion Date for so as long as the Event of Default
remains in effect. The conversion price is subject to (i) adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, or similar events and (ii) full ratchet
anti-dilution protection.
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A Note may not be converted and shares of Common Stock may not be issued under the Notes if, after giving effect to the conversion or issuance, the
holder, together with its affiliates, would beneficially own in excess of 4.99% or 9.99%, at the election of the holder made as of the closing, of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock. At each holder's option, the beneficial ownership limitation may be raised or lowered to any other percentage not in
excess of 9.99%, except that any increase will only be effective upon 61 days' prior notice to us.
 
We may prepay any portion of the outstanding principal amount of any Note and any accrued and unpaid interest by, upon 10 days' notice, paying (i)
110% of the then-outstanding principal amount of that Note, if the prepayment date is within 90 days of the issuance of that Note; (ii) 115% of the then-
outstanding principal amount of that Note, if the prepayment date is between 91 and 180 days of the issuance of that Note; or (iii) 125% of the then-
outstanding principal amount of that Note, if the prepayment date is within 90 days of the issuance of that Note.
 
In the event of default, 130% of the outstanding principal amount of the defaulted Note and accrued but unpaid interest, in addition to other amounts due
under the terms of the defaulted Note and all interest that, but for the event of default, would have accrued, can, at the holder's election, become
immediately due and payable in cash.
 
Warrants
 
Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, we also agreed to grant to the Purchasers a series of warrants to purchase up to that number of shares of
Common Stock equal to 25% of the principal amount of the Notes issuable to the Purchasers at the applicable Tranche divided by the conversion price of
the applicable Note. The per-share exercise price of the Warrants is $0.50, subject to certain adjustments for (i) stock splits, stock dividends,
combinations, or similar events and (ii) certain dilutive issuances for which we have provided the Purchasers with full ratchet protection. The Warrants
have a term of four years. The Warrants are exercisable at any time on or after the issuance date of the Warrants on a cashless or cash basis. However, the
Warrants may be exercised only for cash if the Warrant Shares are the subject of an effective Registration Statement.
 
The Warrants may not be exercised if, after giving effect to the exercise, the holder of the Warrant together with its affiliates would beneficially own in
excess of 4.99% or 9.99%, at the election of the holder as of the closing, of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock. At a holder's option, the
beneficial ownership limitation applicable to the exercise of the Warrants may be raised or lowered to any other percentage not in excess of 9.99%, except
that any increase will only be effective upon 61 days' prior notice to us.
   
Security Agreement
 
As collateral for all of our obligations under the Purchase Agreement and related documents executed in connection therewith, we granted to the
Purchasers a first priority security interest in all of our assets pursuant to the terms of the Security Agreement, Intellectual Property Security Agreement,
and Subsidiary Guarantee, each of which was entered into between the Purchasers and us and was dated May 27, 2016.
 
The description of certain terms and conditions of the forms of Purchase Agreement, Subsidiary Guarantee, Security Agreement, Intellectual Property
Security Agreement, Note, and Warrant set forth herein do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents,
which are filed as Exhibits 10.33, 10.34, 10.35, 10.36, 4.9, and 4.10, respectively, to this Current Report on Form 8-K, and are incorporated herein by
reference.
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Section 2 – Financial Information
 
Item 2.03 Creation of a Direct Financial Obligation or an Obligation under an Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement of a Registrant
 
The information disclosed under Item 1.01 is incorporated into this Item 2.03 in its entirety.
 
Section 3 – Securities and Trading Markets
 
Item 3.02 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities.
 
The information disclosed under Item 1.01 is incorporated into this Item 3.02 in its entirety.
   
Section 9 – Financial Statements and Exhibits
 
Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.
 
(d) Exhibits.
 
4.9* Form of [initial] 12% Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Note

4.10* Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant

10.33* Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2016, by and among Terra Tech Corp. and the purchasers to be identified on the
signature pages thereto

10.34* Form of Subsidiary Guarantee, dated as of May 27, 2016

10.35* Form of Security Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2016

10.36* Form of Intellectual Property Security Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2016
______
* filed herewith
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SIGNATURES
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
 

TERRA TECH CORP.

Date: June 1, 2016 By: /s/ Derek Peterson
Derek Peterson
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 4.9 
 
NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND,
ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS
EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE
REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THIS
SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH
SECURITIES.
 
Original Issue Date: May 27, 2016 Principal Amount: $[          ]
 

12% SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE
DUE MAY 27, 2018

 
THIS 12% SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE is one of a series of duly authorized and validly issued convertible

promissory notes of Terra Tech Corp., a Nevada corporation, (the " Company"), having its principal place of business at 4700 Von Karman Avenue, Suite
110, Newport Beach, California 92660, designated as its 12% Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Note due May 27, 2018 (this "Note", or the "Note"
and collectively with the other Notes of such series, the "Notes").

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Company promises to pay to [          ] or its registered assigns (the "Holder"), or shall have paid pursuant to the

terms hereunder, the principal sum of $3,250,000 on May 27, 2018 (the "Maturity Date") or such earlier date as this Note is required or permitted to be
repaid as provided hereunder, and to pay interest to the Holder on the aggregate unconverted and then outstanding principal amount of this Note in
accordance with the provisions hereof. This Note is subject to the following additional provisions:

 
Section 1. Definitions. For the purposes hereof, in addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Note, (a) capitalized terms not otherwise defined

herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Purchase Agreement and (b) the following terms shall have the following meanings: 
 

"Alternate Consideration" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e). 
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"Alternate Conversion Price" means 70% of the average of the three (3) lowest VWAPs in the fifteen (15) consecutive Trading Days prior
to the Conversion Date.

 
"Bankruptcy Event" means any of the following events: (a) the Company or any Subsidiary (as such term is defined in Rule 1-02(w) of

Regulation S-X) thereof commences a case or other proceeding under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, adjustment of debt, relief of
debtors, dissolution, insolvency or liquidation or similar law of any jurisdiction relating to the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, (b) there is
commenced against the Company or any Subsidiary thereof any such case or proceeding that is not dismissed within 60 days after commencement,
(c) the Company or any Subsidiary thereof is adjudicated insolvent or bankrupt or any order of relief or other order approving any such case or
proceeding is entered, (d) the Company or any Subsidiary thereof suffers any appointment of any custodian or the like for it or any substantial part
of its property that is not discharged or stayed within 60 calendar days after such appointment, (e) the Company or any Subsidiary thereof makes a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (f) the Company or any Subsidiary thereof calls a meeting of its creditors with a view to arranging a
composition, adjustment or restructuring of its debts or (g) the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, by any act or failure to act, expressly indicates
its consent to, approval of or acquiescence in any of the foregoing or takes any corporate or other action for the purpose of effecting any of the
foregoing.

 
"Base Conversion Price" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b).
 
"Beneficial Ownership Limitation" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(e).
 
"Buy-In" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(b)(v).
 
"Change of Control Transaction" means the occurrence after the date hereof of any of (a) an acquisition after the date hereof by an

individual or legal entity or "group" (as described in Rule 13d-5(b)(1) promulgated under the Exchange Act) of effective control (whether through
legal or beneficial ownership of capital stock of the Company, by contract or otherwise) of in excess of one-third (1/3rd) of the aggregate votes of
the then-issued and outstanding voting securities of the Company on such basis as is then required by the Company's charter documents (other than
by means of conversion or exercise of the Notes and the Securities issued together with the Notes), (b) the Company merges into or consolidates
with any other Person, or any Person merges into or consolidates with the Company and, after giving effect to such transaction, the stockholders of
the Company immediately prior to such transaction own less than two-thirds (2/3rds) of the aggregate voting power of the Company or the
successor entity of such transaction, (c) the Company sells or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to another Person and the stockholders of
the Company immediately prior to such transaction own less than two-thirds (2/3rds) of the aggregate voting power of the acquiring entity
immediately after the transaction, (d) a replacement at one time or within a three year period of more than one-half (1/2) of the members of the
Board of Directors which is not approved by a majority of those individuals who are members of the Board of Directors on the Original Issue Date



(or by those individuals who are serving as members of the Board of Directors on any date whose nomination to the Board of Directors was
approved by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors who are members on the date hereof), or (e) the execution by the Company of an
agreement to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound, providing for any of the events set forth in clauses (a) through (d) above.
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"Common Stock Equivalents" means any securities of the Company or any of its subsidiaries which would entitle the holder thereof to
acquire at any time shares of Common Stock, including, without limitation, any debt, preferred stock, rights, options, warrants or other instrument
that is at any time convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or otherwise entitles the Holder to receive, Common Stock.

 



"Conversion Date" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
 
"Conversion Price" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(b).
 
"Conversion Schedule" means the Conversion Schedule in the form of Schedule 1 attached hereto.
 
"Conversion Shares" means, collectively, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms

hereof.
 
"Default Redemption Amount" means the product of (i) 130% multiplied by (ii) the sum of (x) the aggregate principal amount outstanding

of this Note through and including the Default Redemption Payment Date; (y) all accrued but unpaid principal due on this Note, including, but not
limited to, as provided in the last sentence of Section 6 hereof, and (z) all other amounts owed under this Note including, but not limited to, Late
Fees and liquidated damages, all through and including the date all amounts herein are paid in cash to the Holder.

 
"Dilutive Issuance" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b).
 
"Dilutive Issuance Notice" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b).
 
"Documents" shall have the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
 
"DTC" means the Depository Trust Company.
 
"DTC/FAST Program" means the DTC's Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program.
 
"DWAC Eligible" means that (a) the Common Stock is eligible at DTC for full services pursuant to DTC's Operational Arrangements,

including, without limitation, transfer through DTC's DWAC system, (b) the Company has been approved (without revocation) by the DTC's
underwriting department, (c) the Transfer Agent is approved as an agent in the DTC/FAST Program, (d) the Conversion Shares are otherwise
eligible for delivery via DWAC, and (e) the Transfer Agent does not have a policy prohibiting or limiting delivery of the Conversion Shares via
DWAC.
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"Event of Default" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).
 
"Exempt Issuance" means the issuance of (a) shares of Common Stock, options or other equity awards (including, without limitation,

restricted awards) to employees, consultants, officers or directors of the Company pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such
purpose, by a majority of the non-employee members of the Board of Directors or a majority of the members of a committee of non-employee
directors established for such purpose and subsequently ratified by the Shareholders of the Company, (b) securities upon the exercise or exchange
of or conversion of any Securities issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement and/or other securities directly or indirectly exercisable or
exchangeable for or convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the Original Issue Date, provided that such securities have
not been amended since the Original Issue Date to increase the number of such securities or to decrease the exercise price, exchange price or
conversion price of such securities, financings, commercial property lease transactions or similar transactions, (c) shares issued pursuant to any
equipment loan or leasing arrangement, real property leasing arrangement or debt financing from a bank or similar financial institution approved
by the Company's board of directors or (d) securities issued pursuant to mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, similar business combinations or
strategic transactions approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of the Company, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a
Person (or to the equity holders of a Person) which is, itself or through its subsidiaries, an operating company or an owner of an asset in a business
synergistic with the business of the Company and shall provide to the Company additional benefits in addition to the investment of funds, but shall
not include a transaction in which the Company is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an entity whose primary
business is investing in securities.

 
"Fundamental Transaction" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
 
"Late Fees" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(c).
 
"Mandatory Default Amount" means the payment of 130% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note and accrued and unpaid

interest hereon, in addition to the payment of all other amounts, costs, expenses, late fees, and liquidated damages due in respect of this Note.
 
"New York Courts" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8(d).
 
"Note Register" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(b).
 
"Notice of Conversion" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).



 
"Original Issue Date" means the date of the first issuance of this Note, regardless of any transfers of any Note and regardless of the number

of instruments which may be issued to evidence such Notes.
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"Purchase Agreement" means the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2016 by and among the Company, the original
Holder, and the other parties named therein, if any, as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its terms.

 
"Registration Statement" means a registration statement covering the resale of the Underlying Shares by each Holder.



 
"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 
"Share Delivery Date" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(d)(ii).
 
"Successor Entity" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
 
"Trading Market" means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock (or any other common stock of any other

Person that references the Trading Market for its common stock) is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the OTC Bulletin Board,
The NASDAQ Global Market, The NASDAQ Global Select Market, The NASDAQ Capital Market, the New York Stock Exchange, NYSE Arca,
the NYSE MKT, or the OTCQX Marketplace, the OTCQB Marketplace, the OTCPink Marketplace or any other tier operated by OTC Markets
Group Inc. (or any successor to any of the foregoing).

 
"VWAP" means, for or as of any date, the dollar volume-weighted average price for such security on the Trading Market (or, if the

Trading Market is not the principal trading market for such security, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which such
security is then traded) during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time, and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time, as reported by
Bloomberg through its "HP" function (set to weighted average) or, if the foregoing does not apply, the dollar volume-weighted average price of
such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New
York time, and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no dollar volume-weighted average price is reported for
such security by Bloomberg for such hours, the average of the highest closing bid price and the lowest closing ask price of any of the market
makers for such security as reported in the "pink sheets" by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink Sheets LLC). If the VWAP cannot be
calculated for such security on such date on any of the foregoing bases, the VWAP of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as
mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. All such determinations shall be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split,
stock combination, recapitalization or other similar transaction during such period.
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Section 2. Interest.
 

a) Payment of Interest in Cash or Kind. The Company shall pay interest to the Holder in an amount equal to the product of 12% (which
interest rate may be increased as provided elsewhere herein), multiplied by the Original Principal Amount, for the 24-month period beginning on
the Original Issuance Date. Interest provided for in this Section 2(a), for the first nine (9) months following the Initial Issuance Date, shall be
guaranteed and deemed earned in full on the first day following the Original Issuance Date. All interest provided for in this Section (2)(a) shall be
due and payable on the Maturity Date (the Fixed Interest Payment Date"); provided, however, notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided
herein or elsewhere, interest due hereunder will be due and payable prior to the Fixed Interest Payment Date, upon any conversion, prepayment,
Event of Default, and/or other acceleration of principal outstanding on this Note, with respect to the interest relating to the principal so converted,
prepaid and/or accelerated whether as a result of an Event of Default, or otherwise. All interest payments hereunder will be payable in cash or
Common Stock in the Company's discretion. Interest paid in Common Stock will be the Conversion Price or Alternative Conversion Price, as
applicable.

 
b) Interest Calculations. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30-calendar day periods, and shall

accrue commencing on the Original Issue Date until payment in full of the outstanding principal, together with all accrued and unpaid interest,
liquidated damages and other amounts which may become due hereunder, has been made. Interest hereunder will be paid to the Person in whose
name this Note is registered on the records of the Company regarding registration and transfers of this Note (the "Note Register").

 
c) Late Fees. All overdue accrued and unpaid interest to be paid hereunder shall entail a late fee at an interest rate equal to the lesser of

18% per annum or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law (the "Late Fees") that shall accrue daily from the date such interest is due
hereunder through and including the date of actual payment in full.

 
Section 3. Registration of Transfers and Exchanges.

 
a ) Different Denominations. This Note is exchangeable for an equal aggregate principal amount of Notes of different authorized



denominations, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge will be payable for such registration of transfer or exchange.
 
b) Investment Representations. This Note has been issued subject to certain investment representations of the original Holder set forth in

the Purchase Agreement and may be transferred or exchanged only in compliance with therewith and applicable federal and state securities laws
and regulations.

 
c) Reliance on Note Register. Prior to due presentment for transfer to the Company of this Note, the Company and any agent of the

Company may treat the Person in whose name this Note is duly registered on the Note Register as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving
payment as herein provided and for all other purposes, whether or not this Note is overdue, and neither the Company nor any such agent shall be
affected by notice to the contrary.
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Section 4. Conversion.
 

a) Voluntary Conversion. At any time after the Original Issue Date until all amounts due under this have been paid in full, this Note shall
be convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of Common Stock at the option of the Holder, at any time and from time to time (subject to the
conversion limitations set forth in Section 4(e) hereof). The Holder shall effect conversions by delivering to the Company a Notice of Conversion,
the form of which is attached hereto as Annex A (each, a "Notice of Conversion"), specifying therein the principal amount of this Note and/or any
other amounts due under this Note to be converted and the date on which such conversion shall be effected (such date, the "Conversion Date"). If
no Conversion Date is specified in a Notice of Conversion, the Conversion Date shall be the date that such Notice of Conversion is deemed
delivered hereunder. No ink-original Notice of Conversion shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or
notarization) of any Notice of Conversion form be required.To effect conversions hereunder, the Holder shall not be required to physically
surrender this Note to the Company unless the entire principal amount of this Note, all accrued and unpaid interest thereon and all other amounts



due under this Note have been so converted. Conversions hereunder shall have the effect of lowering the outstanding principal amount of this Note
in an amount equal to the applicable conversion amount. The Holder and the Company shall maintain a Conversion Schedule showing the principal
amount(s) and/or any other amounts due under this Note converted and the date of such conversion(s). The Company may deliver an objection to
any Notice of Conversion within one (1) Business Day of delivery of such Notice of Conversion. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, the
records of the Holder shall be controlling and determinative in the absence of manifest error. The Holder, and any assignee by acceptance of this
Note, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid
and unconverted principal amount of this Note may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.

 
b) Conversion Price. The conversion price in effect on any Conversion Date shall be equal to the lowest of (i) $0.50 (subject to adjustment

for forward and reverse stock splits and the like after the Original Issue Date) (the "Fixed Conversion Price"), or (ii) (y) if a Registration Statement
is declared effective within 90 days of the Original Issue Date, 82.5% of the average of the three (3) lowest daily VWAPs in the fifteen (15) trading
days prior to the Conversion Date or (z) if a Registration Statement has not been declared effective within 90 days of the Original Issue Date, 81%
of the average of the three (3) lowest daily VWAPs in the fifteen (15) trading days prior to the Conversion Date (the "Variable Conversion Price",
and, together with the Fixed Conversion Price, the "Conversion Price"). Should an Event of Default occur pursuant to Section 6 hereof, the
Conversion Price will automatically be replaced by the Alternate Conversion Price and remain in effect as long as the Event of Default remains. All
such foregoing determinations will be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or similar
transaction that proportionately decreases or increases the Common Stock during such measuring period. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder's right
to pursue actual damages or declare an Event of Default pursuant to Section 6 hereof and the Holder shall have the right to pursue all remedies
available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of
any such rights shall not prohibit the Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section hereof or under applicable law.
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c) Optional Company Conversion. At any time that (i) the daily VWAP for the prior ten (10) consecutive Trading Days is 200% of the
Fixed Conversion Price and (ii) the average daily trading value is greater than $2,500,000 for the prior ten (10) consecutive Trading Days (as
reported by Bloomberg through its "HP" function) (the "Conditions"), then the Company can demand, upon one (1) day's notice that the Holder
convert the Note, pursuant to Section 4(d) hereof and subject to the limitations of Section 4(e), as long as the Conditions remain in effect.

 
d) Mechanics of Conversion.

 
i. Conversion Shares Issuable Upon a Conversion. The number of Conversion Shares issuable upon a conversion hereunder shall

be determined by the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the sum of all outstanding (i) principal, (ii) interest, and (iii) any other amount due
under this Note to be converted as provided in the applicable Notice of Conversion by (y) the Conversion Price.

 
ii. Delivery of Certificate Upon Conversion. Not later than two (2) Trading Days after each Conversion Date (the "Share Delivery

Date"), the Company shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Holder (A) a certificate or certificates representing the Conversion
Shares, which, on or after the date on which if the resale of such Conversion Shares are covered by and are being sold pursuant to an
effective Registration Statement or such Conversion Shares are eligible to be sold under Rule 144 without the need for current public
information and the Company has received an opinion of counsel to such effect reasonably acceptable to the Company (which opinion the
Company will be responsible for obtaining at its own cost) shall be free of restrictive legends and trading restrictions (other than those
which may then be required by the Purchase Agreement) representing the number of Conversion Shares being acquired or being sold, as
the case may be, upon the conversion of this Note, and (B) a bank check in the amount of accrued and unpaid interest (if the Company has
elected to pay accrued interest in cash). All certificate or certificates required to be delivered by the Company under this Section 4(d) shall
be delivered electronically through DTC or another established clearing corporation performing similar functions, unless the Company or



its Transfer Agent does not have an account with DTC and/or is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program;
then, the Company shall issue and deliver to the address as specified in such Notice of Conversion, a certificate (or certificates), registered
in the name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of Conversion Shares to which the Holder shall be entitled. If the Conversion
Shares are not being sold pursuant to an effective Registration Statement or if the Conversion Date is prior to the date on which such
Conversion Shares are eligible to be sold under Rule 144 without the need for current public information, the Conversion Shares shall bear
a restrictive legend in the following form, as appropriate:

 

 

"NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE
NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
(WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM,
THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO
RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR
OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES."
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, commencing on such date that the Conversion Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 144 subject to current
public information requirements, the Company, upon request and at the Company's expense, shall obtain a legal opinion to allow for such
sales under Rule 144.

 
iii. Failure to Deliver Certificates. If, in the case of any Notice of Conversion, such certificate or certificates are not delivered to or

as directed by the applicable Holder by the Share Delivery Date, the Holder shall be entitled to elect by written notice to the Company at
any time on or before its receipt of such certificate or certificates, to rescind such Conversion, in which event the Company shall promptly
return to the Holder any original Note delivered to the Company and the Holder shall promptly return to the Company the Common Stock
certificates issued to such Holder pursuant to the rescinded Notice of Conversion.

 
iv. Obligation Absolute; Partial Liquidated Damages. The Company's obligations to issue and deliver the Conversion Shares upon

conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof are absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any action or inaction by the
Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against any Person
or any action to enforce the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by
the Holder or any other Person of any obligation to the Company or any violation or alleged violation of law by the Holder or any other
Person, and irrespective of any other circumstance that might otherwise limit such obligation of the Company to the Holder in connection
with the issuance of such Conversion Shares; provided, however, that such delivery shall not operate as a waiver by the Company of any
such action the Company may have against the Holder. In the event the Holder of this Note shall elect to convert any or all of the
outstanding principal or interest amount hereof, the Company may not refuse conversion based on any claim that the Holder or anyone



associated or affiliated with the Holder has been engaged in any violation of law, agreement or for any other reason, unless an injunction
from a court, on notice to Holder, restraining and or enjoining conversion of all or part of this Note shall have been sought. If the
injunction is not granted, the Company shall promptly comply with all conversion obligations herein. If the injunction is obtained, the
Company must post a surety bond for the benefit of the Holder in the amount of 150% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note,
which is subject to the injunction, which bond shall remain in effect until the completion of arbitration/litigation of the underlying dispute
and the proceeds of which shall be payable to the Holder to the extent it obtains judgment. In the absence of seeking such injunction, the
Company shall issue Conversion Shares or, if applicable, cash, upon a properly noticed conversion. If the Company fails for any reason to
deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates pursuant to Section 4(d)(ii) by the Share Delivery Date, the Company shall pay to the
Holder, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, $1,000 per Trading Day for each Trading Day after such Share Delivery Date
until such certificates are delivered or Holder rescinds such conversion. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder's right to pursue actual
damages or declare an Event of Default pursuant to Section 6 hereof for the Company's failure to deliver Conversion Shares within the
period specified herein and the Holder shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any such rights shall not prohibit the Holder
from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section hereof or under applicable law. Liquidated Damages that arise from this
Note are to be capped at $150,000.
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v. Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Conversion. In addition to any other rights available
to the Holder, if the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates by the Share Delivery Date
pursuant to Section 4(d)(ii), and if after such Share Delivery Date the Holder is required by its brokerage firm to purchase (in an open
market transaction or otherwise), or the Holder's brokerage firm otherwise purchases, shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of
a sale by the Holder of the Conversion Shares which the Holder was entitled to receive upon the conversion relating to such Share Delivery
Date (a "Buy-In"), then the Company shall (A) pay in cash to the Holder (in addition to any other remedies available to or elected by the
Holder) the amount, if any, by which (x) the Holder's total purchase price (including any brokerage commissions) for the Common Stock
so purchased exceeds (y) the product of (1) the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that the Holder was entitled to receive from
the conversion at issue multiplied by (2) the actual sale price at which the sell order giving rise to such purchase obligation was executed
(including any brokerage commissions) and (B) at the option of the Holder, either reissue (if surrendered) this Note in a principal amount
equal to the principal amount of the attempted conversion (in which case such conversion shall be deemed rescinded) or deliver to the
Holder the number of shares of Common Stock that would have been issued if the Company had timely complied with its delivery
requirements under Section 4(d)(ii). For example, if the Holder purchases Common Stock having a total purchase price of $11,000 to
cover a Buy-In with respect to an attempted conversion of this Note with respect to which the actual sale price of the Conversion Shares
(including any brokerage commissions) giving rise to such purchase obligation was a total of $10,000 under clause (A) of the immediately
preceding sentence, the Company shall be required to pay the Holder $1,000. The Holder shall provide the Company written notice



indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Buy-In and, upon request of the Company, evidence of the amount of such
loss. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder's right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company's failure to timely deliver
certificates representing shares of Common Stock upon conversion of this Note as required pursuant to the terms hereof.

 
vi. Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Company shall not be

required to reserve any shares of Common Stock from its duly authorized shares of Common Stock for issuance in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that from and after August 1, 2016, the Company covenants that it will at all times
reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock a number of shares of Common Stock at least
equal 250% of the Required Minimum for the sole purpose of issuance upon conversion of this Note and payment of interest on this Note,
each as herein provided, free from preemptive rights or any other actual contingent purchase rights of Persons other than the Holder (and
the other holders of the Notes), not less than such aggregate number of shares of the Common Stock as shall (subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement) be issuable (taking into account the adjustments and restrictions of Section 5, but ignoring
any Beneficial Ownership Limitations or other restrictions and/or limitations on conversions set forth herein or elsewhere) upon the
conversion of the then-outstanding principal amount of this Note and payment of interest hereunder. The Company covenants that all
shares of Common Stock that shall be so issuable shall, upon issue, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and,
at such times as a Registration Statement covering such shares is then effective under the Securities Act, will be registered for public resale
in accordance with such Registration Statement. For purposes of this Note, the "Required Minimum" shall be defined asall outstanding
debt plus interest and any fees divided by the Conversion Price or the Alternate Conversion Price then in effect, as applicable. The
Company shall be required to calculate the Required Minimum on the first trading day of each month that the Note is outstanding and
provide such calculation to the Holder and the transfer agent promptly. For purposes of calculating the Required Minimum, Company shall
assume that all then-outstanding principal will remain outstanding until the Maturity Date and that all accrued but unpaid interest hereon
accrues at the rate of 12% per annum is paid on the Maturity Date and all amounts convert into shares of Common Stock at the
Conversion Price or Alternate Conversion Price then in effect.
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vii. Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of this Note.
As to any fraction of a share that the Holder would otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such conversion, the Company shall, at its
election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Conversion
Price or round up to the next whole share.

 
viii. Transfer Taxes and Expenses. The issuance of certificates for shares of the Common Stock on conversion of this Note shall

be made without charge to the Holder hereof for any documentary stamp or similar taxes that may be payable in respect of the issue or
delivery of such certificates, provided that, the Company shall not be required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer
involved in the issuance and delivery of any such certificate upon conversion in a name other than that of the Holder of this Note so
converted and the Company shall not be required to issue or deliver such certificates unless or until the Person or Persons requesting the
issuance thereof shall have paid to the Company the amount of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Company that
such tax has been paid. The Company shall pay all Transfer Agent fees required for same-day processing of any Notice of Conversion.

 
e) Holder's Conversion Limitations. The Company shall not effect any conversion of principal and/or interest of this Note, and a Holder

shall not have the right to convert any principal and/or interest of this Note, to the extent that, after giving effect to the conversion set forth on the
applicable Notice of Conversion, the Holder (together with the Holder's Affiliates, and any Persons acting as a group together with the Holder or
any of the Holder's Affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of the Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined below). For purposes of the
foregoing sentence, the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its Affiliates shall include the number of shares
of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note with respect to which such determination is being made, but shall exclude the number of
shares of Common Stock that are issuable upon (i) conversion of the remaining, unconverted principal amount of this Note beneficially owned by
the Holder or any of its Affiliates and (ii) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other securities of the Company
subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitation contained herein (including, without limitation, any other Notes)
beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, for purposes of this Section 4(e), beneficial
ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. To the
extent that the limitation contained in this Section 4(e) applies, the determination of whether this Note is convertible (in relation to other securities



owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which principal amount of this Note is convertible shall be in the sole discretion of the
Holder, and the submission of a Notice of Conversion shall be deemed to be the Holder's determination of whether this Note may be converted (in
relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and which principal amount of this Note is convertible, in each case
subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation. To ensure compliance with this restriction, the Holder will be deemed to represent to the Company
each time it delivers a Notice of Conversion that such Notice of Conversion has not violated the restrictions set forth in this paragraph and the
Company shall have no obligation to verify or confirm the accuracy of such determination. In addition, a determination as to any group status as
contemplated above shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder. For purposes of this Section 4(e), in determining the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock, the Holder may rely on the
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as stated in the most recent of the following: (i) the Company's most recent periodic or annual
report filed with the Commission, as the case may be, (ii) a more recent public announcement by the Company, or (iii) a more recent written notice
by the Company or the Company's transfer agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. Upon the written or oral request
of a Holder, the Company shall within two (2) Trading Days confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock
then outstanding. In any case, the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or
exercise of securities of the Company, including this Note, by the Holder or its Affiliates since the date as of which such number of outstanding
shares of Common Stock was reported. The "Beneficial Ownership Limitation" shall be 4.99% of the number of shares of the Common Stock
outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note held by the Holder.
The Holder, upon not less than 61 days' prior written notice to the Company, may increase or decrease the Beneficial Ownership Limitation
provisions of this Section 4(e), provided that the Beneficial Ownership Limitation in no event exceeds 9.99% of the number of shares of the
Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock upon conversion of this Note held by the
Holder and the Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 4(e) shall continue to apply. Any such increase or decrease will not be
effective until the 61st day after such notice is delivered to the Company. The Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this paragraph shall
be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this Section 4(e) to correct this paragraph (or any
portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended Beneficial Ownership Limitation contained herein or to make changes or
supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to such limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to a successor
holder of this Note.
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Section 5. Certain Adjustments.
 

a) Stock Dividends and Stock Splits. If the Company, at any time while this Note is outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend or otherwise
makes a distribution or distributions payable in shares of Common Stock on shares of Common Stock or any Common Stock Equivalents (which,
for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon conversion of, or payment of interest on, the
Notes), (ii) subdivides outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, (iii) combines (including by way of a reverse stock
split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares or (iv) issues, in the event of a reclassification of shares of the
Common Stock, any shares of capital stock of the Company, then the Conversion Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator
shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Company) outstanding immediately before such event, and
of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment made
pursuant to this Section shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such
dividend or distribution and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination or reclassification.

 
b) Subsequent Equity Sales. If, at any time while this Note is outstanding, the Company or any Subsidiary, as applicable, sells or grants

any option to purchase or sells or grants any right to reprice, or otherwise disposes of or issues (or announces any sale, grant or any option to
purchase or other disposition), any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents entitling any Person to acquire shares of Common Stock at an
effective price per share that is lower than the then Conversion Price (such lower price, the "Base Conversion Price" and such issuances,
collectively, a "Dilutive Issuance") (if the holder of the Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents so issued shall at any time, whether by
operation of purchase price adjustments, reset provisions, floating conversion, exercise or exchange prices or otherwise, or due to warrants, options
or rights per share which are issued in connection with such issuance, be entitled to receive shares of Common Stock at an effective price per share
that is lower than the Conversion Price, such issuance shall be deemed to have occurred for less than the Conversion Price on such date of the
Dilutive Issuance), then the Conversion Price shall be reduced and only reduced to equal the Base Conversion Price. Such adjustment shall be made
whenever such Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents are issued. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustment will be made under this
Section 5(b) in respect of an Exempt Issuance. The Company shall notify the Holder in writing, no later than the Trading Day following the
issuance of any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents subject to this Section 5(b), indicating therein the applicable issuance price, or
applicable reset price, exchange price, conversion price and other pricing terms (such notice, the "Dilutive Issuance Notice"). For purposes of



clarification, whether or not the Company provides a Dilutive Issuance Notice pursuant to this Section 5(b), upon the occurrence of any Dilutive
Issuance, the Holder is entitled to receive a number of Conversion Shares based upon the Base Conversion Price on or after the date of such
Dilutive Issuance, regardless of whether the Holder accurately refers to the Base Conversion Price in the Notice of Conversion.
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c) Subsequent Rights Offerings. In addition to any adjustments pursuant to Section 5(a) above, if at any time the Company grants, issues or
sells any Common Stock Equivalents or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro rata to the record holders of any class of
shares of Common Stock (the "Purchase Rights"), then the Holder will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights,
the aggregate Purchase Rights that the Holder could have acquired if the Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon



complete conversion of this Note (without regard to any limitations on exercise hereof, including without limitation, the Beneficial Ownership
Limitation) immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is
taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights
(provided, however, to the extent that the Holder's right to participate in any such Purchase Right would result in the Holder exceeding the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be entitled to participate in such Purchase Right to such extent (or beneficial ownership
of such shares of Common Stock as a result of such Purchase Right to such extent) and such Purchase Right to such extent shall be held in
abeyance for the Holder until such time, if ever, as its right thereto would not result in the Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership
Limitation).  

 
d) Pro Rata Distributions. During such time as this Warrant is outstanding, if the Company shall declare or make any dividend or other

distribution of its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of shares of Common Stock, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including,
without limitation, any distribution of cash, stock or other securities, property or options by way of a dividend, spin off, reclassification, corporate
rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other similar transaction) (a "Distribution"), at any time after the issuance of this Warrant, then, in each
such case, the Holder shall be entitled to participate in such Distribution to the same extent that the Holder would have participated therein if the
Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on
exercise hereof, including without limitation, the Beneficial Ownership Limitation) immediately before the date of which a record is taken for such
Distribution, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the
participation in such Distribution (provided, however, to the extent that the Holder's right to participate in any such Distribution would result in the
Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be entitled to participate in such Distribution to such extent (or in
the beneficial ownership of any shares of Common Stock as a result of such Distribution to such extent) and the portion of such Distribution shall
be held in abeyance for the benefit of the Holder until such time, if ever, as its right thereto would not result in the Holder exceeding the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation. 

 
 

13



 
 

e ) Fundamental Transaction. The Company shall not, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions, effect any merger or
consolidation of the Company and/or or any of its Subsidiaries with and/or into another Person, without the express written consent of 90% of the
then-issued and outstanding principal amount of Notes (the "90% Amount"). If, subject to the Company obtaining written consent of the 90%
Amount, at any time while this Note is outstanding (i) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any merger or
consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (ii) the Company, directly or indirectly, effects any sale, lease, license, assignment,
transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (iii) any, direct or indirect,
purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Company or another Person) is completed pursuant to which holders of Common
Stock are permitted to sell, tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the holders of 50% or
more of the outstanding Common Stock, (iv) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any reclassification,
reorganization or recapitalization of the Common Stock or any compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is effectively
converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property, or (v) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related
transactionsconsummates a stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization,
recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with another Person, whereby such other Person acquires more than 50% of the outstanding
shares of Common Stock (not including any shares of Common Stock held by the other Person or other Persons making or party to, or associated
or affiliated with the other Persons making or party to, such stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination) (each, a
"Fundamental Transaction"), then, upon any subsequent conversion of this Note, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Conversion
Share that would have been issuable upon such conversion immediately prior to the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to
any limitation in Section 4(e) on the conversion of this Note), the number of shares of Common Stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or
of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation, and any additional consideration (the "Alternate Consideration") receivable as a result of such
Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which this Note is convertible immediately prior to such
Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 4(e) on the conversion of this Note). For purposes of any such conversion, the
determination of the Conversion Price shall be appropriately adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate
Consideration issuable in respect of one (1) share of Common Stock in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the



Conversion Price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the
Alternate Consideration. If holders of Common Stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or property to be received in a Fundamental
Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any conversion of this Note
following such Fundamental Transaction. The Company shall cause any successor entity in a Fundamental Transaction in which the Company is
not the survivor (the "Successor Entity") to assume in writing all of the obligations of the Company under this Note and the other Documents (as
defined in the Purchase Agreement) in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5(e) pursuant to written agreements in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and approved by the Holder (without unreasonable delay) prior to such Fundamental Transaction and shall, at
the option of the holder of this Note, deliver to the Holder in exchange for this Note a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written
instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Note that is convertible for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock of such
Successor Entity (or its parent entity) equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon conversion of this Note (without
regard to any limitations on the conversion of this Note) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with a conversion price which applies the
conversion price hereunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to
such Fundamental Transaction and the value of such shares of capital stock, such number of shares of capital stock and such conversion price being
for the purpose of protecting the economic value of this Note immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction), and which
is reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Holder. Upon the occurrence of any such Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity
shall succeed to, and be substituted for (so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Note and the other
Documents referring to the "Company" shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every right and power of the Company and
shall assume all of the obligations of the Company under this Note and the other Documents with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had
been named as the Company herein. 
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f) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 5 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be.
For purposes of this Section 5, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of
the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Company) issued and outstanding.

 
g) Notice to the Holder.

 
i. Adjustment to Conversion Price. Whenever the Conversion Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 5, the

Company shall promptly deliver to each Holder a notice setting forth the Conversion Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief
statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.

 
ii. Notice to Allow Conversion by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever

form) on the Common Stock, (B) the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common
Stock, (C) the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock of rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase
any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights, (D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in
connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or
transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is
converted into other securities, cash or property or (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or
winding-up of the affairs of the Company, then, in each case, the Company shall cause to be filed at each office or agency maintained for
the purpose of conversion of this Note, and shall cause to be delivered to the Holder at its last address as it shall appear upon the Note
Register, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice, stating (x) the



date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to
be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights
or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is
expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled
to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation,
merger, sale, transfer or share exchange, provided that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein or in the delivery thereof shall
not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice. To the extent that any notice provided hereunder
constitutes, or contains, material, non-public information regarding the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, the Company shall
simultaneously file such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on Form 8-K. The Holder shall remain entitled to
convert this Note during the 20-day period commencing on the date of such notice through the effective date of the event triggering such
notice except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein.
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Section 6. Events of Default.
 

a) "Event of Default" means, wherever used herein, any of the following events (whatever the reason for such event and whether such
event shall be voluntary or involuntary or effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment, decree or order of any court, or any order, rule
or regulation of any administrative or governmental body):

 
i. any default in the payment of (A) the principal amount of any Note or (B) interest, liquidated damages, Late Fees and other

amounts owing to a Holder on any Note, as and when the same shall become due and payable (whether on a Conversion Date or the
Maturity Date or by acceleration or otherwise) which default, solely in the case of an interest payment or other default under clause (B)
above, is not cured within three (3) Trading Days;

 
ii. the Company shall fail to observe or perform any other material covenant or agreement contained in the Notes (and other than



a breach by the Company of its obligations to deliver shares of Common Stock to the Holder upon conversion, which breach is addressed
in clause (x) below), which failure is not cured, if possible to cure, within the earlier to occur of (A) five (5) Trading Days after notice of
such failure sent by the Holder or by any other Holder to the Company and (B) ten (10) Trading Days after the Company has become or
should have become aware of such failure;

 
iii. a material default or material event of default (subject to any grace or cure period provided in the applicable agreement,

document or instrument) shall occur under (A) any of the Documents or (B) any other material agreement, lease, document or instrument
to which the Company or any Subsidiary is obligated and/or which any of their respective assets are subject to or bound by (and not
covered by clause (vi) below);

 
iv. any representation or warranty made in this Note, any other Documents, any written statement pursuant hereto or thereto or

any other report, financial statement or certificate made or delivered to the Holder or any other Holder shall be untrue or incorrect in any
material respect as of the date when made or deemed made or the Company has failed to fulfill any material covenant contained in this
Note, any other Documents, any written statement pursuant hereto or thereto;

 
v. the Company or any Subsidiary (as such term is defined in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X) shall be subject to a Bankruptcy

Event;
 
vi. the Company or any Subsidiary shall default on any of its obligations under any mortgage, credit agreement or other facility,

indenture agreement, factoring agreement or other instrument under which there may be issued, or by which there may be secured or
evidenced, any indebtedness for borrowed money or money due under any long term leasing or factoring arrangement that (a) involves an
obligation greater than $50,000, whether such indebtedness now exists or shall hereafter be created, and (b) results in such indebtedness
becoming or being declared due and payable prior to the date on which it would otherwise become due and payable;
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vii. the Common Stock shall not be eligible for listing or quotation for trading on a Trading Market and shall not be eligible to
resume listing or quotation for trading thereon within five (5) Trading Days or the transfer of shares of Common Stock through the
Depository Trust Company System is no longer available, "frozen" or "chilled";

 
viii. the Company shall be a party to any Change of Control Transaction or Fundamental Transaction or shall agree to sell or

dispose of all or a portion of its assets in one transaction or a series of related transactions, without the approval of the Holder or Holders
as provided in the Purchase Agreement (whether or not such sale would constitute a Change of Control Transaction);

 
ix. the Company does not meet the current public information requirements under Rule 144 in respect of the Registrable

Securities (as defined in the Registration Rights Agreement);
 
x. the Company shall fail for any reason to deliver certificates to a Holder prior to the third (3rd) Trading Day after a Conversion

Date pursuant to Section 4(d) or the Company shall provide at any time notice to the Holder, including by way of public announcement, of
the Company's intention to not honor requests for conversions of any Notes in accordance with the terms hereof;

 
xi. the Company fails to file with the Commission any required reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act such that it

is not in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) (or Rule 144(i)(2), if applicable);
 
xii. the Company or any Subsidiary shall: (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator

of it or any of its properties, (ii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature, (iii)make a general assignment for the benefit
of creditors, (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent or be the subject of an order for relief under Title 11 of the United States Code or
any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or statute of any other jurisdiction or
foreign country, or (v) file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with



creditors or to take advantage or any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or statute,
or an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any proceeding under any such law, or (vi) take or permit to
be taken any action in furtherance of or for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing;

 
xiii. if any order, judgment or decree shall be entered, without the application, approval or consent of the Company or any

Subsidiary, by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition seeking liquidation or reorganization of the Company or any
Subsidiary, or appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of the Company or any Subsidiary, or of all or any substantial part of
its assets, and such order, judgment or decree shall continue unstayed and in effect for any period of sixty (60) days;
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xiv. the occurrence of any levy upon or seizure or attachment of, or any uninsured loss of or damage to, any property of the
Company or any Subsidiary having an aggregate fair value or repair cost (as the case may be) in excess of $100,000 individually or in the
aggregate, and any such levy, seizure or attachment shall not be set aside, bonded or discharged within thirty (30) days after the date
thereof;

 
xv. the Company shall fail to maintain sufficient reserved shares pursuant to Section 4.1(n) of the Purchase Agreement;
 
xvi. any monetary judgment, writ or similar final process shall be entered or filed against the Company, any subsidiary or any

of their respective property or other assets for more than $50,000, and such judgment, writ or similar final process shall remain unvacated,



unbonded or unstayed for a period of forty-five (45) calendar days;
 
xvii. the Company, without the written consent of the Holders, shall enter into, create, incur, assume, guarantee or suffer to

exist any indebtedness for borrowed money of any kind for more than $50,000, including, but not limited to, a guarantee, on or with
respect to any of its property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired or any interest therein or any income or profits therefrom;

 
xviii. the Company, without the written consent of the Holders, shall enter into, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any

liens of any kind, on or with respect to any of its property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired or any interest therein or any income
or profits therefrom; or

 
xix. the Company enters into any transaction with any Affiliate of the Company that would be required to be disclosed in any

public filing with the Commission.
 

b) Remedies Upon Event of Default. Subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation as set forth in Section 4(e), if any Event of Default
occurs, then the outstanding principal amount of this Note, plus accrued but unpaid interest, liquidated damages and other amounts owing in
respect thereof through the date of acceleration, shall become, at the Holder's election, immediately due and payable in cash at the Mandatory
Default Amount. After the occurrence of any Event of Default that results in the eventual acceleration of this Note, the interest rate on this Note
shall accrue at an additional interest rate equal to the lesser of 1.5% per month (18% per annum) or the maximum rate permitted under applicable
law (with a credit for any "unused" guaranteed interest). Upon the payment in full of the Mandatory Default Amount, the Holder shall promptly
surrender this Note to or as directed by the Company. In connection with such acceleration described herein, the Holder need not provide, and the
Company hereby waives, any presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, and the Holder may immediately and without expiration of
any grace period enforce any and all of its rights and remedies hereunder and all other remedies available to it under applicable law. Such
acceleration may be rescinded and annulled by Holder at any time prior to payment hereunder and the Holder shall have all rights as a holder of the
Note until such time, if any, as the Holder receives full payment pursuant to this Section 6(b). No such rescission or annulment shall affect any
subsequent Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon. Alternatively, at the election of the Holder, the Holder may require the
Company to redeem all of the Notes then held by such Holder through the issuance to such Holder of such number of shares of Common Stock
equal to the quotient of (x) the Default Redemption Amount, divided by (y) Alternate Conversion Rate. The Default Redemption Amount, whether
payable in cash or in shares, shall be due and payable or issuable, as the case may be, within five (5) Trading Days of the date on which the notice
for the payment therefor is provided by a Holder (the "Default Redemption Payment Date"). If the Company fails to pay in full the Default
Redemption Amount hereunder on the date such amount is due in accordance with this Section (whether in cash or shares of Common Stock), the
Company will pay interest thereon at a rate equal to the lesser of 18% per annum or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law (with a credit
for any "unused" guaranteed interest), accruing from such date until the Default Redemption Amount, plus all such interest thereon, is paid in full. 
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Section 7.Prepayment.
 

At any time upon ten (10) days' prior written notice to the Holder, but subject to the Holder's conversion rights set forth herein, the
Company may prepay any portion of the principal amount of this Note, all accrued and unpaid interest relating to such prepaid portion of the
principal and all other amounts due under this Note. The written notice shall, among other items, state the date such Prepayment Amount (as
defined below) is to be paid to the Holder, which shall not in any event be later than ten (10) calendar days from the date of mailing of the
prepayment notice to the Holder (the "Prepayment Date"). If the Company exercises its right to prepay the Note, the Company shall make payment
to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to the product of (i) the sum of (x) the then-outstanding principal amount of this Note and (y) all accrued
but unpaid interest, multiplied by (ii) (x) 110%, if the Prepayment Date is within 90 days of the Original Issue Date, (y) 115%, if the Prepayment
Date is between 91 days and 180 days following the Original Issue Date or (z) 125%, if the Prepayment Date is after the 181st day following the
Original Issue Date, to which calculated amount the Company shall add all other amounts owed pursuant to this Note, including, but not limited to,
all Late Fees and liquidated damages (collectively, the "Prepayment Amount"). The Holder may continue to convert the Note from the date notice
of the prepayment is given until the date the Holder receives in full, the Prepayment Amount.

 
Section 8. Miscellaneous.

 
a ) Notices. Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Holder hereunder, including, without

limitation, any Notice of Conversion, shall be in writing and delivered personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier
service, addressed to the Company, at Terra Tech Corp., 4700 Von Karman, Suite 110, Newport Beach, California 92660, fax no. 888-330-6883, or
such other facsimile number or address as the Company may specify for such purposes by notice to the Holder delivered in accordance with this
Section 8(a). Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Company hereunder shall be in writing and delivered
personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service addressed to each Holder at the facsimile number or address of
the Holder appearing on the books of the Company, or if no such facsimile number or address appears on the books of the Company, at the
principal place of business of such Holder, as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. Any notice or other communication or deliveries hereunder
shall be deemed given and effective on the earliest of (i) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the
facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto prior to 12:00 noon (New York City time) on any date, (ii) the next Trading Day
after the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages
attached hereto on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 12:00 noon (New York City time) on any Trading Day, (iii) the second Trading Day
following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service or (iv) upon actual receipt by the party to whom such
notice is required to be given. 

 
b) Absolute Obligation. Except as expressly provided herein, no provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company,



which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, liquidated damages and accrued interest, as applicable, on this Note at the time, place,
and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed. This Note is a direct debt obligation of the Company. This Note ranks paripassu with all
other Notes now or hereafter issued under the terms set forth herein.
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c) Lost or Mutilated Note. If this Note shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall execute and deliver, in exchange
and substitution for and upon cancellation of a mutilated Note, or in lieu of or in substitution for a lost, stolen or destroyed Note, a new Note for the
principal amount of this Note so mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, but only upon receipt of evidence of such loss, theft or destruction of such
Note, and of the ownership hereof, reasonably satisfactory to the Company.



 
d) Governing Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Note shall be governed by

and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles of conflict of laws
thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretation, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by any
of the Documents (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective Affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents) shall
be commenced in the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan (the "New York Courts "). Each party hereto
hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the New York Courts for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection
herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the Documents), and
hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of
such New York Courts, or such New York Courts are improper or inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Each party hereto hereby irrevocably
waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any and all right to trial by jury in any legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this
Note or the transactions contemplated hereby. If any party shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, then the
prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its attorneys' fees and other costs and expenses incurred in
the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding.

 
e) Waiver. Any waiver by the Company or the Holder of a breach of any provision of this Note shall not operate as or be construed to be a

waiver of any other breach of such provision or of any breach of any other provision of this Note. The failure of the Company or the Holder to
insist upon strict adherence to any term of this Note on one or more occasions shall not be considered a waiver or deprive that party of the right
thereafter to insist upon strict adherence to that term or any other term of this Note on any other occasion. Any waiver by the Company or the
Holder must be in writing.

 
f) Severability. If any provision of this Note is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the balance of this Note shall remain in effect, and if any

provision is inapplicable to any Person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain applicable to all other Persons and circumstances. If it shall be
found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the applicable law governing usury, the applicable rate of interest
due hereunder shall automatically be lowered to equal the maximum rate of interest permitted under applicable law. The Company covenants (to
the extent that it may lawfully do so) that it shall not at any time insist upon, plead, or in any manner whatsoever claim or take the benefit or
advantage of, any stay, extension or usury law or other law which would prohibit or forgive the Company from paying all or any portion of the
principal of or interest on this Note as contemplated herein, wherever enacted, now or at any time hereafter in force, or which may affect the
covenants or the performance of this Note, and the Company (to the extent it may lawfully do so) hereby expressly waives all benefits or advantage
of any such law, and covenants that it will not, by resort to any such law, hinder, delay or impede the execution of any power herein granted to the
Holder, but will suffer and permit the execution of every such as though no such law has been enacted.
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g) Remedies, Characterizations, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this Note shall be cumulative
and in addition to all other remedies available under this Note and any of the other Documents (including, without limitation, the security
agreements referenced in the Purchase Agreement), at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief),
and nothing herein shall limit the Holder's right to pursue actual and consequential damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the
terms of this Note. The Company covenants to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this instrument other than as expressly
provided herein. Amounts set forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, conversion and the like (and the computation thereof) shall be
the amounts to be received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided herein, be subject to any other obligation of the Company (or
the performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and
that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened
breach, the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any such breach or any such threatened
breach, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. The Company shall provide all
information and documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the Holder to confirm the Company's compliance with the
terms and conditions of this Note.

 
h) Next Business Day. Whenever any payment or other obligation hereunder shall be due on a day other than a Business Day, such

payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day.
 
i) Headings. The headings contained herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Note and shall not be deemed to limit

or affect any of the provisions hereof.
 
j) Secured Obligation. The obligations of the Company under this Note are secured by all assets of the Company and each Subsidiary

pursuant to the Security Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2016 between the Company, the Subsidiaries of the Company and the Secured Parties (as
defined therein).

 
Section 10. Disclosure. Upon receipt or delivery by the Company of any notice in accordance with the terms of this Note, unless the Company

has in good faith determined that the matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its
Subsidiaries, the Company shall within two (2) Business Days after such receipt or delivery publicly disclose such material, nonpublic information on a
Current Report on Form 8-K or otherwise. In the event that the Company believes that a notice contains material, non-public information relating to the
Company or its Subsidiaries, the Company so shall indicate to the Holder contemporaneously with delivery of such notice, and in the absence of any such
indication, the Holder shall be allowed to presume that all matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the
Company or its Subsidiaries.
 



*********************
(Signature Pages Follow)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed by a duly authorized officer as of the date first above
indicated.
 



 TERRA TECH CORP.  
    

By:  
 Name:  
 Title:  
 

 Facsimile No. for delivery of
Notices:_____________________  
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ANNEX A
 

NOTICE OF CONVERSION
 

The undersigned hereby elects to convert principal, accrued but unpaid interest and/or any of amounts due under the 12% Senior Secured
Convertible Promissory Note due May 27, 2018 of Terra Tech Corp., a Nevada corporation (the " Company"), into shares of common stock (the "Common
Stock"), of the Company according to the conditions hereof, as of the date written below. If shares of Common Stock are to be issued in the name of a
person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer taxes payable with respect thereto and is delivering herewith such certificates and
opinions as reasonably requested by the Company in accordance therewith. No fee will be charged to the holder for any conversion, except for such



transfer taxes, if any.
 
By the delivery of this Notice of Conversion, the undersigned represents and warrants to the Company that its ownership of the Common Stock

does not exceed the amounts specified under Section 4 of this Note, as determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act.
 
The undersigned agrees to comply with the prospectus delivery requirements under the applicable securities laws in connection with any transfer

of the aforesaid shares of Common Stock, if the resale of any such shares of Common Stock are covered by and are being sold pursuant to an effective
Registration Statement.
 
Conversion calculations:
 

 

Date to Effect Conversion:
_________________________________________________
 
Principal Amount of Note to be Converted:
_____________________________________
 
Payment of Interest in Common Stock __ yes __ no

If yes, $_____ of Interest Accrued on Account of Conversion at Issue.
 
Other Amounts Owed Under this Note to be Converted including Late Fees:
__________
 
Number of shares of Common Stock to be issued:
_______________________________
 
Signature:
______________________________________________________________
 
Name:
_________________________________________________________________
 
Delivery Instructions:
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Schedule 1
 

CONVERSION SCHEDULE
 
This 12% Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Note due on May 27, 2018 in the principal amount of $3,250,000 is issued by Terra Tech Corp., a
Nevada corporation. This Conversion Schedule reflects conversions made under Section 4 of the above referenced Note.
 
Dated:
 

Date of Conversion
(or for first entry,

Original Issue Date) Amount of
Conversion

Aggregate Principal Amount
Remaining Subsequent to

Conversion
(or original Principal Amount)

Company
Attest
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EXHIBIT 4.10
 
NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES FOR WHICH THIS SECURITY IS EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION
FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY
NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR
PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS
OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL
OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE
TO THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN
CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.
 

COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT
 

TERRA TECH CORP.  
 
Warrant Shares: [          ]   Initial Issuance Date: May 27, 2016
 

THIS COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT (the "Warrant") certifies that, for value received, [          ] or its assigns (the "Holder") is
entitled, upon the terms and subject to the limitations on exercise and the conditions hereinafter set forth, at any time on or after the Initial Issuance Date
(the "Initial Exercise Date") and on or prior to the close of business on the four-year anniversary of the Initial Exercise Date (the "Termination Date") but
not thereafter, to subscribe for and purchase from Terra Tech Corp., a Nevada corporation (the " Company"), up to 1,625,000 shares (subject to adjustment
hereunder, the "Warrant Shares") of Common Stock. The purchase price of one share of Common Stock under this Warrant shall be equal to the Exercise
Price, as defined in Section 2(b).

 
Section 1. Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Warrant, the following terms have the meanings set forth in this Section

1:
 
"Affiliate" means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common
control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 405 under the Securities Act.
 
"Alternate Consideration" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(e).
 
"Base Share Price" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(b).
 
"Beneficial Ownership Limitation" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2(e).
 
"Bloomberg" means Bloomberg, L.P.

 
 

1



 
 

"Business Day" means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, any day which is a federal legal holiday in the United States or any day on which
banking institutions in the State of New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close.
 
"Black Scholes Value" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(e).
 
"Buy-In" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2(d)(iv).
 
"Closing Bid Price" and "Closing Sale Price" shall mean for any security as of any date, the last closing bid price and last closing trade price,
respectively, for such security on the Principal Market, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market begins to operate on an extended
hours basis and does not designate the closing bid price or the closing trade price, as the case may be, then the last bid price or last trade price,
respectively, of such security prior to 4:00:00 p.m., New York Time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal
securities exchange or trading market for such security, the last closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such security on the principal
securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or if the foregoing do not apply, the last
closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security as
reported by Bloomberg, or, if no closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, is reported for such security by Bloomberg, the average of the bid
prices, or the ask prices, respectively, of any market makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or "pink sheets" by OTC Markets Group
Inc. (formerly the Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular
date on any of the foregoing bases, the Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price, as the case may be, of such security on such date shall be the
fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market
value of such security, then such dispute shall be resolved in good faith by the Holder pursuant to Section 6.10 of the Purchase Agreement. All such
determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or similar transaction during the
applicable calculation period.
 
"Commission" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
 
"Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, and any other class of securities into which such securities
may hereafter be reclassified or changed.
 
"Common Stock Equivalents" means any securities of the Company or the Subsidiaries which would entitle the holder thereof to acquire at any
time Common Stock, including, without limitation, any debt, preferred stock, right, option, warrant or other instrument that is at any time
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or otherwise entitles the holder thereof to receive, Common Stock.
 
"Company" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Preamble.
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"Dilutive Issuance" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(b).
 
"Dilutive Issuance Notice" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(b).
 
"Distribution" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(d).
 
"DWAC" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2(d).
 
"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 
"Exempt Issuance" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(b).
 
"Exercise Price" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2(b).
 
"Fundamental Transaction" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(e).
 
"Holder" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Preamble.
 
"Initial Exercise Date" has the meaning set forth on page 1 of this Warrant
 
"Person" means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company,
joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind.
 
"Purchase Agreement" means the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2016 by and among the Company, the original Holder, and
the other parties named therein, if any, as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its terms.
 
"Purchase Rights" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(c).  
 
"Rule 144" means Rule 144 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended from time to time, or
any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same effect as such Rule.
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"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 
"Subsidiary" means any direct and/or indirect, wholly owned or partially owned subsidiary of the Company or a subsidiary of any subsidiary and
shall, where applicable, also include any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company formed or acquired after the date hereof.
 
"Successor Entity" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(e).
 
"Termination Date" shall be four years after the Initial Exercise Date.
 
"Trading Day" means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for trading.
 
"Trading Market" means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock (or any other common stock of any other Person
that references the Trading Market for its common stock) is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the OTC Bulletin Board, The
NASDAQ Global Market, The NASDAQ Global Select Market, The NASDAQ Capital Market, the New York Stock Exchange, NYSE Arca, the
NYSE MKT, or the OTCQX Marketplace, the OTCQB Marketplace, the OTCPink Marketplace or any other tier operated by OTC Markets Group
Inc. (or any successor to any of the foregoing).
 
"VWAP" means, for or as of any date, the dollar volume-weighted average price for such security on the Trading Market (or, if the Trading Market
is not the principal trading market for such security, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which such security is then
traded) during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time, and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time, as reported by Bloomberg
through its "HP" function (set to weighted average) or, if the foregoing does not apply, the dollar volume-weighted average price of such security
in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time, and
ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no dollar volume-weighted average price is reported for such security by
Bloomberg for such hours, the average of the highest closing bid price and the lowest closing ask price of any of the market makers for such
security as reported in the "pink sheets" by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink Sheets LLC). If the VWAP cannot be calculated for such
security on such date on any of the foregoing bases, the VWAP of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as mutually determined
by the Company and the Holder. All such determinations shall be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination,
recapitalization or other similar transaction during such period.
 
"Warrant" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Preamble.
 
"Warrant Register" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4(c).
 
"Warrant Share Delivery Date" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2(d).
 
"Warrant Shares" means the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant. 
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Section 2. Exercise.



 
a) Exercise of Warrant. Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant may be made, in whole or in part, at any time or times

on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or before the Termination Date by delivery to the Company (or such other office or agency of the
Company as it may designate by notice in writing to the registered Holder at the address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company) of a
duly executed facsimile copy of the Notice of Exercise form attached hereto as Exhibit A and, within three (3) Trading Days of the date said Notice
of Exercise is delivered to the Company, the Company shall have received payment of the aggregate Exercise Price of the shares thereby purchased
by wire transfer or cashier's check drawn on a United States bank. No ink-original Notice of Exercise shall be required, nor shall any medallion
guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any Notice of Exercise form be required. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Warrant to the Company until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares
available hereunder and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company for
cancellation within three (3) Trading Days of the date the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company. Partial exercises of this Warrant
resulting in purchases of a portion of the total number of Warrant Shares available hereunder shall have the effect of lowering the outstanding
number of Warrant Shares purchasable hereunder in an amount equal to the applicable number of Warrant Shares purchased. The Holder and the
Company shall maintain records showing the number of Warrant Shares purchased and the date of such purchases. The Company shall deliver any
objection to any Notice of Exercise Form within one (1) Business Day of receipt of such notice. The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of
this Warrant, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following the purchase of a portion of the
Warrant Shares hereunder, the number of Warrant Shares available for purchase hereunder at any given time may be less than the
amount stated on the face hereof.

 
b) Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of the Common Stock under this Warrant shall be $0.50, subject to adjustment hereunder

(the "Exercise Price").
 
c) Cashless Exercise. If at any time there is no effective registration statement registering, or no current prospectus available for, the resale

of the Warrant Shares by the Holder, then this Warrant may also be exercised, in whole or in part, at such time by means of a "cashless exercise" in
which the Holder shall be entitled to receive a number of Warrant Shares equal to the quotient obtained by dividing [(A-B) (X)] by (A), where:

 
(A) = the VWAP on the Trading Day immediately preceding the date on which Holder elects to exercise this Warrant by means of a

"cashless exercise," as set forth in the applicable Notice of Exercise;
 
(B) = the Exercise Price of this Warrant, as adjusted hereunder; and 
 
(X) = the number of Warrant Shares that would be issuable upon exercise of this Warrant in accordance with the terms of this Warrant if

such exercise were by means of a cash exercise rather than a cashless exercise. 
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d) Mechanics of Exercise.
 

i. Delivery of Warrant Shares Upon Exercise. Warrant Shares purchased hereunder shall be transmitted by the Transfer Agent to
the Holder by crediting the account of the Holder's prime broker with The Depository Trust Company through its Deposit and Withdrawal
at Custodian system ("DWAC") if the Company is then a participant in such system and either (A) there is an effective registration
statement permitting the issuance of the Warrant Shares to or resale of the Warrant Shares by the Holder or (B) the shares are eligible for
resale by the Holder without volume or manner-of-sale limitations pursuant to Rule 144, and otherwise by physical delivery to the address
specified by the Holder in the Notice of Exercise by the date that is three (3) Trading Days after the latest of (A) the delivery to the
Company of the Notice of Exercise and (B) surrender of this Warrant (if required) (such date, the "Warrant Share Delivery Date"). The
Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have been issued, and Holder or any other person so designated to be named therein shall be deemed to
have become a holder of record of such shares for all purposes, as of the date the Warrant has been exercised, with payment to the
Company of the Exercise Price and all taxes required to be paid by the Holder, if any, pursuant to Section 2(d)(vi) prior to the issuance of
such shares, having been paid. If the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder the Warrant Shares subject to a Notice of
Exercise by the Warrant Share Delivery Date, the Company shall pay to the Holder, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty,
for each $1,000 of Warrant Shares subject to such exercise (based on the VWAP of the Common Stock on the date of the applicable
Notice of Exercise), $10 per Trading Day (increasing to $20 per Trading Day on the fifth Trading Day after such liquidated damages begin
to accrue) for each Trading Day after such Warrant Share Delivery Date until such Warrant Shares are delivered or Holder rescinds such
exercise. The Warrant Shares shall bear a restrictive legend in the following form, as appropriate:

 

 

"NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE
NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
(WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM,
THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO
RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR
OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES."
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ii. Delivery of New Warrants Upon Exercise. If this Warrant shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the request
of a Holder and upon surrender of this Warrant certificate, at the time of delivery of the Warrant Shares, deliver to the Holder a new
Warrant evidencing the rights of the Holder to purchase the unpurchased Warrant Shares called for by this Warrant, which new Warrant
shall in all other respects be identical with this Warrant.

 
iii. Rescission Rights. If the Company fails to cause the Transfer Agent to transmit to the Holder the Warrant Shares pursuant to

Section 2(d)(i) by the Warrant Share Delivery Date, then the Holder will have the right to rescind such exercise.
 
iv. Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Warrant Shares Upon Exercise. In addition to any other rights available

to the Holder, if the Company fails to cause the Transfer Agent to transmit to the Holder the Warrant Shares pursuant to an exercise on or
before the Warrant Share Delivery Date, and if after such date the Holder is required by its broker to purchase (in an open market
transaction or otherwise) or the Holder's brokerage firm otherwise purchases, shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale
by the Holder of the Warrant Shares which the Holder anticipated receiving upon such exercise (a "Buy-In"), then the Company shall (A)
pay in cash to the Holder the amount, if any, by which (x) the Holder's total purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for
the shares of Common Stock so purchased exceeds (y) the amount obtained by multiplying (1) the number of Warrant Shares that the
Company was required to deliver to the Holder in connection with the exercise at issue times (2) the price at which the sell order giving
rise to such purchase obligation was executed, and (B) at the option of the Holder, either reinstate the portion of the Warrant and
equivalent number of Warrant Shares for which such exercise was not honored (in which case such exercise shall be deemed rescinded) or
deliver to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock that would have been issued had the Company timely complied with its
exercise and delivery obligations hereunder. For example, if the Holder purchases Common Stock having a total purchase price of $11,000
to cover a Buy-In with respect to an attempted exercise of shares of Common Stock with an aggregate sale price giving rise to such
purchase obligation of $10,000, under clause (A) of the immediately preceding sentence the Company shall be required to pay the Holder
$1,000. The Holder shall provide the Company written notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Buy-In and,
upon request of the Company, evidence of the amount of such loss. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder's right to pursue any other
remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive
relief with respect to the Company's failure to timely deliver shares of Common Stock upon exercise of the Warrant as required pursuant to
the terms hereof.

 
v. No Fractional Shares or Scrip. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of

this Warrant. As to any fraction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such exercise, the Company
shall, at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the
Exercise Price or round up to the next whole share.
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vi. Charges, Taxes and Expenses. Issuance of Warrant Shares shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer
tax or other incidental expense in respect of the issuance of Warrant Shares, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company,
and such Warrant Shares shall be issued in the name of the Holder or in such name or names as may be directed by the Holder; provided,
however, that, in the event that Warrant Shares are to be issued in a name other than the name of the Holder, this Warrant, when
surrendered for exercise, shall be accompanied by the Assignment Form attached hereto as Exhibit B duly executed by the Holder and the
Company may require, as a condition thereto, the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any transfer tax incidental thereto. The
Company shall pay all Transfer Agent fees required for same-day processing of any Notice of Exercise.

 
vii. Closing of Books. The Company will not close its stockholder books or records in any manner which prevents the timely

exercise of this Warrant, pursuant to the terms hereof. 
 

e) Holder's Exercise Limitations. The Company shall not effect any exercise of this Warrant, and a Holder shall not have the right to
exercise any portion of this Warrant, pursuant to Section 2 or otherwise, to the extent that, after giving effect to such issuance after exercise as set
forth on the applicable Notice of Exercise, the Holder (together with the Holder's Affiliates, and any other Persons acting as a group together with
the Holder or any of the Holder's Affiliates), would beneficially own in excess of the Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined below). For
purposes of the foregoing sentence, the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its Affiliates shall include the
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant with respect to which such determination is being made, but shall
exclude the number of shares of Common Stock that would be issuable upon (i) exercise of the remaining, unexercised portion of this Warrant
beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates and (ii) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other
securities of the Company (including, without limitation, any other Common Stock Equivalents) subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise
analogous to the limitation contained herein beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence,
for purposes of this Section 2(e), beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, it being acknowledged by the Holder that the Company is not representing to the Holder that such calculation
is in compliance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the Holder is solely responsible for any schedules required to be filed in accordance
therewith. To the extent that the limitation contained in this Section 2(e) applies, the determination of whether this Warrant is exercisable (in
relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which portion of this Warrant is exercisable shall be in the sole
discretion of the Holder, and the submission of a Notice of Exercise shall be deemed to be the Holder's determination of whether this Warrant is
exercisable (in relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which portion of this Warrant is exercisable, in
each case subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, and the Company shall have no obligation to verify or confirm the accuracy of such
determination. In addition, a determination as to any group status as contemplated above shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of
the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. For purposes of this Section 2(e), in determining the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock, a Holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as reflected in (A) the Company's
most recent periodic or annual report filed with the Commission, as the case may be, (B) a more recent public announcement by the Company or
(C) a more recent written notice by the Company or the Transfer Agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. Upon the
written or oral request of a Holder, the Company shall within two (2) Trading Days confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of
shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect



to the conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this Warrant, by the Holder or its Affiliates since the date as of which such
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock was reported. The "Beneficial Ownership Limitation" shall be 4.99% of the number of shares of
the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant.
The Holder, upon not less than 61 days' prior written notice to the Company, may increase or decrease the Beneficial Ownership Limitation
provisions of this Section 2(e), provided that the Beneficial Ownership Limitation in no event exceeds 9.99% of the number of shares of the
Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock upon exercise of this Warrant held by the
Holder and the provisions of this Section 2(e) shall continue to apply. Any such increase or decrease will not be effective until the 61st day after
such notice is delivered to the Company. The provisions of this paragraph shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict
conformity with the terms of this Section 2(e) to correct this paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the
intended Beneficial Ownership Limitation herein contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to
such limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to a successor holder of this Warrant. 
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Section 3. Certain Adjustments.
 

a) Stock Dividends and Splits. If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend or otherwise makes
a distribution or distributions on shares of its Common Stock or any other equity or equity equivalent securities payable in shares of Common
Stock (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon exercise of this Warrant), (ii)
subdivides outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, (iii) combines (including by way of reverse stock split)
outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares or (iv) issues by reclassification of shares of the Common Stock any shares
of capital stock of the Company, then in each case the Exercise Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the number
of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be
the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event, and the number of shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant
shall be proportionately adjusted such that the aggregate Exercise Price of this Warrant shall remain unchanged. Any adjustment made pursuant to
this Section 3(a) shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or



distribution and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination or reclassification. 
 
b) Subsequent Equity Sales. If the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, as applicable, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, shall

sell or grant any option to purchase, or sell or grant any right to reprice, or otherwise dispose of or issue (or announce any offer, sale, grant or any
option to purchase or other disposition) any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents, at an effective price per share less than the Exercise
Price then in effect (such lower price, the "Base Share Price" and such issuances collectively, a "Dilutive Issuance") (it being understood and
agreed that if the holder of the Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents so issued shall at any time, whether by operation of purchase price
adjustments, reset provisions, floating conversion, exercise or exchange prices or otherwise, or due to warrants, options or rights per share which
are issued in connection with such issuance, be entitled to receive shares of Common Stock at an effective price per share that is less than the
Exercise Price, such issuance shall be deemed to have occurred for less than the Exercise Price on such date of the Dilutive Issuance at such
effective price), then, simultaneously with the consummation of each Dilutive Issuance, the Exercise Price shall be reduced and only reduced to
equal the Base Share Price. Such adjustment shall be made whenever such Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents are issued; provided that,
if such Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents are issued in tranches, such adjustment shall be made at the first closing of such issuance.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustments shall be made, paid or issued under this Section 3(b) in respect of an Exempt Issuance (as defined
below). The Company shall notify the Holder, in writing, no later than the Trading Day following the issuance or deemed issuance of any Common
Stock or Common Stock Equivalents subject to this Section 3(b), indicating therein the applicable issuance price, or applicable reset price,
exchange price, conversion price and other pricing terms (such notice, the "Dilutive Issuance Notice"). For purposes of clarification, whether or not
the Company provides a Dilutive Issuance Notice pursuant to this Section 3(b), upon the occurrence of any Dilutive Issuance, the Holder is entitled
to receive a number of Warrant Shares based upon the Base Share Price regardless of whether the Holder accurately refers to the Base Share Price
in the Notice of Exercise. "Exempt Issuance" means the issuance of (a) shares of Common Stock or options to employees, consultants, officers or
directors of the Company pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such purpose, by a majority of the non-employee members of the
Board of Directors or a majority of the members of a committee of non-employee directors established for such purpose, (b) securities upon the
exercise or exchange of or conversion of any Securities issued hereunder and/or other securities directly or indirectly exercisable or exchangeable
for or convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the date of this Agreement, provided that such securities have not been
amended since the date of this Agreement to increase the number of such securities or to decrease the exercise price, exchange price or conversion
price of such securities, (c) securities issued pursuant to mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, similar business combinations or strategic
transactions approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of the Company, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a Person (or to
the equity holders of a Person) which is, itself or through its subsidiaries, an operating company or an owner of an asset in a business synergistic
with the business of the Company and shall provide to the Company additional benefits in addition to the investment of funds, but shall not include
a transaction in which the Company is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an entity whose primary business is
investing in securities and (d) shares issued pursuant to any equipment loan or leasing arrangement, real property leasing arrangement or debt
financing from a bank or similar financial institution approved by the members of the Board of Directors. 
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c) Subsequent Rights Offerings. In addition to any adjustments pursuant to Section 3(a) above, if at any time the Company grants, issues or
sells any Common Stock Equivalents or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro rata to the record holders of any class of
shares of Common Stock (the "Purchase Rights"), then the Holder will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights,
the aggregate Purchase Rights that the Holder could have acquired if the Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon
complete exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on exercise hereof, including without limitation, the Beneficial Ownership
Limitation) immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is
taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights
(provided, however, to the extent that the Holder's right to participate in any such Purchase Right would result in the Holder exceeding the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be entitled to participate in such Purchase Right to such extent (or beneficial ownership
of such shares of Common Stock as a result of such Purchase Right to such extent) and such Purchase Right to such extent shall be held in
abeyance for the Holder until such time, if ever, as its right thereto would not result in the Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation).

 
d) Pro Rata Distributions. During such time as this Warrant is outstanding, if the Company shall declare or make any dividend or other

distribution of its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of shares of Common Stock, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including,
without limitation, any distribution of cash, stock or other securities, property or options by way of a dividend, spin off, reclassification, corporate
rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other similar transaction) (a "Distribution"), at any time after the issuance of this Warrant, then, in each
such case, the Holder shall be entitled to participate in such Distribution to the same extent that the Holder would have participated therein if the
Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on
exercise hereof, including without limitation, the Beneficial Ownership Limitation) immediately before the date of which a record is taken for such
Distribution, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the
participation in such Distribution (provided, however, to the extent that the Holder's right to participate in any such Distribution would result in the
Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be entitled to participate in such Distribution to such extent (or in
the beneficial ownership of any shares of Common Stock as a result of such Distribution to such extent) and the portion of such Distribution shall
be held in abeyance for the benefit of the Holder until such time, if ever, as its right thereto would not result in the Holder exceeding the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation).  
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e) Fundamental Transaction. 
 

1 ) Generally. The Company shall not enter into or be party to a Fundamental Transaction unless (i) the Successor Entity
assumes in writing all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3(e) pursuant to written
agreements in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and approved by the Holder prior to such Fundamental Transaction, including
agreements to deliver to the Holder in exchange for this Warrant a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar
in form and substance to this Warrant, including, without limitation, which is exercisable for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock equivalent
to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant)
prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with an exercise price that applies the exercise price hereunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into
account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction and the value of such shares of capital stock, such
adjustments to the number of shares of capital stock and such exercise price being for the purpose of protecting the economic value of this Warrant
immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction) and (ii) if the Fundamental Transaction occurs within six (6) months of Initial
Issuance Date, the Successor Entity (including its Parent Entity) is a publicly traded corporation whose common stock is quoted on or listed for trading on
an Eligible Market. Upon the consummation of each Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity shall succeed to, and be substituted for (so that from
and after the date of the applicable Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Warrant referring to the "Company" shall refer instead to the
Successor Entity), and may exercise every right and power of the Company and shall assume all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant
with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had been named as the Company herein. Upon consummation of each Fundamental Transaction, the
Successor Entity shall deliver to the Holder confirmation that there shall be issued upon exercise of this Warrant at any time after the consummation of the
applicable Fundamental Transaction, in lieu of the shares of Common Stock (or other securities, cash, assets or other property) issuable upon the exercise
of this Warrant prior to the applicable Fundamental Transaction, such shares of publicly traded common stock (or its equivalent) of the Successor Entity
(including its Parent Entity) that the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the happening of the applicable Fundamental Transaction had this
Warrant been exercised immediately prior to the applicable Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant),
as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of this Warrant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and without limiting Section 2(d) hereof, the Holder may
elect, at its sole option, by delivery of written notice to the Company to waive this Section 3(e) to permit the Fundamental Transaction without the
assumption of this Warrant. In addition to and not in substitution for any other rights hereunder, prior to the consummation of each Fundamental
Transaction pursuant to which holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to receive securities or other assets with respect to or in exchange for
shares of Common Stock (a "Corporate Event"), the Company shall make appropriate provision to ensure that the Holder will thereafter have the right to
receive upon an exercise of this Warrant at any time after the consummation of the applicable Fundamental Transaction but prior to the Expiration Date,
in lieu of the shares of the Common Stock (or other securities, cash, assets or other property) issuable upon the exercise of the Warrant prior to such
Fundamental Transaction, such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property whatsoever (including warrants or other purchase or
subscription rights) that the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the happening of the applicable Fundamental Transaction had this Warrant
been exercised immediately prior to the applicable Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant). Provision
made pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be in a form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder.  
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2) Black Scholes Value. Notwithstanding the foregoing and the provisions of Section 3(e)(1) above, at the request of the Holder
delivered at any time commencing on the earliest to occur of (x) the public disclosure of any Fundamental Transaction, (y) the consummation of any
Fundamental Transaction and (z) the Holder first becoming aware of any Fundamental Transaction through the date that is ninety (90) days after the
public disclosure of the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction by the Company pursuant to a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC,
the Company or the Successor Entity (as the case may be) shall purchase this Warrant from the Holder on the date of such request by paying to the Holder
cash in an amount equal to the Black Scholes Value. 

 
3) If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, (i) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions

effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (ii) the Company, directly or indirectly, effects any sale, lease, license,
assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (iii) any, direct or
indirect, purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Company or another Person) is completed, pursuant to which holders of Common
Stock are permitted to sell, tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the holders of 50% or more of
the outstanding Common Stock, (iv) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any reclassification, reorganization or
recapitalization of the Common Stock or any compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is effectively converted into or exchanged
for other securities, cash or property, or (v) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions consummates a stock or share purchase
agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with
another Person or group of Persons, whereby such other Person or group acquires more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not
including any shares of Common Stock held by the other Person or other Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the other Persons
making or party to, such stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination) (each, a "Fundamental Transaction"), then, upon any
subsequent exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Warrant Share that would have been issuable upon such exercise
immediately prior to the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction, at the option of the Holder (without regard to any limitation in Section 2(e) on the
exercise of this Warrant), the number of shares of Common Stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving
corporation, and any additional consideration (the "Alternate Consideration") receivable as a result of such Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the
number of shares of Common Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any
limitation in Section 2(e) on the exercise of this Warrant). For purposes of any such exercise, the determination of the Exercise Price shall be appropriately
adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one share of Common Stock in
such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Exercise Price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting
the relative value of any different components of the Alternate Consideration. If holders of Common Stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash
or property to be received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon
any exercise of this Warrant following such Fundamental Transaction. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in the event of a Fundamental
Transaction, the Company or any Successor Entity (as defined below) shall, at the Holder's option, exercisable at any time concurrently with, or within 30
days after, the consummation of the Fundamental Transaction, purchase this Warrant from the Holder by paying to the Holder an amount of cash equal to
the Black Scholes Value of the remaining unexercised portion of this Warrant on the date of the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction. " Black
Scholes Value" means the value of the unexercised portion of this Warrant remaining on the date of the Holder's request pursuant to Section 3(e)(2), which
value is calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model for a "call" or "put" option, as elected by the Holder, as obtained from the "OV"
function on Bloomberg, utilizing (i) an underlying price per share equal to the greater of (1) the highest Closing Sale Price of the Common Stock during
the period beginning on the Trading Day immediately preceding the announcement of the applicable Fundamental Transaction (or the consummation of
the applicable Fundamental Transaction, if earlier) and ending on the Trading Day of the Holder's request pursuant to Section 3(e)(2) and (2) the sum of
the price per share being offered in cash in the applicable Fundamental Transaction (if any) plus the value of the non-cash consideration being offered in
the applicable Fundamental Transaction (if any), (ii) a strike price equal to the Exercise Price in effect on the date of the Holder's request pursuant to
Section 3(e)(2), (iii) a risk-free interest rate corresponding to the U.S. Treasury rate for a period equal to the greater of (1) the remaining term of this



Warrant as of the date of the Holder's request pursuant to Section 3(e)(2) and (2) the remaining term of this Warrant as of the date of consummation of the
applicable Fundamental Transaction or as of the date of the Holder's request pursuant to Section 3(e)(2) if such request is prior to the date of the
consummation of the applicable Fundamental Transaction, (iv) a zero cost of borrow and (v) an expected volatility equal to the greater of 100% and the
thirty (30)-day volatility obtained from the "HVT" function on Bloomberg (determined utilizing a 365-day annualization factor) as of the Trading Day
immediately following the earliest to occur of (A) the public disclosure of the applicable Fundamental Transaction, (B) the consummation of the
applicable Fundamental Transaction and (C) the date on which the Holder first became aware of the applicable Fundamental Transaction. The Company
shall cause any successor entity in a Fundamental Transaction in which the Company is not the survivor (the "Successor Entity") to assume in writing all
of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3(e) pursuant
to written agreements in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and approved by the Holder (without unreasonable delay) prior to such
Fundamental Transaction and shall, at the option of the Holder, deliver to the Holder in exchange for this Warrant a security of the Successor Entity
evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Warrant that is exercisable for a corresponding number of shares of
capital stock of such Successor Entity (or its parent entity) equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this
Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with an exercise price that applies
the exercise price hereunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such
Fundamental Transaction and the value of such shares of capital stock, such number of shares of capital stock and such exercise price being for the
purpose of protecting the economic value of this Warrant immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction), and that is
reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Holder. Upon the occurrence of any such Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity shall
succeed to, and be substituted for (so that, from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Warrant and the other
Transaction Documents referring to the "Company" shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every right and power of the Company
and shall assume all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents with the same effect as if such Successor
Entity had been named as the Company herein. 
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f) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 3 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be.
For purposes of this Section 3, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of
the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) issued and outstanding.

 
g) Notice to Holder.

 
3 ) Adjustment to Exercise Price. Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 3, the

Company shall promptly mail to the Holder a notice setting forth the Exercise Price after such adjustment and any resulting adjustment to
the number of Warrant Shares and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.  

 
4) Notice to Allow Exercise by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form)

on the Common Stock, (B) the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock, (C)
the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of
capital stock of any class or of any rights, (D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any
reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company, or any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other
securities, cash or property, or (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the
affairs of the Company, then, in each case, the Company shall cause to be mailed to the Holder at its last address as it shall appear upon the
Warrant Register of the Company, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a
notice, stating (x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants,
or, if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend,
distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger,



sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of the
Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable
upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange; provided that the failure to mail such notice or any
defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice. To the
extent that any notice provided hereunder constitutes, or contains, material, non-public information regarding the Company or any of the
Subsidiaries, the Company shall simultaneously file such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on Form 8-K. The
Holder shall remain entitled to exercise this Warrant during the period commencing on the date of such notice to the effective date of the
event triggering such notice except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein. 
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Section 4. Transfer of Warrant.
 

a ) Transferability. Subject to compliance with any applicable securities laws and the conditions set forth in Section 4(d) hereof, this
Warrant and all rights hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this
Warrant at the principal office of the Company or its designated agent, together with a written assignment of this Warrant substantially in the form
attached hereto duly executed by the Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon the making of such
transfer. Upon such surrender and, if required, such payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in the name of the
assignee or assignees, as applicable, and in the denomination or denominations specified in such instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the
assignor a new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned, and this Warrant shall promptly be cancelled. Notwithstanding



anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Warrant to the Company unless the Holder has
assigned this Warrant in full, in which case, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company within three (3) Trading Days of the date the
Holder delivers an assignment form to the Company assigning this Warrant full. The Warrant, if properly assigned in accordance herewith, may be
exercised by a new holder for the purchase of Warrant Shares without having a new Warrant issued.

 
b) New Warrants. This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at the aforesaid office of the

Company, together with a written notice specifying the names and denominations in which new Warrants are to be issued, signed by the Holder or
its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with Section 4(a), as to any transfer that may be involved in such division or combination, the Company
shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for the Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such
notice. All Warrants issued on transfers or exchanges shall be dated the Initial Exercise Date and shall be identical with this Warrant except as to
the number of Warrant Shares issuable pursuant thereto.

 
c ) Warrant Register. The Company shall register this Warrant, upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose (the

"Warrant Register"), in the name of the record Holder hereof from time to time. The Company may deem and treat the registered Holder of this
Warrant as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of any exercise hereof or any distribution to the Holder, and for all other purposes, absent
actual notice to the contrary.

 
d) Transfer Restrictions. If, at the time of the surrender of this Warrant in connection with any transfer of this Warrant, the transfer of this

Warrant shall not be either (i) registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act and under applicable state
securities or blue sky laws or (ii) eligible for resale without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions or current public information requirements
pursuant to Rule 144, the Company may require, as a condition of allowing such transfer, that the Holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case
may be, comply with the provisions of Section 5(k). 

 
e) Representation by the Holder. The Holder, by the acceptance hereof, represents and warrants that it is acquiring this Warrant and, upon

any exercise hereof, will acquire the Warrant Shares issuable upon such exercise, for its own account and not with a view to or for distributing or
reselling such Warrant Shares or any part thereof in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law, except pursuant to sales
registered or exempted under the Securities Act.  
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Section 5. Miscellaneous.
 

a) No Rights as Stockholder Until Exercise. This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights, dividends or other rights as a
stockholder of the Company prior to the exercise hereof as set forth in Section 2(d)(i), except as expressly set forth in Section 3.

 
b) Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably

satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant or any stock certificate relating to the Warrant Shares, and in case of
loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case of the Warrant, shall not include the posting of
any bond), and upon surrender and cancellation of such Warrant or stock certificate, if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new
Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of such Warrant or stock certificate.

 
c) Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or

granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then, such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
 
d) Authorized Shares.  
 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Company shall not be required to reserve any shares of Common Stock from
its duly authorized shares of Common Stock for issuance in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that
from and after August 1, 2016, the Company covenants that, during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will reserve from its
authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the product of (i) 250% multiplied by
(ii) the maximum number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant, assuming the exercise price of this Warrant
is $0.50, taking into account any anti-dilution adjustments but excluding any Beneficial Ownership Limitations and/or other limitations or
the exercise of this Warrant solely for the purpose of calculations under this Section 5(d) only. The Company further covenants that its
issuance of this Warrant shall constitute full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of issuing the necessary Warrant Shares
upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary to
assure that such Warrant Shares may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any
requirements of the Trading Market upon which the Common Stock may be listed. The Company covenants that all Warrant Shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant will, upon exercise of the purchase rights represented



by this Warrant and payment for such Warrant Shares in accordance herewith, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges created by the Company in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in respect
of any transfer occurring contemporaneously with such issue). 
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Except and to the extent as waived or consented to by the Holder, the Company shall not by any action, including, without
limitation, amending its articles of incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue
or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this
Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such actions as may be



necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder as set forth in this Warrant against impairment. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, the Company will (i) not increase the par value of any Warrant Shares above the amount payable therefor upon such
exercise immediately prior to such increase in par value, (ii) take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the
Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Warrant Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant and (iii) use
commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents from any public regulatory body having
jurisdiction thereof, as may be, necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations under this Warrant.
 

Before taking any action that would result in an adjustment in the number of Warrant Shares for which this Warrant is exercisable
or in the Exercise Price, the Company shall obtain all such authorizations or exemptions thereof, or consents thereto, as may be necessary
from any public regulatory body or bodies having jurisdiction thereof.

 
e) Jurisdiction. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Warrant shall be governed by

and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law
thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by
this Warrant (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, partners, members, employees or
agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to
the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan for the adjudication of any dispute
hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees
not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit, action or
proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to
serve process in any manner permitted by law. If either party shall commence an action, suit or proceeding to enforce any provisions of the
Warrant, then, the prevailing party in such action, suit or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its reasonable attorneys' fees and
other costs and expenses incurred with the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action.

 
f) Restrictions. The Holder acknowledges that the Warrant Shares acquired upon the exercise of this Warrant, if not registered, will have

restrictions upon resale imposed by state and federal securities laws. 
 
g) Nonwaiver and Expenses. No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of Holder shall operate

as a waiver of such right or otherwise prejudice the Holder's rights, powers or remedies, notwithstanding the fact that all rights hereunder terminate
on the Termination Date. If the Company willfully and knowingly fails to comply with any provision of this Warrant, which results in any material
damages to the Holder, the Company shall pay to the Holder such amounts as shall be sufficient to cover any costs and expenses including, but not
limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, including those of appellate proceedings, incurred by the Holder in collecting any amounts due pursuant
hereto or in otherwise enforcing any of its rights, powers or remedies hereunder. 
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h) Notices. Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder by the Company shall be
delivered via U.S. First Class Mail to the address specified below, or to such other address as either such party shall hereafter specify in writing to
the other:

 
 For Holder:  To the address on Holder's signature page to the Purchase Agreement.  
   
 For Company:  

Name: Terra Tech Corp.
Address: 4700 Von Karman

Suite 110
Newport Beach, California 92660

Telephone Number: 855-447-6967
Email: derek@terratechcorp.com

 
i) Limitation of Liability. No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by the Holder to exercise this Warrant to purchase

Warrant Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of the Holder, shall give rise to any liability of the Holder for the purchase
price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of the
Company. 

 
j) Remedies. The Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages, will be entitled

to specific performance of its rights under this Warrant. The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any
loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive and not to assert the defense in any action for
specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate. 
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k) Successors and Assigns. Subject to applicable securities laws, this Warrant and the rights and obligations evidenced hereby shall inure
to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the Company and the successors and permitted assigns of Holder. The
provisions of this Warrant are intended to be for the benefit of any Holder from time to time of this Warrant and shall be enforceable by the Holder
or holder of Warrant Shares.

 
l) Amendment. This Warrant may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the Company and

the Holder.
 
m) Severability. Wherever possible, each provision of this Warrant shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under

applicable law, but if any provision of this Warrant shall be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the
extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this Warrant.

 
n) Headings. The headings used in this Warrant are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed a part

of this Warrant.
 
o) Automatic Exercise on the Termination Date. In the event that, upon the Termination Date, the VWAP on the Trading Day immediately

preceding the Termination Date as determined in accordance with this Warrant above is greater than the Exercise Price in effect on such date and,
on the Termination Date and on such Trading Day, there is then no effective registration statement registering, or no current prospectus available
for, the resale of the Warrant Shares by the Holder, then this Warrant shall automatically be deemed on and as of such date to be exercised
pursuant to a Cashless Exercise pursuant to Section 2(c) of this Warrant as to all shares (or such other securities) for which this Warrant shall not
previously have been exercised or converted, and the Company shall promptly deliver a certificate representing the shares (or such other securities)
issued upon such exercise to the Holder.

 
******************** 
(Signature Page Follows)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be executed by its officer thereunto duly authorized as of the date first above
indicated.
 
 TERRA TECH CORP.  
    

By:  
 Name:  
 Title:  
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EXHIBIT A
 

NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 
To: TERRA TECH CORP.
 

(1) The undersigned hereby elects to purchase ________ Warrant Shares of the Company pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant (only if
exercised in full), and tenders herewith payment of the exercise price in full, together with all applicable transfer taxes, if any.

 
(2) Please issue said Warrant Shares in the name of the undersigned or in such other name as is specified below:

 
_______________________________

 
The Warrant Shares shall be delivered to the following DWAC Account Number:
 

_______________________________
 
_______________________________
 
_______________________________

 
(3) Accredited Investor. The undersigned is an "accredited investor" as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as

amended.
 
[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER]
 
Name of Investing Entity: _________________________________________________________________________
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing Entity: ___________________________________________________
 
Name of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________________________________
 
Title of Authorized Signatory: ______________________________________________________________________
 
Date: _________________________________________________________________________________________
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EXHIBIT B
 

ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

(To assign the foregoing Warrant, execute this form and supply required information. Do not use this form to purchase shares.)
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to

 
Name:

(Please Print)

Address:
(Please Print)

Dated: _______________ __, ______

Holder's Signature:
__________________________________

Holder's Address:
___________________________________
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EXHIBIT 10.33
 

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 

THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of May 27, 2016, by and among TERRA TECH CORP., a
Nevada corporation (and together with all of its current and future, direct and/or indirect, wholly owned and/or partially owned Subsidiaries, collectively,
the "Company"), and each purchaser identified on the signature pages hereto (each, including its successors and assigns, a "Purchaser" and, collectively,
the "Purchasers").

 
RECITALS

 
A. The Company and each Purchaser is executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption from securities registration

afforded by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Rule 506(b) of Regulation D ("Regulation D") as
promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act.

 
B. Each Purchaser, severally and not jointly, wishes to purchase, and the Company wishes to sell at multiple closings, upon the terms and

conditions stated in this Agreement, the Notes (in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A) and the Warrants (in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit B), all
in the amounts and for the price set forth on Schedule 1 hereto.

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable

consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and each Purchaser hereby agrees as follows:
 

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

 
1.1 Defined Terms. In addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement or in any Supplement, Amendment or Exhibit hereto, when used

herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 

(a) "Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
(b) "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
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(c) "Alternative Conversion Price" means seventy percent (70%) of the average of the three (3) lowest VWAPs in the fifteen (15)
consecutive Trading Days prior to the Conversion Date and/or any other determination date.  

(d) "Affiliate" means any Person which, directly or indirectly, owns or controls, on an aggregate basis, a ten percent (10%) or greater
interest in any other Person, or which is controlled by or is under common control with any other Person.

 
(e) "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or any other day on which the Federal Reserve Bank of New York is

not open for business.
 
(f) "Closing" means a time of issuance and sale by the Company of the Notes and Warrants to the Purchasers.
 
(g) "Closing Date" means a date the Notes and Warrants are purchased by the Purchasers from the Company.
 
(h) "Closing Statement" means the Closing Statement in the form on Annex A attached hereto.
 
(i) "Collateral Date" has the meaning set forth in the Security Agreement.
 
(j) "Contingent Obligation" means, as to any Person, any direct or indirect liability, contingent or otherwise, of that Person with respect to

any indebtedness, lease, dividend or other obligation of another Person if the primary purpose or intent of the Person incurring such liability, or the
primary effect thereof, is to provide assurance to the obligee of such liability that such liability will be paid or discharged, or that any agreements
relating thereto will be complied with, or that the holders of such liability will be protected (in whole or in part) against loss with respect thereto.

 
(k) "Common Stock" means (i) the Company's common stock, $0.001 par value per share, and (ii) any capital stock into which such

common stock shall have been changed or any share capital resulting from a reclassification of such common stock.  
 
(l) "Common Stock Equivalents" means any capital stock or other security of the Company that is at any time and under any

circumstances directly or indirectly convertible into, exercisable or exchangeable for, and/or which otherwise entitles the holder thereof to acquire,
any capital stock or other security of the Company (including, without limitation, Common Stock). 
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(m) "Conversion Date" has the meaning set forth in the Notes. 
 
(n) "Conversion Shares" means all shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of any portion of the Notes and/or as any other

payment due under the Notes including, but not limited to interest and/or otherwise, but solely to the extent and subject to the Conditions set forth
in the Notes, including, but not limited to, shares of Common Stock, Common Stock Equivalents and shares of Common Stock and/or other
securities of the Company issuable upon exercise, exchange and/or conversion of such Common Stock Equivalents.   (o) "Documents" means,
collectively, this Agreement, the Notes, the Warrants, the Transfer Agent Irrevocable Instruction Letter (in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit C),
the Security Agreement (in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit D), the Subsidiary Guarantee (in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit F), a UCC-1
Financing Statement of the Purchasers on all of the assets of the Company (the "Purchasers' UCC-1") to be filed with the Secretary of State of the
State of Nevada on or about the First Closing Date, and all financing statements (or comparable documents now or hereafter filed in accordance
with the UCC or other comparable or similar laws, rules or regulations) in favor of the Purchasers as secured parties perfecting all Liens the
Purchasers have on the Collateral (which security interests and Liens of the Purchasers shall be senior to all Indebtedness of the Company), the
Patent and Trademark Security Agreement (annexed hereto as Exhibit E), all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of each Subsidiary of the
Company (the "Pledged Securities"), which Pledged Securities are being pledged by the Company to the Purchasers to secure the Company's
obligations to the Purchasers under the Notes and all documents necessary to transfer the Pledged Securities to the Purchasers as provided in the
Security Agreement (collectively with the Pledged Securities, the "Pledge Documents") and such other documents, instruments, certificates,
supplements, amendments, exhibits and schedules required and/or attached pursuant to this Agreement and/or any of the above documents, and/or
any other document and/or instrument related to the above agreements, documents and/or instruments, and the transactions hereunder and/or
thereunder and/or any other agreement, documents or instruments required or contemplated hereunder or thereunder, whether now existing or at
any time hereafter arising.  (p) "Dollar(s)" and "$" means lawful money of the United States. 

 
(q) "Environmental Laws" means any and all laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, guidelines, codes, decrees, or other

legally enforceable requirements (including, without limitation, common law) of any international authority, foreign government, the United
States, or any state, local, municipal or other governmental authority, regulating, relating to or imposing liability or standards of conduct
concerning protection of the environment or of human health, or employee health and safety, as has been, is now, or may at any time hereafter be,
in effect.

 
(r) "Equity Interests" means shares of capital stock, partnership interests, membership interests in a limited liability company, beneficial

interests in a trust or other equity ownership interests in a Person, and any warrants, options or other rights entitling the holder thereof to purchase
or acquire any such Equity Interest.

 
(s) "Event of Default" shall have the meaning set forth in the Notes.
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(t) "Exempt Issuance" means the issuance of (a) shares of Common Stock or options to employees, consultants, officers or directors of the
Company pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such purpose, by a majority of the non-employee members of the Board of
Directors or a majority of the members of a committee of non-employee directors established for such purpose, (b) securities upon the exercise or
exchange of or conversion of any Securities issued hereunder and/or other securities directly or indirectly exercisable or exchangeable for or
convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the date of this Agreement, provided that such securities have not been
amended since the date of this Agreement to increase the number of such securities or to decrease the exercise price, exchange price or conversion
price of such securities, and (c) securities issued pursuant to mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, similar business combinations or strategic
transactions approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of the Company, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a Person (or to
the equity holders of a Person) that is, itself or through its subsidiaries, an operating company or an owner of an asset in a business synergistic with
the business of the Company and shall provide to the Company additional benefits in addition to the investment of funds, but shall not include a
transaction in which the Company is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an entity whose primary business is
investing in securities and (d) shares issued pursuant to any equipment loan or leasing arrangement, real property leasing arrangement or debt
financing from a bank or similar financial institution approved by the members of the Board of Directors.  

 
(u) "First Closing" means the time of issuance and sale by the Company of the first tranche of Notes and Warrants to the Purchasers.
 
(v) "First Closing Date" means the date the first tranche of Notes and Warrants are purchased by the Purchasers from the Company.
 
(w) "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America as in effect from time to time.  
 
(x) "Indebtedness" means, with respect to any Person at any date, without duplication, (a) all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed

money, (b) all obligations of such Person for the deferred purchase price of property or services, (c) all obligations of such Person evidenced by
notes, bonds, debentures or other similar instruments, (d) all indebtedness created or arising under any conditional sale or other title retention
agreement with respect to property acquired by such Person (even though the rights and remedies of the seller or the Purchasers under such
agreement in the event of default are limited to repossession or sale of such property), (e) all capital lease obligations of such Person, (f) all
obligations of such Person, contingent or otherwise, as an account party or applicant under acceptance, letter of credit, surety bond or similar
facilities, (g) all obligations of such Person, contingent or otherwise, to purchase, redeem, retire or otherwise acquire for value any capital stock of
such Person, (h) all obligations for any earn-out consideration, (i) the liquidation value of preferred capital stock of such Person, (j) all guarantee
obligations of such Person in respect of obligations of the kind referred to in clauses (a) through (i) above, (k) all obligations of the kind referred to
in clauses (a) through (i) above secured by (or for which the holder of such obligation has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured
by) any lien on property (including, without limitation, accounts and contract rights) owned by such Person, whether or not such Person has
assumed or become liable for the payment of such obligation and all obligations of such Person in respect of hedge agreements; and (l) all
Contingent Obligations in respect to indebtedness or obligations of any Person of the kind referred to in clauses (a)-(k) above. The Indebtedness of
any Person shall include, without duplication, the Indebtedness of any other entity (including any partnership in which such Person is a general
partner) to the extent such Person is liable therefor as a result of such Person's ownership interest in or other relationship with such entity, except to
the extent the terms of such Indebtedness expressly provide that such Person is not liable therefor. 
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(y) "Liens" or "liens" means a lien, mortgage, charge pledge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or
other restriction, or other clouds on title.

 
(z) "Purchaser UCC Filings" shall have the meaning set forth in the definition of "Documents" set forth in this Section 1.  
 
(aa) "Liabilities" means all direct or indirect liabilities, Indebtedness and obligations of any kind of Company to the Purchasers, howsoever

created, arising or evidenced, whether now existing or hereafter arising (including those acquired by assignment), absolute or contingent, due or to
become due, primary or secondary, joint or several, whether existing or arising through discount, overdraft, purchase, direct loan, participation,
operation of law, or otherwise, including, but not limited to, pursuant to the Notes, this Agreement and/or any of the other Documents, all accrued
but unpaid interest on the Notes the principal, any letter of credit, any standby letter of credit, and/or outside attorneys' and paralegals' fees or
charges relating to the preparation of the Documents and the enforcement of each Purchaser's rights, remedies and powers under this Agreement,
the Notes and/or the other Documents.

 
(bb) "Material Adverse Effect" means a material adverse effect on (a) the business, assets, property, operations, or condition (financial or

otherwise) of Company, (b) the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any of the other Documents or (c) the rights or remedies of the
Purchasers hereunder or thereunder.

 
(cc) "Notes" means all of the 12% Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Notes due twenty-four (24) months from the dates of issuance

by the Company that are owned by the Purchasers, which, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, shall be purchased from
the Company pursuant to this Agreement; the form of Note is annexed hereto as ExhibitA and any and all Note(s) issued in exchange, transfer or
replacement of the Notes.

 
(dd) "Patent and Trademark Security Agreement" means the Patent and Trademark Security Agreement date on or about the date hereof,

by and among the Purchasers, the Company and the Company's Subsidiaries and all documents filed to perfect the Purchasers' security interest in
the Patents and Trademarks, both terms as defined in such agreement, which is annexed hereto as Exhibit E.

 
(ee) "OFAC" means the United States Department of the Treasury's Office of Foreign Assets Control.  
 
(ff) "OFAC Regulations" means the regulations promulgated by OFAC, as amended from time to time. 
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(gg) "Permitted Governmental Indebtedness" means Indebtedness provided by the Export and Import Bank of the United States of
America or other similar governmental entity for the purpose of supporting product sales by the Company.

 
(hh) "Permitted Indebtedness" means (i) Indebtedness of the Company evidenced by the Notes, this Agreement and/or any other

Document in favor of the Purchasers including all Liabilities, (ii) Indebtedness of the Company set forth in the Company's most recent SEC Report,
provided none of such Indebtedness, has been increased, extended and/or otherwise changed since the original issuance date of Indebtedness), (iii)
Indebtedness secured by Permitted Liens described in clause "(iv)" of the definition of Permitted Liens, and (iv) Permitted Governmental
Indebtedness.  

(ii) "Permitted Liens" means (i) any Lien for taxes not yet due or delinquent or being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings
for which adequate reserves have been established in accordance with GAAP, (ii) any statutory Lien arising in the ordinary course of business by
operation of law with respect to a liability that is not yet due or delinquent, (iii) any Lien created by operation of law, such as materialmen's liens,
mechanics' liens and other similar liens, arising in the ordinary course of business with respect to a liability that is not yet due or delinquent or that
are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, (iv) Liens (A) upon or in any equipment acquired or held by the Company to secure
the purchase price of such equipment or indebtedness incurred solely for the purpose of financing the acquisition or lease of such equipment, and
(B) existing on such equipment at the time of its acquisition, provided that the Lien is confined solely to the property so acquired and
improvements thereon, and the proceeds of such equipment, or (v) any Liens for Permitted Indebtedness perfecting security interests in the
Permitted Indebtedness set forth in Section (i) or (ii) of the definition of Permitted Indebtedness.

 
(jj) "Person" means any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, trust, unincorporated organization, association,

corporation, institution, entity, party or government (whether national, federal, state, county, city, municipal or otherwise including, without
limitation, any instrumentality, division, agency, body or department thereof).

 
(kk) "Pledged Securities" has the meaning set forth in the definition of "Documents"
 
(ll) "Principal Market" means the market or exchange on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question
 
(mm) "Purchase Price" means the price to be paid by each Purchaser, in cash or with debt securities previously issued by the Company

within 60 days prior to the First Closing, to purchase such Purchaser's Note and Warrants. 
 
(nn) "Required Reserve Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(s).
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(oo) "Second Closing" means the time of issuance and sale by the Company of the second tranche of Notes and Warrants to the Purchasers.



 
(pp) "Second Closing Date" means the date the second tranche of Notes and Warrants are purchased by the Purchasers from the Company.
 
(qq) "SEC" or "Commission" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
 
(rr) "SEC Reports" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(aa) hereof.
 
(ss) "Securities" means the Notes and Warrants purchased pursuant to this Agreement and all Underlying Shares and any securities of the

Company issued in replacement, substitution and/or in connection with any exchange, conversion and/or any other transaction pursuant to which all
or any of such securities of the Company to the Purchasers.

 
(tt) "Security Agreement" means the Security Agreement dated on or about the date hereof by and among the Company, the Subsidiaries of

the Company, and the Purchaser as hereinafter amended and/or supplemented altogether with all exhibits, schedules and annexes to such Security
Agreement, pursuant to which all Liabilities and Indebtedness of the Company to the Purchasers under the Documents including, but not limited to,
the Notes are secured by the Collateral, which security interest in the Collateral shall be perfected by the Purchasers' UCC-1, filed with the
Secretary of State of the State of Nevada, to the extent perfectable by the filing of a UCC 1 Financing Statement and such other documents and
instruments related thereto, which Security Agreement is annexed hereto as Exhibit D.

 
(uu) "Short Sales" means all "short sales" as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO under the Exchange Act (but shall not be deemed to

include the location and/or reservation of borrowable shares of Common Stock).
 
(vv) "Subsidiary" means, with respect to any Person, a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity of which shares

of stock or other ownership interests having ordinary voting power (other than stock or such other ownership interests having such power only by
reason of the happening of a contingency) to elect a majority of the board of directors or other managers of such corporation, partnership or other
entity are at the time owned, or the management of which is otherwise controlled, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, or
both, by such Person all of the Company's Subsidiaries are set forth on Schedule 3.1(a) hereto. 

 
(ww) "Subsidiary Guarantee" means the Subsidiary Guarantee, dated the date hereof, by each Subsidiary in favor of the Purchasers, in the

form of Exhibit F annexed hereto. 
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(xx) "Third Closing" means the time of issuance and sale by the Company of the third tranche of Notes and Warrants to the Purchasers.
 
(yy) "Third Closing Date" means the date the third tranche of Notes and Warrants are purchased by the Purchasers from the Company.
 
(zz) "Trading Day" means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Trading Market, provided that "Trading Day" shall not

include any day on which the Common Stock is scheduled to trade on the Trading Market for less than 4.5 hours or any day that the Common
Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on the Trading Market (or if the Trading Market does not designate in advance the
closing time of trading on the Trading Market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York City time) unless such day is otherwise
designated as a Trading Day in writing by the Purchasers.

 
(aaa) "Trading Market" means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock (or any other common stock of any

other Person that references the Trading Market for its common stock) is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the OTC Bulletin
Board, The NASDAQ Global Market, The NASDAQ Global Select Market, The NASDAQ Capital Market, the New York Stock Exchange, NYSE
Arca, the NYSE MKT, or the OTCQX Marketplace, the OTCQB Marketplace, the OTCPink Marketplace or any other tier operated by OTC
Markets Group Inc. (or any successor to any of the foregoing).

 
(bbb) "Transfer Agent" means West Coast Stock Transfer, Inc., the current transfer agent of the Company, with a mailing address of 2010

Hancock St. Suite A., San Diego, California 92110 and a phone number of 619-664-4780, and any successor transfer agent of the Company.
 
(ccc) "Transfer Agent Irrevocable Instruction Letter" means the letter from the Company to the Transfer Agent that instructs the Transfer

Agent to issue shares of Common Stock upon conversion of the Notes, in the form of ExhibitC annexed hereto. 
 
(ddd) "UCC" means the Uniform Commercial Code of as in effect from time to time in the State of New York; provided, however, that, in

the event that, by reason of mandatory provisions of law, any or all of the attachment, perfection, priority, or remedies with respect to the
Purchasers' Liens on any Collateral is governed by the Uniform Commercial Code as enacted and in effect in a jurisdiction other than the State of
New York, the term "UCC" shall mean the Uniform Commercial code as enacted and in effect in such other jurisdiction solely for purposes of the
provisions thereof relating to such attachment, perfection, priority, or remedies. 
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(eee) "Underlying Shares" means all Conversion Shares and Warrant Shares.
 
(fff) "Variable Rate Transaction" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(n) of this Agreement.
 
(ggg) "Warrant(s)" means the four (4)-year Common Stock Purchase Warrants of the Company, the form of which is annexed hereto as

Exhibit B.
 
(hhh) "Warrant Shares " means all shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants and/or any other securities issuable

upon exercise of the Warrants.
 

1.2 Other Definitional Provisions.
 

(a) Use of Defined Terms. Unless otherwise specified therein, all terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined meanings when
used in the other Documents or any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto or thereto.

 
(b) Accounting Terms. As used herein and in the other Documents, and any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant

hereto or thereto, accounting terms relating to Company not defined in Section 1.1 and accounting terms partly defined in Section 1.1, to the extent
not defined, shall have the respective meanings given to them under GAAP (provided that all terms of an accounting or financial nature used
herein shall be construed, and all computations of amounts referred to herein shall be made without giving effect to (i) any election under
Accounting Standards Codification 825-10-25 (previously referred to as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 159) (or any other
Accounting Standards Codification or Financial Accounting Standard having a similar result or effect) to value any Indebtedness or other liabilities
of Company at "fair value", as defined therein, and (ii) any treatment of Indebtedness in respect of convertible debt instruments under Accounting
Standards Codification 470-20 (or any other Accounting Standards Codification or Financial Accounting Standard having a similar result or effect)
to value any such Indebtedness in a reduced or bifurcated manner as described therein, and such Indebtedness shall at all times be valued at the full
stated principal amount thereof).

 
(c) Construction. The words "hereof", "herein" and "hereunder" and words of similar import when used in this Agreement shall refer to this

Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement, and Section, Schedule and Exhibit references are to this Agreement
unless otherwise specified. The meanings given to terms defined herein shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such
terms. 

 
(d) UCC Terms. Terms used in this Agreement that are defined in the UCC shall, unless the context indicates otherwise or are otherwise

defined in this Agreement, have the meanings provided for by the UCC. 
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ARTICLE 2
PURCHASE AND SALE OF THE NOTES AND WARRANTS

 
2.1 First Closing. The First Closing shall occur at 10:00 am (EDT) on the First Closing Date at the offices of Robinson Brog Leinwand Greene

Genovese & Gluck P.C., 875 Third Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, New York 10022, on the first (1 st) Trading Day on which the conditions to the First
Closing set forth in Article V hereof are satisfied or waived in writing as provided elsewhere herein, or on such other date and time as agreed to by the
Company and each Purchaser.

 
2.2 Second Closing. The Second Closing shall occur at 10:00 am (EDT) on the Second Closing Date at the offices of Robinson Brog Leinwand

Greene Genovese & Gluck P.C., 875 Third Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, New York 10022, on the first (1 st) Trading Day that is thirty (30) days after the
First Closing and on which the other conditions to the Second Closing set forth in Article V hereof are satisfied or waived in writing as provided
elsewhere herein, or on such other date and time as agreed to by the Company and each Purchaser.

 
2.3 Third Closing. The Third Closing shall occur at 10:00 am (EDT) on the Third Closing Date at the offices of Robinson Brog Leinwand Greene

Genovese & Gluck P.C., 875 Third Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, New York 10022, on the first (1 st) Trading Day that is thirty (30) days after the Second
Closing and on which the other conditions to the Third Closing set forth in Article V hereof are satisfied or waived in writing as provided elsewhere
herein, or on such other date and time as agreed to by the Company and each Purchaser.

 
2.4 Additional Closings. At any time following thirty (30) days after the Third Closing, the Company may request up to five (5) additional

Closings, each for the purchase and sale of $1,000,000 of Notes and Warrants (each an "Additional Closing"). The Company must give the Purchasers
thirty (30) days notice prior to each Additional Closing and at least thirty (30) days must pass between Additional Closings with the last Additional
Closing not to occur later than the one (1) year-anniversary of the date of the First Closing. At the Purchasers' discretion, the Company may give notice
and Additional Closings may occur in shorter intervals than thirty (30) days and Additional Closings may occur for greater than $1,000,000, but in no
event shall the aggregate of all of the Additional Closings be greater than $5,000,000.  

 
2.5 Conditions to Purchase of Notes and Warrants. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Purchaser will at the applicable

Closing, on the applicable Closing Date, purchase from the Company the Notes and Warrants in the amounts and for the Purchase Price as set forth on
Schedule 1, provided that (i) no Event of Default (or event that with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would become an Event of
Default), shall have occurred or would result therefrom; and (ii) the applicable conditions in Article V have been satisfied.
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2.6 Purchase Price and Payment of the Purchase Price for the Notes and Warrants. The Purchase Price for the Notes and Warrants to be purchased
by the Purchasers at the applicable Closing shall be as set forth on Schedule 1 and shall be paid at the applicable Closing, (less all of the Purchasers'
Expenses (as defined below)), by the Purchaser by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the Company in accordance with the Company's written
wiring instructions, against delivery of the Notes and Warrants.

 
2.7 Purchasers' Costs and Expenses. On the applicable Closing Date, all direct and indirect costs and expenses of the Purchasers related to the

negotiation, due diligence, preparation, closing, and all other items regarding or related to this Agreement and the other Documents and all of the
transactions contemplated herein and/or therein, including, but not limited to, the legal fees and expenses of the Purchasers' legal counsel (collectively, the
"Purchasers' Expenses"), shall be due and payable from the Company to the Purchasers; and the Purchasers shall subtract from their respective Purchase
Price to be paid to the Company for the purchase of the Notes and Warrants, all of such Purchasers' Expenses. Although the Purchasers' Expenses are the
sole responsibility and obligation of the Company, but are being subtracted by the Purchasers from their respective Purchase Price actually paid to the
Company, such Purchasers' Expenses shall constitute part of such Purchase Price and shall not directly and/or indirectly reduce and or result in any set-off
the aggregate principal amount of the Note or result in a set-off and/or reduction of any other funds owed by the Company to the Purchasers.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Company's responsibility for the Purchasers' Expenses shall not exceed $75,000.00 to be
allocated as follows: (i) the legal fees and expenses of the Purchasers' legal counsel in a sum not to exceed $35,000 and (ii) an aggregate. non-accountable
due diligence fee of $40,000.
 

ARTICLE 3
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; OTHER ITEMS

 
3.1 Representation and Warranties. Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedules, which Disclosure Schedules shall be deemed a part hereof

and shall qualify any representation or otherwise made herein to the extent of the disclosure contained in the corresponding section of the Disclosure
Schedules (but in no event shall qualify any indemnity obligation of the Company hereunder), the Company (which for purposes of this Section 3 means
the Company and all of its Subsidiaries) represents and warrants to each Purchaser that on each Closing Date: 

 
(a) Subsidiaries. All of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company are set forth on Schedule 3.1(a). Except as set forth on

Schedule 3.1(a), the Company owns, directly or indirectly, all of the capital stock or other equity interests of each Subsidiary free and clear of any
Liens, and all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of each Subsidiary are validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and free
of preemptive and similar rights to subscribe for or purchase securities. 
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(b) Organization, Etc. The Company and each of the Subsidiaries is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of
the state of their respective organization and are duly qualified and in good standing or has applied for qualification as a foreign corporation
authorized to do business in each jurisdiction where, because of the nature of its activities or properties, such qualification is required except where
the failure to be so qualified would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(c) Authorization: No Conflict. The execution, delivery and performance of the Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby by

the Company, including, but not limited to, the sale and issuance of the Notes and the Warrants for the Purchase Price, the reservation for issuance
of the shares of Common Stock required to be reserved pursuant to the terms of the Notes and the Warrants and of the sale and issuance the
Conversion Shares into which the Notes are convertible and the Warrant Shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrant (i) are within the Company's
corporate powers, (ii) have been duly authorized by all necessary action by or on behalf of the Company (and/or its stockholders to the extent
required by law), (iii) the Company has received all necessary and/or required governmental, regulatory and other approvals and consents (if any
shall be required), (iv) do not and shall not contravene or conflict with any provision of, or require any consents under (1) any law, rule, regulation
or ordinance, (2) the Company's organizational documents; and/or (3) any agreement binding upon the Company or any of the Company's
properties except as would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, and (v) do not result in, or require, the creation or
imposition of any Lien and/or encumbrance on any of the Company's properties or revenues pursuant to any law, rule, regulation or ordinance or
otherwise.

 
(d) Validity and Binding Nature. The Documents to which the Company is a party are the legal, valid and binding obligations of the

Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization and other similar laws of general application affecting the rights and remedies of creditors and by general equitable
principles (whether enforcement is sought by proceedings in equity or at law).

 
(e) Title to Assets. The Company has good and marketable title to all assets owned by Company.
 
(f) No Violations of Laws. The Company is not in violation of any law, ordinance, rule, regulation, judgment, decree or order of any

federal, state or local governmental body or court and/or regulatory or self-regulatory body.
 
(g) Burdensome Obligations. The Company is not a party to any indenture, agreement, lease, contract, deed or other instrument, or subject

to any partnership restrictions or has any knowledge of anything which could have a Material Adverse Effect.
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(h) Taxes. All federal, and material state and local tax returns required to be filed by the Company have been filed with the appropriate
governmental agencies and all taxes due and payable by the Company have been timely paid.

 
(i) Employee Benefit Plans. The term "Plan" means an "employee pension benefit plan" (as defined in Section 3 of Employee Retirement

Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time ("ERISA")) which is or has been established or maintained, or to which contributions
are or have been made, by the Company. Each plan and/or employee benefit plan (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA), if any, maintained by the
Company complies in all material respects with all applicable requirements of law and regulations and all payments and contributions required to
be made with respect to such plans have been timely made.

 
(j) Federal Laws and Regulations. The Company is not (i) an "investment company" or a company "controlled", whether directly or

indirectly, by an "investment company", within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended; or (ii) engaged principally, or
as one of its important activities, in the business of extending credit for the purpose of purchasing or carrying margin stock (within the meaning of
Regulation U of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System).

 
(k) Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company ends on December 31 of each year.
 
(l) Subsidiaries; Etc. All Subsidiaries of the Company and the locations thereof on the Closing Date are set forth in the SEC Reports. The

SEC Reports set forth, as of the Closing Date, the Company's jurisdiction of organization and the location of Company's executive offices and
other places of business.  

 
(m) Officers and Ownership. As of the date hereof, the Persons set forth in the SEC Reports (i) hold the respective office or offices,

position or positions (including director positions if a director), in the Company and (ii) except as may be updated by a subsequent filing of Form 4
or 5, own the percentage of each and every class of issued and outstanding capital stock, other ownership interests and/or securities of the
Company and the voting power over said capital stock, other ownership interests and/or securities of the Company. 
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(n) Rule 506(d) Bad Actor Disqualification Representations and Covenants.
 

(i) No Disqualification Events. Neither the Company, nor any of its predecessors, affiliates, any manager, executive officer, other
officer of the Company participating in the offering, any beneficial owner (as that term is defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act)
of 20% or more of the Company's outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power, nor any promoter (as that
term is defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) connected with the Company in any capacity as of the date of this Agreement and on
the Closing Date (each, a "Company Covered Person" and, together, "Company Covered Persons") is subject to any of the "Bad Actor"
disqualifications described in Rule 506(d)(1)(i) to (viii) under the Securities Act (a "Disqualification Event"), except for a Disqualification
Event covered by Rule 506(d)(2) or (d)(3). The Company has exercised reasonable care to determine (A) the identity of each person that is
a Company Covered Person; and (B) whether any Company Covered Person is subject to a Disqualification Event. The Company will
comply with its disclosure obligations under Rule 506(e).    

(ii) Other Covered Persons. The Company is not aware of any person (other than any Company Covered Person) who has been or
will be paid (directly or indirectly) remuneration in connection with the purchase and sale of the Notes and/or Warrants who is subject to a
Disqualification Event (each, an "Other Covered Person").

 
(iii) Reasonable Notification Procedures. With respect to each Company Covered Person, the Company has established

procedures reasonably designed to ensure that the Company receives notice from each such Company Covered Person of (A) any
Disqualification Event relating to that Company Covered Person, and (B) any event that would, with the passage of time, become a
Disqualification Event relating to that Company Covered Person; in each case occurring up to and including the Closing Date.

 
(iv) Notice of Disqualification Events. The Company will notify the Purchasers immediately in writing upon becoming aware of

(A) any Disqualification Event relating to any Company Covered Person and (B) any event that would, with the passage of time, become a
Disqualification Event relating to any Company Covered Person and/or Other Covered Person. 

 
(o) Accuracy of Information, etc. No statement or information contained in this Agreement, the SEC Reports, any other Document or any

other document, certificate or statement furnished to the Purchasers by or on behalf of the Company in writing for use in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and/or the other Documents contained, as of the date such statement, information, document or
certificate was made or furnished, as the case may be, any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements contained herein or therein, taken as a whole, not materially misleading. There is no fact known to the Company that could have a
Material Adverse Effect that has not been expressly disclosed herein, in the other Documents, or in any other documents, certificates and
statements furnished to the Purchasers for use in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and by the other Documents. 
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(p) Solvency. The Company is Solvent; and shall be Solvent immediately prior to, and immediately following the Closing Date, after



giving effect to the incurrence of all Indebtedness and all other obligations being incurred by the Company pursuant hereto and the other
Documents including, but not limited to, all Liabilities and pursuant to the other Documents and the use of the Purchase Price as provided
elsewhere herein.

 
(q) Affiliate Transactions. Other than as disclosed in the SEC Reports, the Company has not purchased, acquired or leased any property

from, or sold, transferred or leased any property to, or entered into any other transaction with (i) any Affiliate, (ii) any officer, director, manager,
stockholder or member of the Company or any Affiliate of any thereof, or (iii) any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing, except
on terms comparable to the terms that would prevail in an arms-length transaction between unaffiliated third parties.  

  
(r) Intellectual Property. The Company has, or has rights to use, all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, service

marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual property rights and similar rights as described in the SEC
Reports as necessary or required for use in connection with its business and which the failure to so have could have a Material Adverse Effect
(collectively, the "Intellectual Property Rights"). None of, and the Company has not received a notice (written or otherwise) that any of, the
Intellectual Property Rights has expired, terminated or been abandoned, or is expected to expire or terminate or be abandoned. The Company has
not received, since the date of the latest audited financial statements included within the SEC Reports, a written notice of a claim or otherwise has
any knowledge that the Intellectual Property Rights violate or infringe upon the rights of any Person, except as could not have or reasonably be
expected to not have a Material Adverse Effect. To the knowledge of the Company, all such Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there
is no existing infringement by another Person of any of the Intellectual Property Rights. The Company has taken reasonable security measures to
protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of its intellectual property, except where failure to do so could not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. All Intellectual Property Rights of the Company are set forth in the SEC
Reports.

 
(s) Variable Rate Securities. The Company has not directly and/or indirectly entered into, any agreement that (except for the transactions

contemplated hereby) could constitute a, nor has the Company any intention and/or obligation to enter into any, Variable Rate Transaction.  
 
(t) USA Patriot Act . The Company is in compliance, in all material respects, with (i) the Trading with the Enemy Act, as amended, and

each of the foreign assets control regulations of the United States Treasury Department (31 C.F.R., Subtitle B, Chapter V, as amended) and any
other enabling legislation or executive order relating thereto, and (ii) the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L. 107-56, signed into law on October
26, 2001) (the "Act"). No part of the proceeds of the Notes will be used, directly or indirectly, for any payments to any governmental official or
employee, political party, official of a political party, candidate for political office, or anyone else acting in an official capacity, in order to obtain,
retain or direct business or obtain any improper advantage, in violation of the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended.  
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(u) Foreign Asset Control Laws. The Company is not a Person named on a list published by OFAC or a Person with whom dealings are
prohibited under any OFAC Regulations.

 
(v) Indebtedness; Liens, Etc. Except for Permitted Indebtedness and Permitted Liens, the Company has no Indebtedness nor any Liens

other than as disclosed on Schedule 3.1(v).
 
(w) Authorization; Enforcement. All corporate action on the part of the Company, its officers, directors and stockholders necessary for the

authorization, execution and delivery of the Documents and the performance of all obligations of the Company under the Documents and have
been taken on or prior to the date hereof. Each of the Documents has been duly executed by the Company and, when delivered in accordance with
the terms hereof and thereof, will constitute the valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with
its terms, except: (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting
enforcement of creditors' rights generally, (ii) as limited by general equitable principles regardless of whether such enforcement is considered in a
proceeding in equity or at law, (iii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable
remedies and (iv) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.    

 
(x) Valid Issuance of the Notes, the Warrants, and Underlying Shares, Etc.  Each of the Notes and the Warrants has been duly authorized

and, when issued and paid for in accordance with this Agreement, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all
Liens and all restrictions on transfer other than those expressly imposed by the federal securities laws and vest in the Purchasers full and sole title
and power to the Notes and the Warrants purchased hereby by the Purchasers, free and clear of all Liens, and restrictions on transfer other than
those imposed by the federal securities laws. All Conversion Shares, when issued pursuant to conversion of the Notes, and all Warrant Shares, when
issued pursuant to any exercise of the Warrants, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, will be free and clear of all Liens and
vest in the holder full and sole title and power to such securities. The Company has reserved from its duly authorized unissued Common Stock, the
Required Reserve Amount, which Required Reserve Amount shall be continuously determined by the Company to ensure that the Required
Reserve Amount is in reserve with the Transfer Agent at all times. The Notes, the Warrants, Conversion Shares, and Warrant Shares shall
sometimes be collectively referred to as the "Securities."

 
(y) Offering. The offer and sale of the Notes and the Warrants, as contemplated by this Agreement, are exempt from the registration

requirements of the Securities Act, and the qualification or registration requirements of state securities laws or other applicable blue sky laws.
Neither the Company nor any authorized agent acting on its behalf will take any action hereafter that would cause the loss of such exemptions.  
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( z ) Capitalization and Voting Rights . The authorized capital stock of the Company and all securities of the Company issued and
outstanding are set forth in the SEC Reports as of the dates reflected therein. All of the outstanding shares of Common Stock and other securities
of the Company have been duly authorized and validly issued, and are fully paid and nonassessable. Except as set forth in the SEC Reports, there
are no agreements or arrangements under which the Company is obligated to register the sale of any of the Company's securities under the
Securities Act. Except as set forth in the SEC Reports, no shares of Common Stock and/or other securities of the Company are entitled to
preemptive rights and there are no outstanding debt securities and no contracts, commitments, understandings, or arrangements by which the
Company is or may become bound to issue additional shares of the capital stock and/or other securities of the Company or options, warrants, scrip,
rights to subscribe to, calls or commitments of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities or rights convertible into or exchangeable for, any
shares of capital stock of the Company other than those issued or granted in the ordinary course of business pursuant to the Company's equity
incentive and/or compensatory plans or arrangements. Except for customary transfer restrictions contained in agreements entered into by the
Company to sell restricted securities and/or as set forth in the SEC Reports, the Company is not a party to, and it has no knowledge of, any
agreement restricting the voting or transfer of any shares of the capital stock and/or other securities of the Company. Except as set forth in the SEC
Reports, the offer and sale of all capital stock, convertible or exchangeable securities, rights, warrants, options and/or any other securities of the
Company when any such securities of the Company were issued complied with all applicable federal and state securities laws, and no current
and/or prior holder of any securities of the Company has any right of rescission or damages or any "put" or similar right with respect thereto that
would have a Material Adverse Effect. Except as set forth in the SEC Reports, there are no securities or instruments of the Company containing
anti-dilution or similar provisions that will be triggered by the issuance and/or sale of the Securities and/or the consummation of the transactions
described herein or in any of the other Documents.    

 
(bb). The Company is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act and the Company is current in its

filing obligations under the Exchange Act, including, without limitation, its filings of Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8K (collectively, the "SEC Reports"). The SEC Reports, at the time filed with the SEC, did not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any fact necessary to make any statement therein not misleading. All financial statements
included in the SEC Reports (the "Financial Statements") have been prepared, if so required, in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent
basis throughout the periods indicated and with each other, except that unaudited Financial Statements may not contain all footnotes required by
generally accepted accounting principles. The Financial Statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition and operating
results of the Company as of the dates, and for the periods, indicated therein, subject in the case of unaudited Financial Statements to normal year-
end audit adjustments.

 
(dd). The Company is in compliance with any and all applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that are effective as of

the date hereof, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC thereunder that are effective as of the date hereof. 
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(ff). Other than as disclosed in the SEC Reports, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public
board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened against or affecting the
Company, the Common Stock or any of the Company's officers or directors or 5% or greater stockholders in their capacities as such.

 
(gg) Material Changes; Undisclosed Events, Liabilities or Developments. Except as provided in Schedule 3.1(gg), since the date of the

latest audited Financial Statements included in the SEC Reports, except as specifically disclosed in a subsequent SEC Report filed with the SEC
prior to the date hereof: (i) there has been no event, occurrence or development that has had or that could reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Effect, (ii) the Company has not incurred any liabilities (contingent or otherwise) other than (A) trade payables and accrued
expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and (B) liabilities not required to be reflected in the Company's
Financial Statements pursuant to GAAP or disclosed in SEC Reports pursuant to SEC rules and/or regulations, (iii) the Company has not altered its
method of accounting, (iv) the Company has not declared or made any dividend or distribution of cash or other property to its stockholders or
purchased, redeemed or made any agreements to purchase or redeem any shares of its capital stock and (v) the Company has not issued any equity
securities to any officer, director or affiliate, except pursuant to existing Company stock option plans. The Company does not have pending before
the Commission any request for confidential treatment of information. Except for the issuance of the Securities contemplated by this Agreement, no
event, liability, fact, circumstance, occurrence or development has occurred or exists or is reasonably expected to occur or exist with respect to the
Company or its business, properties, operations, assets or financial condition that would be required to be disclosed by the Company under
applicable securities laws at the time this representation is made or deemed made that has not been publicly disclosed at least one Trading Day
prior to the date that this representation is made.  

 
(hh) Disclosure. Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the Documents, the Company

confirms that neither it nor any other Person acting on its behalf has provided any Purchaser or its respective agents or counsel with any
information that constitutes material, non-public information. The Company understands that each Purchaser may rely on the Documents, the
information included therein, including, but not limited to, the foregoing representation and the SEC Reports in purchasing the Notes and
Warrants. All of the disclosure furnished by or on behalf of the Company to the Purchasers in the Documents and/or in the SEC Reports, regarding,
among other matters relating to the Company, its business and the transactions contemplated in the Documents, is true and correct in all material
respects as of the date made and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to
make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The Company acknowledges and
agrees that none of the Purchasers does make nor has made any representations or warranties with respect to the transactions contemplated in the
Documents other than those specifically set forth in Section 7 hereof.   
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(ii) No Integrated Offering. Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties set forth in Section 7, neither the Company, nor
any of its affiliates, nor any Person acting on its or their behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any offers or sales of any security or solicited any
offers to buy any security, under circumstances that would cause the issuance and/or sale of the Securities to be integrated with prior offerings of
securities by the Company for purposes of (i) the Securities Act that would require the registration of any such Securities and/or any other securities
of the Company under the Securities Act, or (ii) any stockholder-approval provisions of any Trading Market on which any of the securities of the
Company are listed, eligible for quotation and/or designated.

 
(jj) Bankruptcy Status; Indebtedness. The Company has no current intention or expectation to file for reorganization or liquidation under

the bankruptcy or reorganization laws of any jurisdiction within one year from the applicable representation date. All outstanding material secured
and unsecured Indebtedness (as defined below) of the Company, or for which the Company has commitments, is set forth in the SEC Reports.

 
(kk) Regulation M Compliance. The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or

indirectly, any action designed to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the
sale or resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Securities, or
(iii) paid or agreed to pay to any Person any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other securities of the Company.

 
(ll) No Consents, Etc. No direct or indirect consent, approval, authorization or similar item is required to be obtained by the Company to

enter into this Agreement, the Notes, the Warrants, and/or the other Documents to which it is a party and to perform or undertake any of the
transactions contemplated pursuant to this Agreement, the Notes, the Warrants, and/or any of the other Documents to which it is a party. 

    
(mm) Listing of Securities. All Underlying Shares have been approved, if so required, for listing or quotation on the Trading Market,

subject only to notice of issuance.  
 
(nn) Dilutive Effect. The Company understands and acknowledges that the number of Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion of the

Notes and the number of Warrant Shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, in each case, pursuant to the terms thereof, will increase in certain
circumstances. The Company further acknowledges that its obligations to issue Conversion Shares pursuant to the terms of the Notes in accordance
with this Agreement and the Notes and to issue Warrant Shares upon exercise of the Warrants in accordance with this Agreement and the Warrants
are, in each case, absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that any such issuances may have on the percentage ownership
interests of other stockholders of the Company. 

 
 

19



 
  

(oo) Application of Takeover Protections; Rights Agreement. The Company and its board of directors have taken all necessary action, if
any, in order to render inapplicable any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a rights
agreement) or other similar anti-takeover provisions under the Company's Articles of Incorporation or the laws of the jurisdiction of its formation
that are or could become applicable to the Purchasers as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and/or the other Documents,
including, without limitation, the Company's issuance of the Securities and each Purchaser's ownership of the Securities. The Company has not
adopted a stockholder rights plan or similar arrangement relating to accumulations of beneficial ownership of Common Stock or a change in control
of the Company.

 
(pp) Manipulation of Price. The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly,

any action designed to cause or to result, or that could reasonably be expected to cause or result, in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of
any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for
soliciting purchases of, any of the Securities, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any person any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any
other securities of the Company.

 
(qq) DTC Eligible. The Common Stock is DTC eligible and DTC has not placed a "freeze" or a "chill" on the Common Stock and the

Company has no reason to believe that DTC has any intention to make the Common Stock not DTC eligible, or place a "freeze" or "chill" on the
Common Stock.

 
(rr) No Delisting from Trading Market. The Common Stock is eligible for quotation on the Principal Market and the Company has no

reason to believe that the Principal Market has any intention of delisting the Common Stock from the Principal Market.
 
(ss) No General Solicitation. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor, to the knowledge of the Company, any Person acting on

its behalf, has engaged in any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within the meaning of Regulation D) in connection with the offer
or sale of the Securities. 
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(tt) Acknowledgment Regarding each Purchaser's Purchase of Notes and Warrants. The Company acknowledges and agrees that each
Purchaser is acting solely in the capacity of an arm's length purchaser with respect to the other Documents and the transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby and that such Purchaser is not (i) an officer or director of the Company, (ii) an Affiliate of the Company or (iii) to the
knowledge of the Company, a "beneficial owner" of more than 10% of the shares of Common Stock (as defined for purposes of Rule 13d-3 of the
Exchange Act. The Company further acknowledges that each Purchaser is not acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any
similar capacity) with respect to the Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and any advice given by such Purchaser or
any of its representatives or agents in connection with the Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby is merely incidental to
such Purchaser's purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to each Purchaser that the Company's decision to enter into the
Documents has been based solely on the independent evaluation by the Company and its representatives.

 
(uu) Placement Agent. The Company has engaged a placement agent in connection with the sale of the Securities. The Company further

acknowledges that certain affiliates of the placement agent listed on Schedule 7.8 are participating in this transaction, and the placement agent is
not being compensated on amounts raised pursuant to their participation.

 
(vv) Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. There is no transaction, arrangement, or other relationship between the Company and an

unconsolidated or other off-balance sheet entity that is required to be disclosed by the Company in its Exchange Act filings and is not so disclosed
or that otherwise would be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(ww) Subsidiary Rights. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(ww), the Company has the unrestricted right to vote, and (subject to

limitations imposed by applicable law) to receive dividends and distributions on, all capital securities of its Subsidiaries as owned by the Company
or any Subsidiary. 

 
(xx) Internal Accounting and Disclosure Controls. Other than as disclosed in the SEC Reports, the Company maintains a system of

internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management's general
or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles and to maintain asset and liability accountability, (iii) access to assets or incurrence of liabilities is permitted only in
accordance with management's general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets and liabilities is compared with the
existing assets and liabilities at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any difference. Other than as disclosed in the
SEC Reports, the Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act) that are
effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, including, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its principal executive officer or officers and its
principal financial officer or officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Other than as disclosed in the SEC
Reports, during the twelve months prior to a Closing Date, the Company has not received any notice or correspondence from any accountant
relating to any material weakness in any part of the system of internal accounting controls of the Company.
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ARTICLE 4
COVENANTS

 
4.1 Affirmative Covenants. Commencing on the Initial Closing Date and until all the Liabilities are paid in full and this Agreement, the Company

covenants and agrees that:
 

(a) Financial Statements and Certificates. While any amounts are owed to a Purchaser from the Company (including, but not limited to,
any Liability), the Company will furnish the following to such Purchaser, all in form and scope acceptable to such Purchaser, unless such
information is included in the Company's most recent SEC Reports:

 
(i) within 105days after the close of each fiscal year of the Company, a copy of the annual report of the Company, consisting of a

balance sheet, statement of operating results and retained earnings, statement of cash flows and notes to financial statements, profit and
loss statement and statement of changes in financial position of the Company, prepared in conformity with GAAP, duly audited by an
independent registered public accounting firm selected by the Company and not unreasonably disapproved by the Purchasers;

 
(ii) within 50 days after the end of each fiscal quarter, a copy of an unaudited financial statement of Company prepared in the

same manner as the report referred to in paragraph (i) above signed by the principal accounting officer of the Company and consisting of a
balance sheet as at the close of such fiscal quarter and statements of earnings and cash flows for such fiscal quarter and for the period from
the beginning of such fiscal year to the close of such fiscal quarter;

 
(iii) a duly completed compliance certificate, dated the date of such financial statements and certified as true and correct by the

chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Company, stating that the Company has not become aware of any Event of Default
that has occurred and is continuing or, if there is any such Event of Default describing it and the steps, if any, being taken to cure it;

 
(iv) copies of any and all reports, examinations, notices, warnings and citations issued by any governmental or quasi-

governmental (whether federal, state or local), unit, agency, body or entity with respect to the Company that could have a Material
Adverse Effect; and  

 
(v) such other information as the Purchasers from time to time reasonably request.

 
 

22



 
  

(b) Books, Records and Inspections. Company shall (i) maintain complete and accurate books and records; (ii) permit access by each
Purchaser and its agents and/or representatives to such books and records as they relate to this Agreement, the Securities, and/or the other
Documents; and (iii) permit such persons, upon two (2) days' prior written notice, to inspect the properties, whether real or personal, and operations
of the Company.

 
(c) Insurance. The Company shall maintain such insurance as may be required by law and such other insurance to the extent and against

such hazards and liabilities as is customarily maintained by companies similarly situated. All property insurance policies shall, within thirty (30)
days following the Closing Date, contain Purchaser loss-payable clauses in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Purchasers, naming
each Purchaser as a Purchaser loss-payee, mortgagee and/or additional insured, as its interest may appear, and providing that such policies and
Purchaser loss-payable clauses may not be canceled, amended or terminated unless at least thirty (30) days (or ten (10) days in the case of non-
payment of premiums) prior written notice thereof has been given to the Purchasers. All insurance proceeds received by any Purchaser may be
retained by such Purchaser, in its sole discretion, for application to the payment of the Liabilities as the Purchaser may determine.

 
(d) Taxes and Liabilities. The Company shall pay when due all material taxes, assessments and other liabilities except as contested in good

faith and by appropriate proceedings and for which adequate reserves in conformity with GAAP have been established.
 
(e) Maintenance of Business; Company Names. The Company shall (i) keep all property and systems useful and necessary in its business

in good working order and condition, (ii) preserve its existence, rights and privileges in the jurisdiction of its organization or formation, as set forth
on the SEC Reports and become or remain, and cause each of its Subsidiaries to become or remain, duly qualified and in good standing in each
jurisdiction in which the character of the properties owned or leased by it or in which the transaction of its business makes such qualification
necessary, (iii) not operate in any business other than a business substantially the same as the business as in effect on the date of this Agreement;
provided, however, that it may change its jurisdiction of organization or formation establishment upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the
Purchasers. The Company shall give Purchasers thirty (30) days' prior written notice before the Company changes its name or does business under
any other name.

 
(f) Employee Benefit Plans, Etc. The Company shall (i) maintain each plan and/or each employee benefit plan as to which it may have any

liability in substantial compliance with all applicable requirements of law and regulations; (ii) make all payments and contributions required to be
made pursuant to such Plans and/or plans in a timely manner; and (iii) neither establish any new Plan and/or employee benefit plan, agree or
contribute to any Plan and/or multi-employer plan nor amend any existing Plan and/or employee pension benefit plan in a manner that would
increase its obligation to contribute to such Plan and/or plan. 

 
(g) Good Title. The Company shall at all times maintain good and marketable title to all of its assets necessary for the operation of its

business. 
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(h) Maintenance of Intellectual Property Rights. The Company will take all reasonable action necessary or advisable to maintain all of the
Intellectual Property Rights of the Company that are necessary or material to the conduct of its business in full force and effect.

 
(i) Locations. The Company shall give the Purchasers thirty (30) days' prior written notice of a change in its jurisdiction of organization or

the location of its Chief Executive Office or sole place of business or principal residence.
 
(j) Securities Law Disclosure; Publicity. (i) No later than 9:30 am (EDT) on the first Trading Day after the date hereof and after each

closing of the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company shall issue a Current Report on Form 8-K (the "Current Report") disclosing the
material terms of the transactions contemplated hereby, and including the Documents required to be included in such Current Report as exhibits
thereto, within the time required by the Exchange Act. The Company represents to the Purchasers that, as of the issuance of the first such Current
Report, the Company shall have publicly disclosed all material, non-public information delivered to the Purchasers, if any, as of such time by the
Company, or any of its respective officers, directors, employees or agents in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Documents. The
Company shall afford each Purchaser and its counsel with a reasonable opportunity to review and comment upon, shall consult with each
Purchaser and its counsel on the form and substance of, and shall give due consideration to all such comments from each Purchaser and its counsel
on, any press release, SEC filing or any other public disclosure made by or on behalf of the Company relating to such Purchaser, the Documents
and/or the transactions contemplated by any Document, prior to the issuance, filing or public disclosure thereof, and the Company shall not issue,
file or publicly disclose any such information to which any Purchaser shall reasonably object, unless required by law. For the avoidance of doubt,
the Company shall not be required to submit for review any such disclosure contained in periodic reports filed with the SEC under the Exchange
Act if it shall have previously provided the same disclosure for review in connection with a previous filing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company shall not publicly disclose the name of any Purchaser, or include the name of any Purchaser in any filing with the Commission or any
regulatory agency or Trading Market, without the prior written consent of such Purchaser, except: (a) as required by federal securities law in
connection with the filing of final Documents with the Commission and (b) to the extent such disclosure is required by law or Trading Market
regulations, in which case the Company shall provide the Purchasers with prior notice of such disclosure permitted under this clause (b). 

 
(ii) Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the Documents, which shall be

disclosed pursuant to Section 4.1(j)(i), the Company covenants and agrees that neither it, nor any other Person acting on its behalf, will
provide any Purchaser or its agents or counsel with any information that constitutes, or that the Company reasonably believes constitutes,
material non-public information, unless prior thereto such Purchaser shall have consented to the receipt of such information and agreed
with the Company to keep such information confidential. The Company understands that each Purchaser may be relying on the foregoing
covenant in effecting transactions in securities of the Company. To the extent that the Company delivers any material, non-public
information to a Purchaser without such Purchaser's consent, the Company hereby covenants and agrees that such Purchaser shall not have
any duty of confidentiality to Company, any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees or
Affiliates, or a duty to the Company, and its Subsidiaries or any of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees or Affiliates not
to trade on the basis of such material, non-public information, provided that the Purchaser shall remain subject to applicable law. To the
extent that any notice provided pursuant to any Document constitutes, or contains, material, non-public information regarding the
Company or any Subsidiaries, the Company shall simultaneously file such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on
Form 8-K. Such Purchaser shall not have any liability to the Company, any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their respective directors, officers,
employees, stockholders or agents, for any such disclosure. The Company understands that each Purchaser may be relying on the
foregoing covenants and obligations in effecting transactions in securities of the Company.
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(k) Notices. Company shall, after receipt of knowledge thereof, give prompt written notice to the Purchasers of:
 

(i) the occurrence of any Event of Default or any event that with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both would become
an Event of Default;

 
(ii) any litigation, investigation or proceeding that may exist at any time between Company and any governmental authority that,

in either case, if not cured or if adversely determined, as the case may be, could have a Material Adverse Effect;
 
(iii) any litigation or proceeding affecting Company (A) in which the amount involved is $100,000 or more, (B) in which

injunctive and/or other equitable relief is sought and/or (C) that relates to any Purchaser, any Document and/or any of the transactions
contemplated by any Document;

 
(iv) any Lien (other than security interests created hereby or Permitted Liens) and/or any Indebtedness other than Indebtedness

related to the Documents or Permitted Indebtedness; and
 
(v) Any matter, development and/or event that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect,

including any such matter arising from: any breach or non-performance of, or any default, terms of default or event of default under the
Documents, and/or any other material agreements that the Company is a party to and/or any of its property is bound by.

 
Each notice pursuant to this Section 4.1(k) shall be accompanied by a statement of the Company setting forth details of the occurrence referred to
therein and stating what action the Company proposes to take with respect thereto. 
 

(l) Environmental Laws. The Company shall (i) comply in all material respects with, and endeavor to ensure compliance in all material
respects by all tenants and subtenants, if any, with, all applicable Environmental Laws, and obtain and comply in all material respects with and
maintain, and endeavor to ensure that all tenants and subtenants obtain and comply in all material respects with and maintain, any and all licenses,
approvals, notifications, registrations or permits required by applicable Environmental Laws, and (ii) conduct and complete all investigations,
studies, sampling and testing, and all remedial, removal and other actions required under Environmental Laws and promptly comply in all material
respects with all lawful orders and directives of all governmental authorities regarding Environmental Laws.
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(m) Further Assurances. The Company shall, from time to time execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, such additional
instruments, certificates or documents, and take such actions, as each Purchaser may reasonably request for the purposes of implementing or
effectuating the provisions of this Agreement and the other Documents. Upon the exercise by any Purchaser of any power, right, privilege or
remedy pursuant to this Agreement or the other Documents that requires any consent, approval, recording, qualification or authorization of any
governmental authority, the Company will execute and deliver, or will cause the execution and delivery of, all applications, certifications,
instruments and other documents and papers that such Purchaser may be required to obtain from the Company for such governmental consent,
approval, recording, qualification or authorization.    

 
(n) Reservation of Shares. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Company shall not be required to reserve any shares of

Common Stock from its duly authorized shares of Common Stock for issuance in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby; provided,
however, that from and after August 1, 2016, and for so long as any Securities are owned beneficially and/or of record by any Purchaser or any
transferee thereof, the Company covenants and agrees that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of
Common Stock a number of shares of Common Stock at least equal to (the "Required Reserve Amount") (i) (a) 250% multiplied by (b) the
Required Minimum (as defined below) plus (ii) the quotient of (A) the sum of all shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of all Warrants
and/or other warrants owed by the Purchasers or any transferee thereof, divided by (B) the Exercise Price (as defined in the Warrants) then
applicable, for the sole purpose of issuance upon conversion of the Notes, payment of interest on the Notes and exercise of the Warrants, free from
preemptive rights or any other actual contingent purchase rights of Persons other than the applicable Purchaser (and any other holders of any Notes
and/or Warrants transferred from a Purchaser). The Company covenants that all shares of Common Stock that shall be so issuable shall, upon
issue, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and, at such times as a registration statement covering such shares is then
effective under the Securities Act, will be registered for public resale in accordance with such registration statement. For purposes of this
Agreement, the "Required Minimum" shall mean the quotient obtained by dividing the sum of (A) (i)all outstanding Indebtedness represented by
the Notes, (ii) all interest thereon (whether accrued or not), and (iii) and/or other amounts owed under the Documents, including Liabilities to the
Purchasers from the Company (including but not limited to Late Fees, and liquidated damages), by (B) the lower of (i) the Conversion Price (as
defined in the Notes) then applicable or (ii) the Alternative Conversion Price, as the case may be. The Company shall be required to calculate the
Required Minimum on the first Trading Day of each month that any Securities are outstanding and provide such calculation to each Purchaser and
the Transfer Agent promptly. For purposes of calculating the Required Minimum, the Company shall assume that all outstanding principal of all
Notes will remain outstanding until the applicable Maturity Date as defined in the Notes and all accrued but unpaid interest thereon accrues at the
rate of 12% per annum is paid on the applicable Maturity Date.

 
(o) Reserved.  
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(p) Certain Transactions and Confidentiality.  
 

(i) Each Purchaser, severally and not jointly with the other Purchasers, covenants that neither it, nor any Affiliate acting on its
behalf or pursuant to any understanding with it will execute any purchases or sales, including Short Sales, of any of the Company's
securities during the period commencing with the execution of this Agreement and ending at such time that the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement are first publicly announced pursuant to the initial Current Report as described in Section 4.1(j). Each Purchaser,
severally and not jointly with the other Purchasers, covenants that, until such time as the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are
publicly disclosed by the Company pursuant to the initial Current Report as described in Section 4.1(j), such Purchaser will maintain the
confidentiality of the existence and terms of this transaction and the information included in the Documents and the Disclosure Schedules.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, and notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Company expressly
acknowledges and agrees that (A) no Purchaser makes any representation, warranty or covenant hereby that it will not engage in effecting
transactions in any securities of the Company after the time that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are first publicly
announced pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.1(j), (B) no Purchaser shall be restricted or prohibited from
effecting any transactions in any securities of the Company in accordance with applicable securities laws from and after the time that the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement are first publicly announced pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.1(j)
and (C) no Purchaser shall have any duty of confidentiality or duty not to trade in the securities of the Company to the Company or its
Subsidiaries after the issuance of the initial press release as described in Section 4.1(j); provided, however, each Purchaser agrees,
severally and not jointly with any other Purchasers, that such Purchaser will not enter into any Net Short Sales (as hereinafter defined)
from the period commencing on the Closing Date and ending on the date that such Purchaser no longer holds any Notes or Warrants. For
purposes of this Section 4.1(p), a "Net Short Sale" by any Purchaser shall mean a sale of Common Stock by such Purchaser that is marked
as a short sale and that is made at a time where there is no equivalent offsetting long position in Common Stock held by such Purchaser.
For purposes of determining whether there is an equivalent offsetting long position in Common Stock held by the Purchaser, Underlying
Shares that have not yet been converted pursuant to the Notes and Warrant Shares that have not yet been exercised pursuant to the
Warrants shall be deemed to be held long by the Purchaser, and the amount of shares of Common Stock held in a long position shall be all
unconverted Underlying Shares and unexercised Warrant Shares (subject, however to all exercise and conversion limitations included in
the Warrants and the Notes) issuable to such Purchaser on such date, plus any shares of Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents
otherwise then held by such Purchaser. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of a Purchaser that is a multi-managed investment
vehicle, whereby separate portfolio managers manage separate portions of such Purchaser's assets and the portfolio managers have no
direct knowledge of the investment decisions made by the portfolio managers managing other portions of such Purchaser's assets, the
covenant set forth above shall only apply with respect to the portion of assets managed by the portfolio manager that made the investment
decision to purchase the Securities covered by this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, except as described in Section 4.1(p)(ii) below,
no Purchaser shall perform a Net Short Sale. 
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(ii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section 4.1(p)(i) above, in the event that the Company does not or is
unable to honor a notice of conversion in connection with any Purchaser of the Notes (subject to the Company's obligations to honor a
notice of conversion as set forth in the Notes), then such Purchaser, in each case, shall be entitled to perform a Net Short Sale. In the event
that the Company subsequently honors a notice of conversion within two (2) Trading Days after the time permitted under the Notes or the
applicable certificate of designation, as amended (the "Default Cure"), then such Purchaser must close out the Net Short Sale within three
(3) Trading Days of such Purchaser's receipt of written notice from the Company of the Default Cure.

 
4.2 Negative Covenants. Until all the Liabilities are paid in full, Company covenants and agrees that:

 
(a) Restricted Payments. Except to the Purchasers, the Company shall not directly or indirectly, redeem, defease, repurchase, repay or

make any payments in respect of, by the payment of cash or cash equivalents (in whole or in part, whether by way of open market purchases, tender
offers, private transactions or otherwise), all or any portion of any Indebtedness, whether by way of payment in respect of principal of (or premium,
if any) or interest on, such Indebtedness, except for Permitted Indebtedness; provided, however, that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary
provided herein or elsewhere, in no event shall the Company directly and/or indirectly make any payment to any officer, director, or 5% or greater
beneficial holder of the Company's voting stock or Common Stock or an affiliate of the Company and/or any affiliate of any such person
representing the direct and/or indirect repayment of Indebtedness, premiums and/or interest on Indebtedness, unpaid salaries, unpaid consulting
fees, unpaid expenses, accrued but unpaid interest and/or otherwise, except as set forth in Schedule 4.2(a).

 
(b ) Restricted Issuances. Except to the Purchasers, the Company shall not, directly or indirectly, (i) issue any securities and/or

Indebtedness (other than as contemplated by this Agreement and/or the Documents) or (ii) issue any other securities that would cause a breach or
default, an event of default and/or an Event of Default under any Note and/or any other Document.

 
(c) Restriction on Redemption and Dividends. Except to the Purchasers, the Company shall not, directly or indirectly, redeem, repurchase

or declare or pay any dividend or distribution on any of its capital stock whether in cash, stock rights and/or property, except as set forth in the
SEC Reports.

 
(d) Restriction on Transfer of Assets. The Company shall not, directly or indirectly, sell, lease, license, assign, transfer, spin-off, split-off,

close, convey or otherwise dispose of any assets or rights of the Company owned or hereafter acquired whether in a single transaction or a series of
related transactions, other than sales, leases, licenses, assignments, transfers, conveyances and other dispositions of such assets or rights by the
Company in the ordinary course of business; provided, however, that, in the event that the Company wishes to effect a transaction under this
Section 4.2(d), it shall, prior to undertaking such effort, provide each Purchaser with a high-level understanding of the objectives and ideal terms of
such anticipation transaction. No fewer than four (4) Trading Days prior to the execution of each of a binding term sheet and definitive
documentation, the Company shall deliver to each Purchaser a written notice of any material terms and/or changes since the prior notice given to
the Company and shall include a term sheet or similar document relating thereto as an attachment. Thereafter, upon receipt of draft execution
copies of such definitive documentation, the transaction shall be subject to each Purchaser's consent, which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld. The Company shall file a Current Report on Form 8-K no later than 9:30 am (EDT) on the next Trading Day following the execution of
any such documentation.
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(e) Change in Nature of Business. The Company shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any business substantially different from the
business conducted by the Company on the Closing Date or any business substantially related or incidental thereto. The Company shall not,
directly or indirectly, modify its corporate structure for any purpose.

 
(f) Indebtedness. The Company shall not incur or permit to exist any Indebtedness, except for Permitted Indebtedness.
 
(g) Liens. The Company shall not create or permit to exist any Liens or security interests with respect to any assets, whether now owned or

hereafter acquired and owned, except for Permitted Liens.
 
(h) Guaranties, Loans or Advances. The Company shall not become or be a guarantor or surety of, or otherwise become or be responsible

in any manner with respect to any undertaking of any other Person, or make or permit to exist any loans or advances to or investments in any other
Person, except for the endorsement, in the ordinary course of collection, of instruments payable to it or to its order.

 
(i) Violation of Law. The Company shall not violate any law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, judgment, decree, order, writ or

injunction of any federal, state or local authority, court, agency, bureau, board, commission, department or governmental body if such violation
could have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(j) Unconditional Purchase Obligations. The Company shall not enter into or be a party to any contract for the purchase of any material

amount of materials, supplies or other property or services if such contract requires that payment be made by it regardless of whether or not
delivery is ever made of such materials, supplies or other property or services.

 
(k) Use of Proceeds. The Company shall not permit any proceeds of the Notes to be used either directly or indirectly for the purpose,

whether immediate, incidental or ultimate, of "purchasing or carrying any margin stock" within the meaning of Regulation U, as amended from
time to time, of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

 
(l) Hedge Agreements. The Company shall not enter into any hedge agreement other than hedge agreements entered into in the ordinary

course of business, and not for speculative purposes, to protect against changes in interest rates or foreign exchange rates.  
 
(m) ERISA. The Company shall not create or become obligated under any Plan.
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(n) No Variable Rate Transactions, Etc.  For as long as any Notes and/or Warrants remain outstanding, the Company shall not, other than
as disclosed in the SEC Reports, in the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3, as filed with the Commission on April 11, 2016, and any
amendments or supplements thereto, prospectuses filed in respect thereof or required further registration statements, or in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby, directly or indirectly, (i) (A) consummate any exchange of any Indebtedness and/or securities of the Company
for any other securities and/or Indebtedness of the Company, (B) cooperate with any person to effect any exchange of securities and/or
Indebtedness of the Company in connection with a proposed sale of such securities from an existing holder of such securities to a third party, and/or
(C) reduce and/or otherwise change the exercise price, conversion price and/or exchange price of any Common Stock Equivalent of the Company
and/or amend any non-convertible Indebtedness of the Company to make it convertible into securities of the Company, (ii) issue or sell any of its
securities either (A) at a conversion, exercise or exchange rate or price that is based upon and/or varies with the trading prices of, or quotations for,
the shares of Common Stock, and/or (B) with a conversion, exercise or exchange rate and/or price that is subject to being reset on one or more
occasions either (1) at some future date after the initial issuance of such securities or (2) upon the occurrence of specified or contingent events
directly or indirectly related to the business of the Company or the market for the Common Stock, and/or (iii) enter into any agreement (including,
without limitation, an "equity line of credit" or an "at-the-market offering") whereby the Company may sell securities at a future determined price.
Any transaction contemplated in this Section 4.2(n) shall be referred to as a "Variable Rate Transaction." Each Purchaser shall be entitled to obtain
injunctive relief against the Company to preclude any Variable Rate Transaction (without the need for the posting of any bond or similar item, for
which the Company hereby expressly and irrevocably waives the requirement), which remedy shall be in addition to any right of any Purchaser to
collect damages.

 
(o) Transactions with Affiliates. The Company shall not directly and/or indirectly enter into, renew, extend or be a party to, any transaction

or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, lending funds to an Affiliate and/or borrowing funds from any Affiliate, the
purchase, sale, lease, transfer or exchange of property, securities or assets of any kind or the rendering of services of any kind) with any officer,
director, Affiliate and/or any Affiliate of such person.

 
(p) Subsidiaries. Without the consent of the holders of a majority (by principal) of any Notes then outstanding, which consent shall not be

unreasonably withheld, delayed ,denied, or conditioned, the Company shall neither, and shall not permit any Subsidiary to, create or acquire any
additional Subsidiary nor permit any Subsidiary to, sell, assign or otherwise dispose of any Equity Interests in any Subsidiary to any Person.
Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary shall have any foreign Subsidiaries.
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(q) Participation in Future Financing.
 

(i) As long as any Notes remain outstanding, upon any issuance by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of Common Stock,
Common Stock Equivalents or debt for cash consideration, Indebtedness or a combination of units hereof, with the exception of Common
Stock or Common Stock Equivalents (A) reserved as employee shares described under the Company's option pool, (B) issued for
consideration other than cash pursuant to a merger, consolidation, acquisition, or similar business combination approved by the Board; and
(C) issued pursuant to any equipment loan or leasing arrangement, real property leasing arrangement or debt financing from a bank or
similar financial institution approved by the Company's Board of Directors (a "Subsequent Financing"), the Purchasers collectively shall
have the right to participate in up to an amount of the Subsequent Financing equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the Subsequent
Financing (the "Participation Maximum") on the same terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing.

 
(ii) At least five (5) Trading Days prior to the closing of the Subsequent Financing, the Company shall deliver to each Purchaser a

written notice of its intention to effect a Subsequent Financing (a "Pre-Notice"), which Pre-Notice shall ask such Purchaser if it wants to
review the details of such financing (such additional notice, a "Subsequent Financing Notice"). Upon the request of a Purchaser within two
(2) Trading Days of its receipt of the Pre-Notice, and only upon a request by such Purchaser, for a Subsequent Financing Notice, the
Company shall promptly, but no later than one (1) Trading Day after such request, deliver a Subsequent Financing Notice to such
Purchaser. The Subsequent Financing Notice shall describe in reasonable detail the proposed terms of such Subsequent Financing, the
amount of proceeds intended to be raised thereunder and the Person or Persons through or with whom such Subsequent Financing is
proposed to be effected and, if extant, shall include a term sheet or similar document relating thereto as an attachment.

 
(iii) Any Purchaser desiring to participate in such Subsequent Financing must, within two (2) Trading Days of its receipt of the

Subsequent Financing Notice, provide written notice to the Company if such Purchaser is willing to participate in the Subsequent
Financing (an "Acceptance Notice") and, if so, the amount of such Purchaser's participation, and a represention and warranty that such
Purchaser has such funds ready, willing, and immediately available for investment on the terms set forth in the Subsequent Financing
Notice. 

 
(iv) If the Company receives one or more Acceptance Notices in response to any specific Subsequent Financing Notice, which

Acceptance Notices seek to purchase an aggregate amount greater than the Participation Maximum, then each such Purchaser shall have
the right to purchase its Pro Rata Portion (as defined below) of the Participation Maximum and the Company may, but need not, then
effect the remaining portion of such Subsequent Financing on the terms and conditions set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice with
non-Purchaser parties.  
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(v) "Pro Rata Portion" means the ratio of (A) the initial principal amount of Notes purchased by a Purchaser participating under
this Section 4.2(q) and (B) the sum of the aggregate initial principal amount of Notes purchased by all Purchasers participating under this
Section 4.2(q).

 
(vi) The Company must provide the Purchasers with a second Subsequent Financing Notice, and the Purchasers will again have

the right of participation set forth above in this Section 4.2(q), if the Subsequent Financing subject to the initial Subsequent Financing
Notice is not consummated for any reason on the terms set forth in such Subsequent Financing Notice within thirty (30) Trading Days after
the date of the initial Subsequent Financing Notice.

 
(vii) The Company and each Purchaser agree that if any Purchaser elects to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the

transaction documents related to the Subsequent Financing shall not include any term or provision whereby such Purchaser shall be
required to agree to any restrictions on trading as to any of the Securities purchased hereunder or be required to consent to any amendment
to or termination of, or grant any waiver, release or the like under or in connection with, this Agreement, without the prior written consent
of such Purchaser, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, denied, delayed, or conditioned.

 
(viii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4.2(q) and unless otherwise agreed to by such Purchaser, the

Company shall either confirm in writing to such Purchaser that the transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been
abandoned or shall publicly disclose its intention to issue the securities in the Subsequent Financing, in either case in such a manner such
that such Purchaser will not be in possession of any material, non-public information, by the tenth (10th) Business Day following delivery
of the Subsequent Financing Notice. If by such tenth (10th) Business Day, no public disclosure regarding a transaction with respect to the
Subsequent Financing has been made, and no notice regarding the abandonment of such transaction has been received by such Purchaser,
such transaction shall be deemed to have been abandoned and such Purchaser shall not be deemed to be in possession of any material,
non-public information with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 

 
(ix) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 4.2(q) shall not apply in respect of an Exempt Issuance.

 
 

32



 
  

ARTICLE 5
CLOSING CONDITIONS

 
5.1 Closing Conditions of each Purchaser. Each Purchaser's obligation to enter into the Documents and purchase the Notes and Warrants at the

First Closing, the Second Closing, and Third Closing (as applicable and to the extent not previously fulfilled) is subject to the fulfillment of each and
every one of the following conditions prior to or contemporaneously with such Purchaser entering into the Documents and purchasing the Notes and
Warrants at the applicable Closing (unless waived by such Purchaser in writing in its sole and absolute discretion):
 

(a) Delivery of Documents. Each Purchaser shall have received from the Company each of the following (together with all Exhibits,
Schedules, and annexes to each of the following), in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to such Purchaser and its counsel and, where
applicable, duly executed and recorded (to the extent required):

 
(i) certificates of the Chief Executive Officer and Secretary of Company, certifying as of the applicable Closing Date to (A) copies

of the Articles of Incorporation and by-laws of the Company, as restated or amended as of the date of this Agreement; (B) all actions taken
and consents made by the Company and its Board of Directors and stockholders, as applicable to authorize the transactions provided for or
contemplated under this Agreement and the other Documents and the execution, delivery and performance of the Documents; (C) the
names of the directors and officers of the Company authorized to sign the Documents, together with a sample of the true signature of each
such Person; (D) that all representations and warranties of the Company made herein and/or in any of the other Documents are true and
correct in all respects; (E) that all covenants of the Company to be fulfilled herein and/or in any of the other Documents have been fulfilled
and complied with in all respects; and (F) that no default or Event of Default has occurred or is continuing under this Agreement, any of
the other Documents, or any of the Company's material agreements;

 
(ii) this Agreement;
 
(iii) the Notes issuable at the applicable Closing;
 
(iv) the Warrants issuable at the applicable Closing;
 
(v) the Security Agreement;
 
(vi) the Subsidiary Guarantee;  
 
(vii) the Patent and Trademark Agreement; 
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(viii) certificates of good standing obtained prior to the applicable Closing for Company and each Subsidiary in the jurisdiction of
each of such Person's incorporation or formation, in the principal places in which Company conducts business and in places in which each
such Person owns real estate;

 
(ix) the fully executed Transfer Agent Instruction Letter obtained prior to the applicable Closing;
 
(x) the fully executed Closing Statement obtained prior to the applicable Closing;
 
(xi) the Purchasers' UCC-1 with proof of filing thereof with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada;
 
(xii) the other Documents and in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to each Purchaser obtained prior to the applicable

Closing; and
 
(xiii) Such other documents, certificates, opinions, instruments and/or other items reasonably requested by each Purchaser and/or

its legal counsel in connection with the applicable Closing.
 

(b) Approvals. The receipt by each Purchaser of all governmental and third-party approvals necessary in connection with the continuing
operations of Company, the execution and performance of the Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby, all of which
consents/approvals shall be in full force and effect.

 
(c) Additional Conditions. The fulfillment of each and every one of the following conditions prior to or contemporaneously with the

making of the purchase of the Notes:
 

(i) Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties made by Company in or pursuant to the Documents
and all Schedules and/or Exhibits to this Agreement and/or any of the other Documents shall be true and correct in all material respects on
and as of the applicable Closing Date as if made (or given) on and as of such date (except where such representation and warranty speaks
of a specific date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such date).

 
(ii) No Events of Default. (A) No breach, event of default, Event of Default or any other event that, with the passage of time or the

giving of notice or both, would become a breach, event of default and/or an Event of Default shall have occurred or would result from the
sale of the Notes and Warrants to each Purchaser or the performance of any other transaction set forth or contemplated by any of the
Documents; and (B) no breach, event of default, Event of Default or any other event that, with the passage of time or the giving of notice
or both, would become a breach, event of default and/or an Event of Default shall have occurred under any of the Company's material
agreements.
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(iii) Fees, Etc. The Purchasers' Expenses shall have been received by the Purchasers' counsel.
 
(iv) Compliance with Laws. The Company shall have complied with all applicable federal, state and local governmental laws,

rules, regulations and ordinances in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other Documents
to which it is a party and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including, without limitation, the
Company shall have obtained all permits and qualifications required by any applicable state securities or "Blue Sky" laws for the offer and
sale of the Securities by the Company to the Purchasers).

 
(v) No Injunction. No statute, regulation, order, decree, writ, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated,

threatened in writing or endorsed by any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction which prohibits the consummation of or
which would materially modify or delay the execution and performance of the Documents and/or any of the transactions contemplated by
the Documents.

 
(vi) No Proceedings or Litigation. No action, suit or proceeding before any arbitrator or any court or governmental authority shall

have been commenced or threatened in writing, and no inquiry or investigation by any governmental authority shall have been commenced
or threatened in writing, against the Company, or any of the officers, directors or affiliates of the Company, seeking to restrain, prevent or
change the Documents and/or any of the transactions contemplated by the Documents, or seeking material damages in connection with
such Documents and/or transactions.

 
(vii) Listing of Securities. All of the Conversion Shares and Warrant Shares shall have been approved for listing or quotation on

the Principal Market, if required by the rules and regulations thereof as of the Closing Date, without regard to any exercise and conversion
limitations included in the Warrants and the Notes.

 
(viii) No Material Adverse Effect. No condition, occurrence, state of facts or event constituting a Material Adverse Effect shall

have occurred and be continuing.
 
(ix) Current Public Information. All reports, schedules, registrations, forms, statements, information and other documents

required to have been filed by the Company with the SEC since January 1, 2014, pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Exchange
Act, including all material required to have been filed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, shall have been filed with
the SEC under the Exchange Act. 
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(x) No Suspension of Trading in or Notice of Delisting of Common Stock. Trading in the Common Stock shall not have been
suspended and/or halted by the SEC, the Principal Market or FINRA. The Company shall not have received any final and non-appealable
notice that the listing or quotation of the Common Stock on the Principal Market shall be terminated on a date certain (unless, prior to
such date certain, the Common Stock is listed or quoted on any other Trading Market); trading in securities generally as reported on the
Principal Market shall not have been suspended or limited, nor shall a banking moratorium have been declared either by the U.S. or New
York State authorities; there shall not have been imposed any suspension of electronic trading or settlement services by the Depository
Trust Company ("DTC") with respect to the Common Stock that is continuing; the Company shall not have received any notice from DTC
to the effect that a suspension of electronic trading or settlement services by DTC with respect to the Common Stock is being imposed or is
contemplated (unless, prior to such suspension, DTC shall have notified the Company in writing that DTC has determined not to impose
any such suspension); nor shall there have occurred any material outbreak or escalation of hostilities or other national or international
calamity or crisis that has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse change in any U.S. financial, credit or securities
market that is continuing.

 
(xi) Completion of Due Diligence. Each Purchaser shall have completed its legal, business and financial due diligence of the

Company to its full satisfaction and shall be fully satisfied with the results thereof.
 
(xii) Purchasers' UCC-1. The Purchasers' UCC-1 shall be in form and substantially satisfactory to the Purchasers and shall have

been filed with the Secretary of State.
 

5.2 Closing Conditions of Company. The obligation of the Company to sell and issue the Notes and Warrants to the Purchasers at the applicable
Closing is subject to the fulfillment, to the Company's reasonable satisfaction, prior to or contemporary at the applicable Closing, of each of the following
conditions (unless waived by the Company):
 

(a) No Injunction. No statute, regulation, order, decree, writ, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated, threatened
in writing or endorsed by any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction that prohibits the consummation of or that would
materially modify or delay any of the transactions contemplated by the Documents. 

 
(b) Receipt of the Purchase Price. The Company shall receive at or substantially simultaneously with the applicable Closing, the Purchase

Price of each Purchaser set forth on Schedule 1 hereto (less all of the Purchasers' Expenses). 
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ARTICLE 6
MISCELLANEOUS

 
6.1 No Waiver; Modifications In Writing. No failure or delay on the part of any Purchaser in exercising any right, power or remedy pursuant to

the Documents shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or remedy preclude any other or further
exercise thereof, or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy. No amendment, modification, supplement, termination or waiver of any provision of
the Documents, nor any consent by any Purchaser to any departure by the Company therefrom, shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and
signed by such Purchaser. Any waiver of any provision of the Documents and any consent by any Purchaser to any departure by the Company from the
terms of any provision of the Documents shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given. No notice to or
demand on the Company in any case shall entitle the Company to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances.

 
6.2 Set-Off. Each Purchaser shall have the right to set-off, appropriate and apply toward payment of any of the Liabilities, in such order of

application as such Purchaser may from time to time and at any time elect, any cash, credit, deposits, accounts, securities and any other property of the
Company which is in transit to or in the possession, custody or control of such Purchaser, or any agent, bailee, or Affiliate of such Purchaser. The
Company hereby grants to Purchaser a security interest in all such property.

 
6.3 Notices. All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed effectively given: (a) upon personal delivery to

the party to be notified, (b) when sent by confirmed facsimile or e-mail if sent during normal business hours of the recipient; if not, then on the next
Business Day, (c) five (5) days after having been sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (d) one (1) day after
deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier, specifying next day delivery, with written verification of receipt:
 

If to Company:
 
Terra Tech Corp.
4700 Von Karman Ave., Suite 110
Newport Beach, California 92660
Attention: Derek Peterson, President and Chief Executive Officer
Phone: (855) 447-6967
Fax No.: (888) 330-6883  
Email: derek@terratechcorp.com 
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With copies to:
(which shall not constitute notice):
 
Baker & Hostetler LLP
600 Anton Blvd., Suite 900
Costa Mesa, California 92626
Attention: Randolf W. Katz, Esq.
Phone: (714) 966-8807
Fax No.: (714) 966-8802
Email: rwkatz@bakerlaw.com
 
If to Purchasers: 
To the address on each Purchaser's signature page.
 
With copies to:
(which shall not constitute notice):
 
Robinson Brog Leinwand Greene Genovese & Gluck P.C.
875 Third Avenue, 9th Floor
New York, New York 10022
Attention: David E. Danovitch, Esq.
Phone: (212) 603-6391
Fax No.: (212) 956-2164
Email: ded@robinsonbrog.com

 
Any party hereto may from time to time change its address for notices by giving written notice of such changed address to the other party hereto.
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6.4 Costs, Expenses and Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided herein or elsewhere, Company agrees to pay (a) on the
applicable Closing Date all of the Purchasers' Expenses, including the non-accountable sum of $40,000 to [          ] for its due diligence fees and expenses
and a sum not to exceed $35,000 to Robinson Brog Leinwand Greene Genovese & Gluck P.C. for its legal fees, which shall be paid at the First Closing;
(b) a commitment fee of $100,000 for the reservation of funds by the Purchasers for the Additional Closings, which shall be paid at the First Closing; (c)
any broker fees and commissions pursuant to Schedule 7.8 for each closing; and (d) following the applicable Closing Date, all fees and expenses incurred
by the Purchasers (including, but not limited to, outside counsel to the Purchasers) in connection with the administration and enforcement of the
Documents and/or and the purchase of the Notes. In addition, Company shall pay any and all stamp, transfer and other similar taxes payable or determined
to be payable in connection with the execution and delivery of the Documents agrees to hold each Purchaser harmless from and against any and all
liabilities with respect to or resulting from any delay in paying or omission to pay such taxes. If any suit or proceeding arising from any of the foregoing is
brought against any Purchaser, Company, to the extent and in the manner directed by Purchaser, will resist and defend such suit or proceeding or cause the
same to be resisted and defended by counsel approved by such Purchaser. If Company shall fail to do any act or thing which each has covenanted and/or
agreed to do under this Agreement and/or any other Document or any representation or warranty on the part of Company contained in this Agreement
and/or any other Document shall be breached, the such Purchaser may, in its sole and absolute discretion, do the same or cause it to be done or remedy
any such breach, and may expend its funds for such purpose; and any and all amounts so expended by the Purchaser shall be repayable to such Purchaser
by Company immediately upon such Purchaser's demand therefor, with interest at a rate equal to eighteen (18%) percent during the period from and
including the date funds are so expended by such Purchaser to the date of repayment in full, and any such amounts due and owing to such Purchaser shall
be deemed to be part of the Liabilities secured hereunder and under the other Documents. The obligations of Company under this Section 6.4 shall survive
the termination of this Agreement and the discharge of the other obligations of Company under the Documents. 

 
6.5 Indemnity, Etc. In addition to the payment of expenses pursuant to Section 6.4, whether or not all and/or any of the transactions contemplated

hereby shall be consummated, Company agrees to indemnify, pay and hold each Purchaser, and such Purchaser's assignees and affiliates and their
respective officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants, auditors, and attorneys of any of them (collectively called the "Indemnities") harmless from
and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, claims, costs, expenses and disbursements of any kind
or nature whatsoever (including the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for such Indemnitees in connection with any investigative,
administrative or judicial proceeding commenced or threatened, whether or not such Indemnitee shall be designated a party thereto) that may be imposed
on, incurred by, or asserted against that Indemnitee, in any manner relating to or arising out of the SEC Reports, this Agreement and/or the other
Documents, the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other Documents, the statements contained in any term sheet
delivered by such Purchaser, the such Purchaser's agreement to purchase the Note, the use or intended use of the proceeds thereof or the exercise of any
right or remedy hereunder or under the other Documents (the "Indemnified Liabilities"); provided that Company shall have no obligation to an Indemnitee
hereunder with respect to Indemnified Liabilities directly resulting from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of that Indemnitee, as determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction by a final and nonappealable judgment. In no event shall such Purchaser and/or any of its employees, agents, partners,
affiliates, members, equity and/or debt holders, managers, officers, directors and/or other related or similar type of Person, have any liability to the
Company and/or any of its officers, directors, employees, agent, attorneys, affiliates, consultants, equity and/or debt holders except for any actions or lack
of actions of such persons that are found by a court of competent jurisdiction after the time for all appeals has passed to have resulted directly from such
Purchaser's intentional misconduct or gross negligence. 
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6.6 Counterparts; Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which counterparts, once they are
executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and all of which counterparts, taken together, shall constitute but one and the same agreement.
This Agreement and the Documents may be executed by any party to this Agreement or any of the Documents by original signature, facsimile and/or
electronic signature.

 
6.7 Binding Effects; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, each Purchaser, Company and their

respective successors, assigns, representatives and heirs. Company shall not assign any of its rights nor delegate any of its obligations under Documents
without the prior written consent of such Purchaser. The Purchaser may delegate any of its obligations under the Documents without the prior written
consent of Company and may assign any of its rights hereunder, and/or in any of the other Documents, subject only to compliance with the federal
securities laws.

 
6.8 Headings. Captions contained in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit or extend the scope

or intent of this Agreement or any provision of this Agreement and shall not affect the construction of this Agreement.
 
6.9 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the other Documents, contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect

to the transactions contemplated herein and therein and supersedes all prior representations, agreements, covenants and understandings, whether oral or
written, related to the subject matter of this Agreement and the other Documents. The Purchasers make no covenants to Company, including, but not
limited to, any commitments to provide any additional financing to Company.

 
6.10 GOVERNING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED EXCLUSIVELY IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE
OF NEW YORK WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO ANY CONFLICT OF LAWS.

 
6.11 Severability Of Provisions. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such

jurisdiction, be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement or
affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

 
6.12 Conflict. In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and any of the other Documents, the terms and provisions of the Documents so

chosen by the Purchasers shall govern and control.  
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6.13 Customer Identification - USA Patriot Act Notice; OFAC and Bank Secrecy Act. Each Purchaser hereby notifies the Company that, pursuant
to the requirements of the Act and such Purchaser's policies and practices, each Purchaser is required to obtain, verify and record certain information and
documentation that identifies the Company, which information includes the name and addresses of the Company and such other information that will
allow such Purchaser to identify the Company in accordance with the Act. In addition, the Company shall (a) ensure that no person who owns a
controlling interest in or otherwise controls the Company is or shall be listed on the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Person List or other
similar lists maintained by OFAC, the Department of the Treasury or included in any Executive Orders, (b) not use or permit the use of the proceeds of the
Notes to violate any of the foreign asset control regulations of OFAC or any enabling statute or Executive Order relating thereto, and (c) comply, and
cause any of its Subsidiaries to comply, with all applicable Bank Secrecy Act laws and regulations, as amended.

 
6 .14 JURISDICTION; WAIVER. THE COMPANY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THIS AGREEMENT IS BEING SIGNED BY THE

PURCHASERS IN PARTIAL CONSIDERATION OF THE PURCHASERS' RIGHT TO ENFORCE IN THE JURISDICTION STATED BELOW THE
TERMS AND PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THE DOCUMENTS. THE COMPANY IRREVOCABLY CONSENTS TO THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE JURISDICTION IN NEW YORK, NEW YORK AND VENUE IN ANY FEDERAL OR STATE COURT IN NEW YORK,
NEW YORK FOR SUCH PURPOSES AND WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS TO CONTEST SAID JURISDICTION AND VENUE AND ANY
OBJECTION THAT NEW YORK, NEW YORK IS NOT CONVENIENT. THE COMPANY WAIVES ANY RIGHTS TO COMMENCE ANY
ACTION AGAINST THE PURCHASERS IN ANY JURISDICTION EXCEPT NEW YORK, NEW YORK. THE PURCHASERS AND THE
COMPANY HEREBY EACH EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR
COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY ANY OF THE PARTIES AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER
WHATSOEVER RELATING TO, ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE LOAN, THE DOCUMENTS AND/OR THE
TRANSACTIONS WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF THE DOCUMENTS.

 
6.15 SERVICE OF PROCESS. SOLELY TO THE EXTENT PROVIDED BY APPLICABLE LAW, SHOULD ANY PARTY, AFTER BEING

SERVED, FAIL TO APPEAR OR ANSWER TO ANY SUMMONS, COMPLAINT, PROCESS OR PAPERS SO SERVED WITHIN THE NUMBER
OF DAYS PRESCRIBED BY LAW AFTER THE DELIVERY OR MAILING THEREOF, SUCH PARTY SHALL BE DEEMED IN DEFAULT AND
AN ORDER AND/OR JUDGMENT MAY BE ENTERED BY THE COURT AGAINST AS DEMANDED OR PRAYED FOR IN SUCH SUMMONS,
COMPLAINT, PROCESS OR PAPERS. 

 
6.16 Survival. The representations, and warranties of the Company and each Purchaser herein and/or in the other Documents shall survive the

execution and delivery hereof and the Closing Date; the obligations, Liabilities, agreements and covenants of the Company and each Purchaser set forth
herein and/or in the other Documents shall survive the execution and delivery hereof and the Closing Date, as shall all rights and remedies of the
Company and each Purchaser set forth in this Agreement and/or in any of the other Documents. 
 
 

41



 
  

6.17 No Integration. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on behalf of the Company or such affiliate, will sell,
offer for sale, or solicit offers to buy or otherwise negotiate with respect to any security (as defined in the Securities Act) which will be integrated with the
sale and/or issuance of any of the Securities in a manner which would require the registration of the Securities under the Securities Act, or require
stockholder approval, under the rules and regulations of the Trading Market for the Common Stock. The Company will take all action that is appropriate
or necessary to assure that its offerings of other securities will not be integrated for purposes of the Securities Act or the rules and regulations of the
Trading Market, with the issuance of Securities contemplated herein.

 
6.18 No Frustration. From and after the date hereof and so long as the Note is outstanding, the Company, nor any of its respective officers,

employees, directors, agents or other representatives, will, without the prior written consent of the Purchaser (which consent may be withheld, delayed or
conditioned in the Purchaser's sole discretion), effect, enter into, announce or recommend to its stockholders any agreement, plan, arrangement or
transaction (or issue, amend or waive any security) that would or would reasonably be expected to restrict, delay, conflict with or impair the ability or
right of the Company to timely perform its obligations under the Documents.

 
6.19 Finders' Fees. Each party represents that it neither is nor will be obligated for any finders' fee or commission in connection with this

transaction, except as set forth herein. The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser from any liability for any commission or
compensation in the nature of a finders' fee (and the costs and expenses of defending against such liability or asserted liability) for which the Company or
any of its officers, employees or representatives is responsible.

 
6.20 Rule 144 Availability; Public Information . At all times from the date hereof through and including the date none of the Securities is

outstanding (the "Required Period"), the Company shall ensure the Purchaser can sell the Underlying Shares pursuant to and in accordance with Rule 144
under the Securities Act. If (i) at any time during the Required Period, the Company shall fail for any reason to satisfy the current public information
requirement under Rule 144(c) under the Securities Act (a "Public Information Failure"), or (ii) the Company shall fail to take such action as is reasonably
requested by the Purchaser to enable the Purchaser to sell the any of the Securities pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act (including, without
limitation, delivering all such legal opinions, consents, certificates, resolutions and instructions to the Company's transfer agent as may be reasonably
requested from time to time by the Purchaser and otherwise fully cooperate with Purchaser and Purchaser's broker to effect such sale of the Securities
pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act) (a "Process Failure"), then, in either case, in addition to the Purchaser's other available remedies, the
Company shall pay to the Purchaser, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, by reason of any such delay in or reduction of its ability to sell any
Underlying Shares, an amount in cash equal to five percent (5.0%) of the conversion amount of the Notes being requested by the Purchaser pursuant to a
Notice of Conversion (as defined in the Notes) that such Purchaser is unable to receive shares without a restrictive legend due to a Public Information
Failure or Process Failure, as applicable, to be paid on such day that such Notice of Conversion is submitted, and on every thirtieth (30th) day (pro rated
for periods totaling less than thirty (30) days) thereafter until (a) in the case of a Process Failure, the date such Process Failure is cured, or (b) in the case
of a Public Information Failure, the earlier of (1) the date such Public Information Failure is cured and (2) such time that such public information is no
longer required for the Purchaser to transfer the Securities pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act. The payments to which the Purchaser shall be
entitled pursuant to this Section 6.20 are referred to herein as "Rule 144 Failure Payments". Rule 144 Failure Payments shall be paid on the earlier of (i)
the last day of the calendar month during which such Rule 144 Failure Payments are incurred and (ii) the third (3rd) Trading Day after the event or failure
giving rise to the Rule 144 Failure Payments is cured. 

 
6.21 Termination. This Agreement can be terminated by the mutual written consent of the Company and the Purchasers. 
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ARTICLE 7
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF EACH PURCHASER

 
7.1 Authorization. Such Purchaser has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to

consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and has taken all action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the
performance of its obligations hereunder and thereunder and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

 
7.2 Accredited Investor Status; Investment Experience. Such Purchaser is an "accredited investor" as that term is defined in Rule 501(a) of

Regulation D.
 
7.3 Reliance on Exemptions. Such Purchaser understands that the Notes and Warrants are being offered and sold to it in reliance on specific

exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying in part upon the truth and
accuracy of, and such Purchaser's compliance with, the representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of such Purchaser
set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of such Purchaser to acquire the Notes and Warrants.

 
7.4 Information. Such Purchaser has been furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and

materials relating to the offer and sale of the Note and Warrants, which have been requested by such Purchaser. Such Purchaser has been afforded the
opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Such Purchaser understands that its investment in the Notes and Warrants involves a high degree of risk.
Such Purchaser has sought such accounting, legal and tax advice as it has considered necessary to make an informed investment decision with respect to
its acquisition of its Note and Warrants. The Purchaser is relying solely on their own accounting, legal and tax advisors, and not on any statements of the
Company or any of its agents or representatives, for such accounting, legal and tax advice with respect to its acquisition of the Notes and Warrants.

 
7.5 No Governmental Review. Such Purchaser understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or governmental

agency has passed on or made any recommendation or endorsement of the Notes, the Warrants, or the fairness or suitability of the investment in the Note
nor have such authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of the Notes and Warrants. 

 
7.6 Validity; Enforcement; No Conflicts. This Agreement and each Document to which such Purchaser is a party have been duly and validly

authorized, executed and delivered on behalf of such Purchaser and shall constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of such Purchaser enforceable
against such Purchaser in accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by general principles of equity or to
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, liquidation and other similar laws relating to, or affecting generally, the enforcement of
applicable creditors' rights and remedies.
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7.7 Organization and Standing. Such Purchaser is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of where it was
formed.

 
7.8 Brokers or Finders. Other than as disclosed on Schedule 7.8, such Purchaser represents and warrants, to the best of its knowledge, that no

finder, broker, agent, financial advisor or other intermediary, nor any purchaser representative or any broker-dealer acting as a broker, are entitled to any
compensation in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

 
7.9 Ability to Perform. There are no actions, suits, proceedings or investigations pending against such Purchaser or such Purchaser's assets before

any court or governmental agency (nor is there any threat thereof) that would impair in any way such Purchaser's ability to enter into and fully perform its
commitments and obligations under this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.  

 
7.10 Certain Transactions and Confidentiality. Each Purchaser has not directly or indirectly, nor has any Person acting on behalf of or pursuant to

any understanding with such Purchaser, executed any purchases or sales, including Short Sales, of the securities of the Company during the period
commencing as of the time that such Purchaser first received a term sheet (written or oral) from the Company or any other Person representing the
Company setting forth the material terms of the transactions contemplated hereunder and ending immediately prior to the execution hereof.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of a Purchaser that is a multi-managed investment vehicle, whereby separate portfolio managers manage
separate portions of such Purchaser's assets and the portfolio managers have no direct knowledge of the investment decisions made by the portfolio
managers managing other portions of such Purchaser's assets, the representation set forth above shall only apply with respect to the portion of assets
managed by the portfolio manager that made the investment decision to purchase the Securities covered by this Agreement. Other than to other Persons
party to this Agreement or to such Purchaser's representatives, including, without limitation, its officers, directors, partners, legal and other advisors,
employees, agents and Affiliates, such Purchaser has maintained the confidentiality of all disclosures made to it in connection with this transaction
(including the existence and terms of this transaction). Notwithstanding the foregoing, for avoidance of doubt, nothing contained herein shall constitute a
representation or warranty, or preclude any actions, with respect to the identification of the availability of, or securing of, available shares to borrow in
order to effect Short Sales or similar transactions in the future. 
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7.11 Transfer or Resale. Such Purchaser understands that (i) the Securities have not been and are not being registered under the Securities Act or
any state securities laws, and may not be offered for sale, sold, assigned or transferred unless (A) subsequently registered thereunder, (B) such Purchaser
shall have delivered to the Company an opinion of counsel, in a form reasonably acceptable to the Company, to the effect that such Securities to be sold,
assigned or transferred may be sold, assigned or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, or (C) such Purchaser provides the
Company with reasonable assurance that such Securities can be sold, assigned or transferred pursuant to Rule 144 or Rule 144A promulgated under the
Securities Act, as amended, (or a successor rule thereto) (collectively, "Rule 144"); (ii) any sale of the Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be
made only in accordance with the terms of Rule 144 and, further, if Rule 144 is not applicable, any resale of the Securities under circumstances in which
the seller (or the Person) through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that term is defined in the Securities Act) may require
compliance with some other exemption under the Securities Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder; and (iii) except as otherwise provided
in the Documents, neither the Company nor any other Person is under any obligation to register the Securities under the Securities Act or any state
securities laws or to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Securities may be pledged in
connection with a bona fide margin account or other loan or financing arrangement secured by the Securities and such pledge of Securities shall not be
deemed to be a transfer, sale or assignment of the Securities hereunder, and such Purchaser in effecting a pledge of Securities shall not be required to
provide the Company with any notice thereof or otherwise make any delivery to the Company pursuant to this Agreement or any other Document,
including, without limitation, this Section 7.11.

 
7.12 Legends. Such Purchaser understands that the certificates or other instruments representing the Notes and the Warrants, and until such time

as the resale of the Conversion Shares have been registered under the Securities Act, the stock certificates representing the Conversion Shares and Warrant
Shares, except as set forth below, shall bear any legend as required by the "blue sky" laws of any state and a restrictive legend in substantially the
following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of such stock certificates):
 

NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES
INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED
OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN A FORM REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE
COMPANY, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A
UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE
MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.
 
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the holder of the Securities upon which it is
stamped or issue to such holder by electronic delivery at the applicable balance account at DTC, if, unless otherwise required by state securities laws, (i)
such Securities are registered for resale under the Securities Act, (ii) in connection with a sale, assignment or other transfer, such holder provides the
Company with an opinion of counsel, in a form reasonably acceptable to the Company, to the effect that such sale, assignment or transfer of the Securities
may be made without registration under the applicable requirements of the Securities Act, or (iii) the Securities can be sold, assigned or transferred
pursuant to Rule 144 or Rule 144A. The Company shall cause its counsel to issue a legal opinion to the Transfer Agent if required by the Transfer
Agent to effect the removal of the legend hereunder. The Company shall be responsible for the fees of its transfer agent and all DTC fees associated
with such issuance. 
 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered as of the date first above written.
 
COMPANY: TERRA TECH CORP.

By:
Name: Derek Peterson
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
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PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGES TO TERRA TECH SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized signatories
as of the date first indicated above.
 
Name of Purchaser: _____________________________________________________________________
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Purchaser: ______________________________________________
 
Name of Authorized Signatory: ____________________________________________________________
 
Title of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________________________
 
Email Address of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________________
 
Facsimile Number of Authorized Signatory: ___________________________________________________
 
Address for Notice to Purchaser:___________________________________________________________
 
Address for Delivery of Securities to Purchaser (if not same as address for notice): _____________________
 
EIN Number: __________________________________________________________________________
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Annex A
 

CLOSING STATEMENT
 
Pursuant to the attached Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of May [__], 2016, the purchasers shall purchase Notes from Terra Tech Corp. (the
"Company"). All funds will be wired into an account maintained by the Company. All funds will be disbursed in accordance with this Closing Statement.
 
Disbursement Date: _______, 2016
 
I. PURCHASE PRICE
 

Gross Proceeds to be Received
 

II. DISBURSEMENTS    
 
  $  
  $  
  $  
  $  
  $  
     
Total Amount Disbursed:  $  
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WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:
 
Bank Name: Account Number:

Beneficiary:

Routing Number:
Beneficiary Address:

Duly executed this __th day of _____, 2016:
 
 

49



 
 

EXHIBIT A
 

Form of Note
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EXHIBIT B
 

Form of Warrants
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EXHIBIT C
 

Form of Transfer Agent Irrevocable Instruction Letter
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EXHIBIT D
 

Security Agreement
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EXHIBIT E
 

Patent and Trademark Security Agreement
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EXHIBIT F
 

Subsidiary Guarantee
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EXHIBIT 10.34
 

SUBSIDIARY GUARANTEE
  

Subsidiary Guarantee, dated as of May 27, 2016 (this "Guarantee"), made by each of the signatories hereto (together with any other entity that
may become a party hereto as provided herein, the "Guarantors"), in favor of the purchasers signatory (together with their permitted assigns, the "Secured
Parties") to that certain Securities Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement"), dated as of the date hereof, among Terra Tech Corp., a Nevada
corporation (the "Company") and the Secured Parties.

 
W I T N E S S E T H:

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company has agreed to sell and issue to the Secured Parties, and the Secured Parties have

agreed to purchase from the Company the Notes, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein; and
 
WHEREAS, each Guarantor will directly benefit from the extension of credit to the Company represented by the issuance of the Notes;
 
WHEREAS, as a material inducement to the Secured Parties to enter into the Purchase Agreement and all the other agreements to be entered into

in connection therewith, the Secured Parties have requested the Guarantors and the Company enter into this Guarantee, and
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, each Guarantor hereby agrees with the Secured Parties as follows:

 
1. Definitions. Unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined in the Purchase Agreement and used herein shall have the meanings given to them

in the Purchase Agreement. The words "hereof," "herein," "hereto" and "hereunder" and words of similar import when used in this Guarantee shall refer to
this Guarantee as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Guarantee, and Section and Schedule references are to this Guarantee unless
otherwise specified. The meanings given to terms defined herein shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such terms. The
following terms shall have the following meanings: 

 
"Guarantee" means this Subsidiary Guarantee, as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.
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"Obligations" means, in addition to all other costs and expenses of collection incurred by Secured Parties in enforcing any of such
Obligations and/or this Guarantee, all of the liabilities and obligations (primary, secondary, direct, contingent, sole, joint or several) due or to
become due, or that are now or may be hereafter contracted or acquired, or owing to, of the Company or any Guarantor to the Secured Parties,
including, without limitation, all obligations under this Guarantee, the Note, that certain Security Agreement (the "Security Agreement"), dated as
of the date hereof, among the Company, the Guarantors and the Secured Parties, and any other instruments, agreements or other documents
executed and/or delivered in connection herewith or therewith, in each case, whether now or hereafter existing, voluntary or involuntary, direct or
indirect, absolute or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, whether or not jointly owed with others, and whether or not from time to time decreased
or extinguished and later increased, created or incurred, and all or any portion of such obligations or liabilities that are paid, to the extent all or any
part of such payment is avoided or recovered directly or indirectly from any of the Secured Parties as a preference, fraudulent transfer or otherwise
as such obligations may be amended, supplemented, converted, extended or modified from time to time. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the term "Obligations" shall include, without limitation: (i) principal of, and interest on the Notes and the loans extended pursuant
thereto; (ii) any and all other fees, indemnities, costs, obligations and liabilities of the Company or any Guarantor from time to time under or in
connection with this Guarantee, the Notes, the Security Agreement, and any other instruments, agreements or other documents executed and/or
delivered in connection herewith or therewith; and (iii) all amounts (including but not limited to post-petition interest) in respect of the foregoing
that would be payable but for the fact that the obligations to pay such amounts are unenforceable or not allowable due to the existence of a
bankruptcy, reorganization or similar proceeding involving the Company or any Guarantor.

 
2. Guarantee.

 
(a) Guarantee.
 

(i) The Guarantors hereby, jointly and severally, unconditionally and irrevocably, guarantee to the Secured Parties and their
respective successors, endorsees, transferees and assigns, the prompt and complete payment and performance when due (whether at the
stated maturity, by acceleration or otherwise) of the Obligations.

 
(ii) Anything herein or in any other Transaction Document to the contrary notwithstanding, the maximum liability of each

Guarantor hereunder and under the other Transaction Documents shall in no event exceed the amount which can be guaranteed by such
Guarantor under applicable federal and state laws, including laws relating to the insolvency of debtors, fraudulent conveyance or transfer
or laws affecting the rights of creditors generally (after giving effect to the right of contribution established in Section 2(b)).  



 
(iii) Each Guarantor agrees that the Obligations may at any time and from time to time exceed the amount of the liability of such

Guarantor hereunder without impairing the guarantee contained in this Section 2 or affecting the rights and remedies of the Secured Parties
hereunder. 
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(iv) The guarantee contained in this Section 2 shall remain in full force and effect until all the Obligations and the obligations of
each Guarantor under the guarantee contained in this Section 2 shall have been satisfied by indefeasible payment in full.

 
(v) No payment made by the Company, any of the Guarantors, any other guarantor or any other Person or received or collected by

the Secured Parties from the Company, any of the Guarantors, any other guarantor or any other Person by virtue of any action or



proceeding or any set-off or appropriation or application at any time or from time to time in reduction of or in payment of the Obligations
shall be deemed to modify, reduce, release or otherwise affect the liability of any Guarantor hereunder which shall, notwithstanding any
such payment (other than any payment made by such Guarantor in respect of the Obligations or any payment received or collected from
such Guarantor in respect of the Obligations), remain liable for the Obligations up to the maximum liability of such Guarantor hereunder
until the Obligations are indefeasibly paid in full.

 
(vi) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Guarantee, with respect to any defaulted non-monetary Obligations the

specific performance of which by the Guarantors is not reasonably possible (e.g. the issuance of the Company's Common Stock), the
Guarantors shall only be liable for making the Secured Parties whole on a monetary basis for the Company's failure to perform such
Obligations in accordance with the Transaction Documents.
 
(b) Right of Contribution. Subject to Section 2(c), each Guarantor hereby agrees that to the extent that a Guarantor shall have paid more

than its proportionate share of any payment made hereunder, such Guarantor shall be entitled to seek and receive contribution from and against any
other Guarantor hereunder which has not paid its proportionate share of such payment. Each Guarantor's right of contribution shall be subject to
the terms and conditions of Section 2(c). The provisions of this Section 2(b) shall in no respect limit the obligations and liabilities of any Guarantor
to the Secured Parties and each Guarantor shall remain liable to the Secured Parties for the full amount guaranteed by such Guarantor hereunder.

 
(c) No Subrogation. Notwithstanding any payment made by any Guarantor hereunder or any set-off or application of funds of any

Guarantor by the Secured Parties, no Guarantor shall be entitled to be subrogated to any of the rights of the Secured Parties against the Company or
any other Guarantor or any collateral security or guarantee or right of offset held by the Secured Parties for the payment of the Obligations, nor
shall any Guarantor seek or be entitled to seek any contribution or reimbursement from the Company or any other Guarantor in respect of payments
made by such Guarantor hereunder, until all amounts owing to the Secured Parties by the Company on account of the Obligations are indefeasibly
paid in full. If any amount shall be paid to any Guarantor on account of such subrogation rights at any time when all of the Obligations shall not
have been paid in full, such amount shall be held by such Guarantor in trust for the Secured Parties, segregated from other funds of such Guarantor,
and shall, forthwith upon receipt by such Guarantor, be turned over to the Agent in the exact form received by such Guarantor (duly indorsed by
such Guarantor to the Agent, if required), applied against the Obligations, whether matured or unmatured, in such order as the Secured Parties may
determine.
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(d) Amendments, Etc. With Respect to the Obligations. Each Guarantor shall remain obligated hereunder notwithstanding that, without
any reservation of rights against any Guarantor and without notice to or further assent by any Guarantor, any demand for payment of any of the
Obligations made by the Secured Parties may be rescinded by the Secured Parties and any of the Obligations continued, and the Obligations, or the
liability of any other Person upon or for any part thereof, or any collateral security or guarantee therefor or right of offset with respect thereto, may,
from time to time, in whole or in part, be renewed, extended, amended, modified, accelerated, compromised, waived, surrendered or released by the
Secured Parties, and the Purchase Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and any other documents executed and delivered in connection
therewith may be amended, modified, supplemented or terminated, in whole or in part, as the Secured Parties may deem advisable from time to
time, and any collateral security, guarantee or right of offset at any time held by the Secured Parties for the payment of the Obligations may be
sold, exchanged, waived, surrendered or released. The Secured Parties shall have no obligation to protect, secure, perfect or insure any Lien at any
time held by them as security for the Obligations or for the guarantee contained in this Section 2 or any property subject thereto. 

 
(e) Guarantee Absolute and Unconditional. Each Guarantor waives any and all notice of the creation, renewal, extension or accrual of any

of the Obligations and notice of or proof of reliance by the Secured Parties upon the guarantee contained in this Section 2 or acceptance of the
guarantee contained in this Section 2; the Obligations, and any of them, shall conclusively be deemed to have been created, contracted or incurred,
or renewed, extended, amended or waived, in reliance upon the guarantee contained in this Section 2; and all dealings between the Company and
any of the Guarantors, on the one hand, and the Secured Parties, on the other hand, likewise shall be conclusively presumed to have been had or
consummated in reliance upon the guarantee contained in this Section 2. Each Guarantor waives to the extent permitted by law diligence,
presentment, protest, demand for payment and notice of default or nonpayment to or upon the Company or any of the Guarantors with respect to the
Obligations. Each Guarantor understands and agrees that the guarantee contained in this Section 2 shall be construed as a continuing, absolute and
unconditional guarantee of payment and performance without regard to (a) the validity or enforceability of the Purchase Agreement or any other
Transaction Document, any of the Obligations or any other collateral security therefor or guarantee or right of offset with respect thereto at any
time or from time to time held by the Secured Parties, (b) any defense, set-off or counterclaim (other than a defense of payment or performance or
fraud by Secured Parties) which may at any time be available to or be asserted by the Company or any other Person against the Secured Parties, or
(c) any other circumstance whatsoever (with or without notice to or knowledge of the Company or such Guarantor) which constitutes, or might be
construed to constitute, an equitable or legal discharge of the Company for the Obligations, or of such Guarantor under the guarantee contained in
this Section 2, in bankruptcy or in any other instance. When making any demand hereunder or otherwise pursuing its rights and remedies hereunder
against any Guarantor, the Secured Parties may, but shall be under no obligation to, make a similar demand on or otherwise pursue such rights and
remedies as they may have against the Company, any other Guarantor or any other Person or against any collateral security or guarantee for the



Obligations or any right of offset with respect thereto, and any failure by the Secured Parties to make any such demand, to pursue such other rights
or remedies or to collect any payments from the Company, any other Guarantor or any other Person or to realize upon any such collateral security
or guarantee or to exercise any such right of offset, or any release of the Company, any other Guarantor or any other Person or any such collateral
security, guarantee or right of offset, shall not relieve any Guarantor of any obligation or liability hereunder, and shall not impair or affect the
rights and remedies, whether express, implied or available as a matter of law, of the Secured Parties against any Guarantor. For the purposes hereof,
"demand" shall include the commencement and continuance of any legal proceedings. 
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(f) Reinstatement. The guarantee contained in this Section 2 shall continue to be effective, or be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any
time payment, or any part thereof, of any of the Obligations is rescinded or must otherwise be restored or returned by the Secured Parties upon the
insolvency, bankruptcy, dissolution, liquidation or reorganization of the Company or any Guarantor, or upon or as a result of the appointment of a
receiver, intervenor or conservator of, or trustee or similar officer for, the Company or any Guarantor or any substantial part of its property, or
otherwise, all as though such payments had not been made.

 
(g ) Payments. Each Guarantor hereby guarantees that payments hereunder will be paid to the Secured Parties without set-off or



counterclaim in U.S. dollars at the address set forth or referred to in the Signature Pages to the Purchase Agreement.
 

3. Representations and Warranties. Each Guarantor hereby makes the following representations and warranties to Secured Parties as of the date
hereof:
 

(a) Organization and Qualification. The Guarantor is a corporation, duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws
of the applicable jurisdiction set forth on Schedule 1, with the requisite corporate power and authority to own and use its properties and assets and
to carry on its business as currently conducted. The Guarantor has no subsidiaries other than those identified as such on the Disclosure Schedules to
the Purchase Agreement. The Guarantor is duly qualified to do business and is in good standing as a foreign corporation in each jurisdiction in
which the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified
or in good standing, as the case may be, could not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) adversely affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any
of this Guaranty in any material respect, (y) have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, prospects, or financial condition of
the Guarantor or (z) adversely impair in any material respect the Guarantor's ability to perform fully on a timely basis its obligations under this
Guaranty (a "Material Adverse Effect"). 

 
(b) Authorization; Enforcement. The Guarantor has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate the

transactions contemplated by this Guaranty, and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder. The execution and delivery of this Guaranty by
the Guarantor and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on
the part of the Guarantor. This Guaranty has been duly executed and delivered by the Guarantor and constitutes the valid and binding obligation of
the Guarantor enforceable against the Guarantor in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, liquidation or similar laws relating to, or affecting generally the enforcement of, creditors'
rights and remedies or by other equitable principles of general application.
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(c) No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Guaranty by the Guarantor and the consummation by the Guarantor of
the transactions contemplated thereby do not and will not (i) conflict with or violate any provision of its Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws or
(ii) conflict with, constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, or give to others any
rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to which the Guarantor is a party, or (iii)
result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other restriction of any court or governmental authority to
which the Guarantor is subject (including Federal and State securities laws and regulations), or by which any material property or asset of the
Guarantor is bound or affected, except in the case of each of clauses (ii) and (iii), such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations,
cancellations and violations as could not, individually or in the aggregate, have or result in a Material Adverse Effect. The business of the
Guarantor is not being conducted in violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of any governmental authority, except for violations which,
individually or in the aggregate, do not have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(d) Consents and Approvals. The Guarantor is not required to obtain any consent, waiver, authorization or order of, or make any filing or

registration with, any court or other federal, state, local, foreign or other governmental authority or other person in connection with the execution,
delivery and performance by the Guarantor of this Guaranty.

 
(e) Purchase Agreement. The representations and warranties of the Company set forth in the Purchase Agreement as they relate to such

Guarantor, each of which is hereby incorporated herein by reference, are true and correct as of each time such representations are deemed to be
made pursuant to such Purchase Agreement, and the Secured Parties shall be entitled to rely on each of them as if they were fully set forth herein,
provided that each reference in each such representation and warranty to the Company's knowledge shall, for the purposes of this Section 3, be
deemed to be a reference to such Guarantor's knowledge.  

 
(f) Foreign Law. If applicable, each Guarantor has consulted with appropriate foreign legal counsel with respect to any of the above

representations for which non-U.S. law is applicable. Such foreign counsel have advised each applicable Guarantor that such counsel knows of no



reason why any of the above representations would not be true and accurate. Such foreign counsel were provided with copies of this Subsidiary
Guarantee and the Transaction Documents prior to rendering their advice. 
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4. Covenants.
 

(a) Each Guarantor covenants and agrees with the Secured Parties that, from and after the date of this Guarantee until the Obligations shall



have been indefeasibly paid in full, such Guarantor shall take, and/or shall refrain from taking, as the case may be, each commercially reasonable
action that is necessary to be taken or not taken, as the case may be, so that no Event of Default (as defined in the Notes) is caused by the failure to
take such action or to refrain from taking such action by such Guarantor.

 
(b) So long as any of the Obligations are outstanding, unless Secured Parties holding at least 67% of the aggregate principal amount of the

then outstanding Notes shall otherwise consent in writing, each Guarantor will not directly or indirectly on or after the date of this Guarantee:
 
i. Enter into, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any indebtedness for borrowed money of any kind, including but not limited

to, a guarantee, on or with respect to any of its property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired or any interest therein or any income or
profits therefrom;

 
ii. Enter into, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any liens of any kind, on or with respect to any of its property or assets now

owned or hereafter acquired or any interest therein or any income or profits therefrom except for permitted Liens;
 
iii. Amend its certificate of incorporation, bylaws or other charter documents so as to adversely affect any rights of any Secured

Party;
 
iv. Repay, repurchase or offer to repay, repurchase or otherwise acquire more than a de minimis number of shares of its securities

or debt obligations;
 
v. Pay cash dividends on any equity securities of the Company;
 
vi. Enter into any transaction with any Affiliate of the Guarantor which would be required to be disclosed in any public filing of

the Company with the Commission, unless such transaction is made on an arm's-length basis and expressly approved by a majority of the
disinterested directors of the Company (even if less than a quorum otherwise required for board approval); or 

 
vii. Enter into any agreement with respect to any of the foregoing.
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5. Miscellaneous.
 

(a) Amendments in Writing. None of the terms or provisions of this Guarantee may be waived, amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified except in writing by the Secured Parties.

 
(b) Notices. All notices, requests and demands to or upon the Secured Parties or any Guarantor hereunder shall be effected in the manner

provided for in the Purchase Agreement, provided that any such notice, request or demand to or upon any Guarantor shall be addressed to such
Guarantor at its notice address set forth on Schedule 5(b).

 
(c) No Waiver By Course Of Conduct; Cumulative Remedies. The Secured Parties shall not by any act (except by a written instrument

pursuant to Section 5(a)), delay, indulgence, omission or otherwise be deemed to have waived any right or remedy hereunder or to have acquiesced
in any default under the Transaction Documents or Event of Default. No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Secured
Parties, any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege
hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. A waiver by the Secured
Parties of any right or remedy hereunder on any one occasion shall not be construed as a bar to any right or remedy which the Secured Parties
would otherwise have on any future occasion. The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative, may be exercised singly or concurrently and
are not exclusive of any other rights or remedies provided by law.

 
(d) Enforcement Expenses; Indemnification.

 
(i) Each Guarantor agrees to pay, or reimburse the Secured Parties for, all its reasonable costs and expenses incurred in collecting

against such Guarantor under the guarantee contained in Section 2 or otherwise enforcing or preserving any rights under this Guarantee
and the other Transaction Documents to which such Guarantor is a party, including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and
disbursements of counsel to the Secured Parties.

 
(ii) Each Guarantor agrees to pay, and to save the Secured Parties harmless from, any and all liabilities with respect to, or resulting

from any delay in paying, any and all stamp, excise, sales or other taxes which may be payable or determined to be payable in connection
with any of the transactions contemplated by this Guarantee. 



 
(iii) Each Guarantor agrees to pay, and to save the Secured Parties harmless from, any and all liabilities, obligations, losses,

damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever with respect to the
execution, delivery, enforcement, performance and administration of this Guarantee to the extent the Company would be required to do so
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.

 
 

8



 
  

(iv) The agreements in this Section shall survive repayment of the Obligations and all other amounts payable under the Purchase
Agreement and the other Transaction Documents.

 
(e) Successor and Assigns. This Guarantee shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of each Guarantor and shall inure to the

benefit of the Secured Parties and their respective successors and assigns; provided that no Guarantor may assign, transfer or delegate any of its
rights or obligations under this Guarantee without the prior written consent of the Secured Parties.



 
(f) Set-Off. Each Guarantor hereby irrevocably authorizes the Secured Parties at any time and from time to time while an Event of Default

under any of the Transaction Documents shall have occurred and be continuing, without notice to such Guarantor or any other Guarantor, any such
notice being expressly waived by each Guarantor, to set-off and appropriate and apply any and all deposits, credits, indebtedness or claims, in any
currency, in each case whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or unmatured, at any time held or owing by the Secured Parties to
or for the credit or the account of such Guarantor, or any part thereof in such amounts as the Secured Parties may elect, against and on account of
the obligations and liabilities of such Guarantor to the Secured Parties hereunder and claims of every nature and description of the Secured Parties
against such Guarantor, in any currency, whether arising hereunder, under the Purchase Agreement, any other Transaction Document or otherwise,
as the Secured Parties may elect, whether or not the Secured Parties have made any demand for payment and although such obligations, liabilities
and claims may be contingent or unmatured. The Secured Parties shall notify such Guarantor promptly of any such set-off and the application made
by the Secured Parties of the proceeds thereof, provided that the failure to give such notice shall not affect the validity of such set-off and
application. The rights of the Secured Parties under this Section are in addition to other rights and remedies (including, without limitation, other
rights of set-off) which the Secured Parties may have.

 
(g) Counterparts. This Guarantee may be executed by two or more of the parties to this Guarantee on any number of separate counterparts

(including by telecopy), and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument.
 
(h) Severability. Any provision of this Guarantee which is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be

ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or
unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

 
(i) Section Headings. The Section headings used in this Guarantee are for convenience of reference only and are not to affect the

construction hereof or be taken into consideration in the interpretation hereof.
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(j) Integration. This Guarantee and the other Transaction Documents represent the agreement of the Guarantors and the Secured Parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof, and there are no promises, undertakings, representations or warranties by the Secured Parties
relative to subject matter hereof and thereof not expressly set forth or referred to herein or in the other Transaction Documents.  

 
(k) Governing Laws. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Guarantee shall be

governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles of conflicts
of law thereof. Each of the Company and the Guarantors agree that all proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and defense of the
transactions contemplated by this Guarantee (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders,
partners, members, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough
of Manhattan. Each of the Company and the Guarantors hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts
sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any
transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any proceeding, any claim that it is
not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such proceeding is improper. Each party hereto hereby irrevocably waives personal
service of process and consents to process being served in any such proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or
overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Guarantee and agrees that such
service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any
right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Each party hereto hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law, any and all right to trial by jury in any legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this Guarantee or the transactions contemplated hereby.

 
(l) Acknowledgements. Each Guarantor hereby acknowledges that:

 
(i) It has been advised by counsel in the negotiation, execution and delivery of this Guarantee and the other Transaction

Documents to which it is a party;
 



(ii) The Secured Parties have no fiduciary relationship with or duty to any Guarantor arising out of or in connection with this
Guarantee or any of the other Transaction Documents, and the relationship between the Guarantors, on the one hand, and the Secured
Parties, on the other hand, in connection herewith or therewith is solely that of debtor and creditor; and

 
(iii) No joint venture is created hereby or by the other Transaction Documents or otherwise exists by virtue of the transactions

contemplated hereby among the Guarantors and the Secured Parties. 
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(m) Additional Guarantors. The Company shall cause each of its subsidiaries formed or acquired on or subsequent to the date hereof to
become a Guarantor for all purposes of this Guarantee by executing and delivering an Assumption Agreement in the form of Annex 1 hereto.

 
(n) Release of Guarantors. Each Guarantor will be released from all liability hereunder concurrently with the indefeasible repayment in full

of all amounts owed under the Purchase Agreement, the Notes and the other Transaction Documents.
 
(o) Seniority. The Obligations of each of the Guarantors hereunder rank senior in priority to any other Indebtedness (as defined in the



Purchase Agreement) of such Guarantor.
 

(p) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH GUARANTOR AND, BY ACCEPTANCE OF THE BENEFITS HEREOF, THE PURCHASERS, HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS
GUARANTEE AND FOR ANY COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.

 
[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has caused this Guarantee to be duly executed and delivered as of the date first above
written.
 
GROWOP TECHNOLOGY LTD.  

 
By:  

Name:  
Title:  



 
 

EDIBLE GARDEN CORP.  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

MEDIFARM, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

MEDIFARM I, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  
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MEDIFARM II, LLC  

 
By:  

Name:  
Title:  

 
 

IVXX, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

MEDIFARM I REAL ESTATE, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

IVXX, INC.  
 



By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

Consented and agreed to:  
 

TERRA TECH CORP.  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  
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SCHEDULE 1
 

GUARANTORS
 

The following are the names, notice addresses and jurisdiction of organization of each Guarantor.
 

NAME/ADDRESS JURISDICTION OF INCORPORATION COMPANY PERCENTAGE
OWNERSHIP

GrowOp Technology Ltd. Nevada 100%
Edible Garden Corp. Nevada 100%
MediFarm, LLC Nevada 60%
MediFarm I, LLC Nevada 50%



MediFarm II, LLC Nevada 55%
IVXX, LLC Nevada 100%
MediFarm I Real Estate, LLC Nevada 50%
IVXX, Inc. California 100%
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DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES
(Subsidiary Guarantee)

 
Schedule 5(b)

 
Subsidiary Address for Notice



GrowOp Technology Ltd.
Edible Garden Corp.

MediFarm, LLC
MediFarm I, LLC
MediFarm II, LLC

IVXX, LLC
MediFarm I Real Estate, LLC

IVXX, Inc.
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ANNEX 1 TO
 

SUBSIDIARY GUARANTEE
 

Assumption Agreement, dated as of ____ __, ______ made by ______________________________, a ______________ corporation (the
"Additional Guarantor"), in favor of the Secured Parties pursuant to the Purchase Agreement referred to below. All capitalized terms not defined herein
shall have the meaning ascribed to them in such Purchase Agreement.
 

W I T N E S S E T H :
 

WHEREAS, Terra Tech Corp., a Nevada corporation (the "Company") and the Secured Parties have entered into a Securities Purchase



Agreement, dated as of May [__], 2016 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Purchase Agreement");
 
WHEREAS, in connection with the Purchase Agreement, the Subsidiaries of the Company (other than the Additional Guarantor) have entered

into the Subsidiary Guarantee, dated as of May [__], 2016 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Guarantee") in favor
of the Secured Parties;

 
WHEREAS, the Purchase Agreement requires the Additional Guarantor to become a party to the Guarantee; and
 
WHEREAS, the Additional Guarantor has agreed to execute and deliver this Assumption Agreement in order to become a party to the Guarantee;

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED:

 
1. Guarantee. By executing and delivering this Assumption Agreement, the Additional Guarantor, as provided in Section 5(m) of the Guarantee,

hereby becomes a party to the Guarantee as a Guarantor thereunder with the same force and effect as if originally named therein as a Guarantor and,
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, hereby expressly assumes all obligations and liabilities of a Guarantor thereunder. The information set
forth in Annex 1 hereto is hereby added to the information set forth in Schedule 1 to the Guarantee. The Additional Guarantor hereby represents and
warrants that each of the representations and warranties contained in Section 3 of the Guarantee is true and correct on and as the date hereof as to such
Additional Guarantor (after giving effect to this Assumption Agreement) as if made on and as of such date.

 
2 . Governing Law. THIS ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Assumption Agreement to be duly executed and delivered as of the date first above
written.
 
 [ADDITIONAL GUARANTOR]  
    

By:  
  Name:  
  Title:  
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EXHIBIT 10.35
 

SECURITY AGREEMENT
 

This SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of May 27, 2016 (this "Agreement"), is among Terra Tech Corp. , a Nevada corporation (the
"Company"), all of the Subsidiaries of the Company (such subsidiaries, the "Guarantors" and, together with the Company, the "Debtors") and the holders
of the Company's 12% Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Notes due 24 months following their issuance, in the aggregate principal amount of up to
$3,250,000 (the "Notes") signatory hereto, their endorsees, transferees and assigns (collectively, the "Secured Parties").
 

W I T N E S S E T H:
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (as defined in the Notes), the Secured Parties have severally agreed to extend the loans to the
Company evidenced by the Notes;

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a certain Subsidiary Guarantee, dated as of the date hereof (the "Guarantee"), the Guarantors have jointly and severally

agreed to guarantee and act as surety for payment of such Notes; and
 
WHEREAS, in order to induce the Secured Parties to extend the loans evidenced by the Notes, each Debtor has agreed to execute and deliver to

the Secured Parties this Agreement and to grant the Secured Parties, pari passu with each other Secured Party and through the Agent (as defined in
Section 18 hereof), a security interest in certain property of such Debtor to secure the prompt payment, performance and discharge in full of all of the
Company's obligations under the Notes and the Guarantors' obligations under the Guarantee.

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements herein contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
 
1. Certain Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth in this Section 1. Terms used but not

otherwise defined in this Agreement that are defined in Article 9 of the UCC (such as "account", "chattel paper", "commercial tort claim", "deposit
account", "document", "equipment", "fixtures", "general intangibles", "goods", "instruments", "inventory", "investment property", "letter-of-credit rights",
"proceeds" and "supporting obligations") shall have the respective meanings given such terms in Article 9 of the UCC. 
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(a) "Collateral" means the collateral in which the Secured Parties are granted a security interest by this Agreement and which shall
include the following personal property of the Debtors, whether presently owned or existing or hereafter acquired or coming into existence, wherever
situated, and all additions and accessions thereto and all substitutions and replacements thereof, and all proceeds, products and accounts thereof,
including, without limitation, all proceeds from the sale or transfer of the Collateral and of insurance covering the same and of any tort claims in
connection therewith, and all dividends, interest, cash, notes, securities, equity interest or other property at any time and from time to time acquired,
receivable or otherwise distributed in respect of, or in exchange for, any or all of the Pledged Securities (as defined below):

 
(i) All goods, including, without limitation, (A) all machinery, equipment, computers, motor vehicles, trucks, tanks, boats, ships,

appliances, furniture, special and general tools, fixtures, test and quality control devices and other equipment of every kind and nature and wherever
situated, together with all documents of title and documents representing the same, all additions and accessions thereto, replacements therefor, all parts
therefor, and all substitutes for any of the foregoing and all other items used and useful in connection with any Debtor's businesses and all improvements
thereto; and (B) all inventory;    

(ii) All contract rights and other general intangibles, including, without limitation, all partnership interests, membership
interests, stock or other securities, rights under any of the Organizational Documents, agreements related to the Pledged Securities, licenses, distribution
and other agreements, computer software (whether "off-the-shelf", licensed from any third party or developed by any Debtor), computer software
development rights, leases, franchises, customer lists, quality control procedures, grants and rights, goodwill, Intellectual Property and income tax
refunds;

 
(iii) All accounts, together with all instruments, all documents of title representing any of the foregoing, all rights in any

merchandising, goods, equipment, motor vehicles and trucks which any of the same may represent, and all right, title, security and guaranties with respect
to each account, including any right of stoppage in transit;

 
(iv) All documents, letter-of-credit rights, instruments and chattel paper;
 
(v) All commercial tort claims;
 
(vi) All deposit accounts and all cash (whether or not deposited in such deposit accounts);
 
(vii) All investment property;
 



(viii) All supporting obligations; 
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(ix) All files, records, books of account, business papers, and computer programs; and
 



(x) the products and proceeds of all of the foregoing Collateral set forth in clauses (i)-(ix) above.
 

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the "Collateral" shall include all investment property and general intangibles respecting
ownership and/or other equity interests in each Guarantor, including, without limitation, the shares of capital stock and the other equity interests listed
on Schedule H hereto (as the same may be modified from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof), and any other shares of capital stock and/or other
equity interests of any other direct or indirect subsidiary of any Debtor obtained in the future, and, in each case, all certificates representing such shares
and/or equity interests and, in each case, all rights, options, warrants, stock, other securities and/or equity interests that may hereafter be received,
receivable or distributed in respect of, or exchanged for, any of the foregoing and all rights arising under or in connection with the Pledged Securities,
including, but not limited to, all dividends, interest and cash.

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute an assignment of any asset which, in the event of an assignment,

becomes void by operation of applicable law or the assignment of which is otherwise prohibited by applicable law (in each case to the extent that such
applicable law is not overridden by Sections 9-406, 9-407 and/or 9408 of the UCC or other similar applicable law); provided, however, that, to the extent
permitted by applicable law, this Agreement shall create a valid security interest in such asset and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, this
Agreement shall create a valid security interest in the proceeds of such asset.

 
(b) "Intellectual Property" means the collective reference to all rights, priorities and privileges relating to intellectual property, whether

arising under United States, multinational or foreign laws or otherwise, including, without limitation, (i) all copyrights arising under the laws of the
United States, any other country or any political subdivision thereof, whether registered or unregistered and whether published or unpublished, all
registrations and recordings thereof, and all applications in connection therewith, including, without limitation, all registrations, recordings and
applications in the United States Copyright Office, (ii) all letters patent of the United States, any other country or any political subdivision thereof, all
reissues and extensions thereof, and all applications for letters patent of the United States or any other country and all divisions, continuations and
continuations-in-part thereof, (iii) all trademarks, trade names, corporate names, company names, business names, fictitious business names, trade dress,
service marks, logos, domain names and other source or business identifiers, and all goodwill associated therewith, now existing or hereafter adopted or
acquired, all registrations and recordings thereof, and all applications in connection therewith, whether in the United States Patent and Trademark Office
or in any similar office or agency of the United States, any State thereof or any other country or any political subdivision thereof, or otherwise, and all
common law rights related thereto, (iv) all trade secrets arising under the laws of the United States, any other country or any political subdivision thereof,
(v) all rights to obtain any reissues, renewals or extensions of the foregoing, (vi) all licenses for any of the foregoing, and (vii) all causes of action for
infringement of the foregoing.

 
(c) "Majority-in-Interest" means, at any time of determination, the majority-in-interest (based on then-outstanding principal amounts of

Notes at the time of such determination) of the Secured Parties. 
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(d) "Necessary Endorsement" means undated stock powers endorsed in blank or other proper instruments of assignment duly executed
and such other instruments or documents as the Agent (as that term is defined below) may reasonably request.

 
(e) "Obligations" means all of the liabilities and obligations (primary, secondary, direct, contingent, sole, joint or several) due or to

become due, or that are now or may be hereafter contracted or acquired, or owing to, of any Debtor to the Secured Parties, including, without limitation,
all obligations under this Agreement, the Notes, the Guarantee and any other instruments, agreements or other documents executed and/or delivered in
connection herewith or therewith, in each case, whether now or hereafter existing, voluntary or involuntary, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent,
liquidated or unliquidated, whether or not jointly owed with others, and whether or not from time to time decreased or extinguished and later increased,
created or incurred, and all or any portion of such obligations or liabilities that are paid, to the extent all or any part of such payment is avoided or
recovered directly or indirectly from any of the Secured Parties as a preference, fraudulent transfer or otherwise as such obligations may be amended,
supplemented, converted, extended or modified from time to time. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the term "Obligations" shall include,
without limitation: (i) principal of, and interest on the Notes and the loans extended pursuant thereto; (ii) any and all other fees, indemnities, costs,
obligations and liabilities of the Debtors from time to time under or in connection with this Agreement, the Notes, the Guarantee and any other
instruments, agreements or other documents executed and/or delivered in connection herewith or therewith; and (iii) all amounts (including but not limited
to post-petition interest) in respect of the foregoing that would be payable but for the fact that the obligations to pay such amounts are unenforceable or
not allowable due to the existence of a bankruptcy, reorganization or similar proceeding involving any Debtor.    

(f) "Organizational Documents" means, with respect to any Debtor, the documents by which such Debtor was organized (such as articles
of incorporation, certificate of incorporation, certificate of limited partnership or articles of organization, and including, without limitation, any
certificates of designation for preferred stock or other forms of preferred equity) and which relate to the internal governance of such Debtor (such as
bylaws, a partnership agreement or an operating, limited liability or members agreement).

 
(g) "Permitted Liens" means the following:

 
(i) Liens imposed by law for taxes that are not yet due or are being contested in good faith, which in each case, have been

appropriately reserved for;
 
(ii) Carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's and other like Liens imposed by law, arising in the

ordinary course of business and securing obligations that are not overdue by more than thirty (30) days or are being contested in good faith;
 
(iii) Pledges and deposits made in the ordinary course of business in compliance with workers' compensation, unemployment

insurance and other social security laws or regulations;
 
(iv) Deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts, leases, statutory obligations, surety and appeal bonds,



performance bonds and other obligations of a like nature, in each case in the ordinary course of business; 
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(v) Liens under this Agreement; and
 



(vi) Any other liens in favor of the Secured Parties.
 

(h) "Pledged Interests" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4(j).
 
(i) "Pledged Securities" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4(i).

 
(j) "UCC" means the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of New York and any other applicable law of any state or states that has

jurisdiction with respect to all, or any portion of, the Collateral or this Agreement, from time to time. It is the intent of the parties that defined terms in the
UCC should be construed in their broadest sense so that the term "Collateral" will be construed in its broadest sense. Accordingly if there are, from time to
time, changes to defined terms in the UCC that broaden the definitions, they are incorporated herein and if existing definitions in the UCC are broader
than the amended definitions, the existing ones shall be controlling.    

 
2. Grant of Security Interest in Collateral. As an inducement for the Secured Parties to extend the loans as evidenced by the Notes and to

secure the complete and timely payment, performance and discharge in full, as the case may be, of all of the Obligations, each Debtor hereby
unconditionally and irrevocably pledges, grants and hypothecates to the Secured Parties a perfected, first priority security interest in and to, a lien upon
and a right of set-off against all of their respective right, title and interest of whatsoever kind and nature in and to, the Collateral (a "Security Interest" and,
collectively, the "Security Interests").

 
3. Delivery of Certain Collateral. Contemporaneously or prior to the execution of this Agreement, each Debtor shall deliver or cause to be

delivered to the Agent (a) any and all certificates and other instruments representing or evidencing the Pledged Securities, and (b) any and all certificates
and other instruments or documents representing any of the other Collateral, in each case, together with all Necessary Endorsements. The Debtors are,
contemporaneously with the execution hereof, delivering to Agent, or have previously delivered to Agent, a true and correct copy of each Organizational
Document governing any of the Pledged Securities.
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4 . Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements of the Debtors. Except as set forth under the corresponding Section of the
disclosure schedules delivered to the Secured Parties concurrently herewith (the "Disclosure Schedules"), which Disclosure Schedules shall be deemed a
part hereof, each Debtor represents and warrants to, and covenants and agrees with, the Secured Parties as follows:
 

(a) Each Debtor has the requisite corporate, partnership, limited liability company or other power and authority to enter into this
Agreement and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder. The execution, delivery and performance by each Debtor of this Agreement and the
filings contemplated therein have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of such Debtor and no further action is required by such Debtor.
This Agreement has been duly executed by each Debtor. This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of each Debtor, enforceable
against each Debtor in accordance with its terms except as such enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization and
similar laws of general application relating to or affecting the rights and remedies of creditors and by general principles of equity.

 
(b) The Debtors have no place of business or offices where their respective books of account and records are kept (other than temporarily

at the offices of its attorneys or accountants) or places where Collateral is stored or located, except as set forth on Schedule A attached hereto. Except as
specifically set forth on Schedule A, each Debtor is the record owner of the real property where such Collateral is located, and there exist no mortgages or
other liens on any such real property except for Permitted Liens (as defined in the Notes) as set forth on Schedule A. Except as disclosed on Schedule A,
none of such Collateral is in the possession of any consignee, bailee, warehouseman, agent or processor.    

 
(c) Except for Permitted Liens (as defined in the Notes) and as set forth on Schedule B attached hereto, the Debtors are the sole owners

of the Collateral (except for non-exclusive licenses granted by any Debtor in the ordinary course of business), free and clear of any liens, security interests,
encumbrances, rights or claims, and are fully authorized to grant the Security Interests. Except as set forth on Schedule C attached hereto, there is not on
file in any governmental or regulatory authority, agency or recording office an effective financing statement, security agreement, license or transfer or any
notice of any of the foregoing (other than those that will be filed in favor of the Secured Parties pursuant to this Agreement) covering or affecting any of
the Collateral. Except as set forth on Schedule C attached hereto and except pursuant to this Agreement, as long as this Agreement shall be in effect, the
Debtors shall not execute and shall not knowingly permit to be on file in any such office or agency any other financing statement or other document or



instrument (except to the extent filed or recorded in favor of the Secured Parties pursuant to the terms of this Agreement). 
 
(d) No written claim has been received that any Collateral or any Debtor's use of any Collateral violates the rights of any third party.

There has been no adverse decision to any Debtor's claim of ownership rights in or exclusive rights to use the Collateral in any jurisdiction or to any
Debtor's right to keep and maintain such Collateral in full force and effect, and there is no proceeding involving said rights pending or, to the best
knowledge of any Debtor, threatened before any court, judicial body, administrative or regulatory agency, arbitrator or other governmental authority.  
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(e) Each Debtor shall at all times maintain its books of account and records relating to the Collateral at its principal place of business and
its Collateral at the locations set forth on Schedule A attached hereto and may not relocate such books of account and records or tangible Collateral unless
it delivers to the Secured Parties at least thirty (30) days prior to such relocation (i) written notice of such relocation and the new location thereof (which
must be within the United States) and (ii) evidence that appropriate financing statements under the UCC and other necessary documents have been filed
and recorded and other steps have been taken to perfect the Security Interests to create in favor of the Secured Parties a valid, perfected and continuing
perfected first priority lien in the Collateral.

 



(f) This Agreement creates in favor of the Secured Parties a valid first priority security interest in the Collateral, subject only to Permitted
Liens (as defined in the Notes), securing the payment and performance of the Obligations. Upon making the filings described in the immediately following
paragraph, all security interests created hereunder in any Collateral which may be perfected by filing Uniform Commercial Code financing statements
shall have been duly perfected. Except for (i) the filing of the Uniform Commercial Code financing statements referred to in the immediately following
paragraph, (ii) the recordation of the Intellectual Property Security Agreement (as defined in Section 4(p) hereof) with respect to copyrights and copyright
applications in the United States Copyright Office referred to in paragraph (mm), (iii) the recordation of the Intellectual Property Security Agreement (as
defined in Section 4(p) hereof) with respect to patents and trademarks of the Debtors in the United States Patent and Trademark Office referred to in
paragraph (oo), (iv) the execution and delivery of deposit account control agreements satisfying the requirements of Section 9-104(a)(2) of the UCC with
respect to each deposit account of the Debtors, (v) if there is any investment property or deposit account included as Collateral that can be perfected by
"control" through an account control agreement, the execution and delivery of securities account control agreements satisfying the requirements of 9-106
of the UCC with respect to each such investment property of the Debtors, and (vi) the delivery of the certificates and other instruments provided in
Section 3, Section 4(aa) and Section 4(cc), no action is necessary to create, perfect or protect the security interests created hereunder. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, except for the foregoing, no consent of any third parties and no authorization, approval or other action by, and no notice to or
filing with, any governmental authority or regulatory body is required for (x) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, (y) the creation
or perfection of the Security Interests created hereunder in the Collateral or (z) the enforcement of the rights of the Agent and the Secured Parties
hereunder.    

 
(g) Each Debtor hereby authorizes the Agent to file one or more financing statements under the UCC, with respect to the Security

Interests, with the proper filing and recording agencies in any jurisdiction deemed proper by it.
 
(h) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Debtors does not (i) violate any of the provisions of any

Organizational Documents of any Debtor or any judgment, decree, order or award of any court, governmental body or arbitrator or any applicable law,
rule or regulation applicable to any Debtor or (ii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become
a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice, lapse of time or both) of, any
agreement, credit facility, debt or other instrument (evidencing any Debtor's debt or otherwise) or other understanding to which any Debtor is a party or
by which any property or asset of any Debtor is bound or affected. If any, all required consents (including, without limitation, from stockholders or
creditors of any Debtor) necessary for any Debtor to enter into and perform its obligations hereunder have been obtained. 
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(i) The capital stock and other equity interests listed on Schedule H hereto (the "Pledged Securities") represent all of the capital stock
and other equity interests of the Guarantors, and represent all capital stock and other equity interests owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. All of
the Pledged Securities are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and the Company is the legal and beneficial owner of the Pledged Securities, free
and clear of any lien, security interest or other encumbrance except for the security interests created by this Agreement and other Permitted Liens (as
defined in the Notes).

 
(j) The ownership and other equity interests in partnerships and limited liability companies (if any) included in the Collateral (the

"Pledged Interests") by their express terms do not provide that they are securities governed by Article 8 of the UCC and are not held in a securities
account or by any financial intermediary.

 
(k) Except for Permitted Liens (as defined in the Notes), each Debtor shall at all times maintain the liens and Security Interests provided

for hereunder as valid and perfected, first priority liens and security interests in the Collateral in favor of the Secured Parties until this Agreement and the
Security Interest hereunder shall be terminated pursuant to Section 14 hereof. Each Debtor hereby agrees to defend the same against the claims of any and
all persons and entities. Each Debtor shall safeguard and protect all Collateral for the account of the Secured Parties. At the request of the Agent, each
Debtor will sign and deliver to the Agent on behalf of the Secured Parties at any time or from time to time one or more financing statements pursuant to
the UCC in form reasonably satisfactory to the Agent and will pay the cost of filing the same in all public offices wherever filing is, or is deemed by the
Agent to be, necessary or desirable to effect the rights and obligations provided for herein. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each Debtor
shall pay all fees, taxes and other amounts necessary to maintain the Collateral and the Security Interests hereunder, and each Debtor shall obtain and
furnish to the Agent from time to time, upon demand, such releases and/or subordinations of claims and liens which may be required to maintain the
priority of the Security Interests hereunder.    

 
(l) No Debtor will transfer, pledge, hypothecate, encumber, license, sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Collateral (except for non-

exclusive licenses granted by a Debtor in its ordinary course of business, sales of inventory by a Debtor in its ordinary course of business and the
replacement of worn-out or obsolete equipment by a Debtor in its ordinary course of business) without the prior written consent of a Majority-in-Interest.

 
(m) Each Debtor shall keep and preserve its equipment, inventory and other tangible Collateral in good condition, repair and order and

shall not operate or locate any such Collateral (or cause to be operated or located) in any area excluded from insurance coverage.
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(n) Each Debtor shall maintain with financially sound and reputable insurers, insurance with respect to the Collateral, including
Collateral hereafter acquired, against loss or damage of the kinds and in the amounts customarily insured against by entities of established reputation
having similar properties similarly situated and in such amounts as are customarily carried under similar circumstances by other such entities and
otherwise as is prudent for entities engaged in similar businesses but in any event sufficient to cover the full replacement cost thereof. Each Debtor shall
cause each insurance policy issued in connection herewith to provide, and the insurer issuing such policy to certify to the Agent, that (a) the Agent will be
named as lender-loss-payee and additional insured under each such insurance policy; (b) if such insurance be proposed to be cancelled or materially
changed for any reason whatsoever, such insurer will promptly notify the Agent and such cancellation or change shall not be effective as to the Agent for
at least thirty (30) days after receipt by the Agent of such notice, unless the effect of such change is to extend or increase coverage under the policy; and
(c) the Agent will have the right (but no obligation) at its election to remedy any default in the payment of premiums within thirty (30) days of notice from
the insurer of such default. If no Event of Default (as defined in the Notes) exists and if the proceeds arising out of any claim or series of related claims do
not exceed $100,000, loss payments in each instance will be applied by the applicable Debtor to the repair and/or replacement of property with respect to
which the loss was incurred to the extent reasonably feasible, and any loss payments or the balance thereof remaining, to the extent not so applied, shall be
payable to the applicable Debtor; provided, however, that payments received by any Debtor after an Event of Default occurs and is continuing or in excess
of $100,000 for any occurrence or series of related occurrences, upon approval by Agent, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed,
denied or conditioned, loss payments in each instance will be applied by the applicable Debtor to the repair and/or replacement of property with respect to
which the loss was incurred to the extent reasonably feasible, and any loss payments or the balance thereof remaining, to the extent not so applied, shall be
paid to the Agent on behalf of the Secured Parties and, if received by such Debtor, shall be held in trust for the Secured Parties and immediately paid over
to the Agent unless otherwise directed in writing by the Agent. Copies of such policies or the related certificates, in each case, naming the Agent as lender-
loss-payee and additional insured shall be delivered to the Agent at least annually and at the time any new policy of insurance is issued.

 
(o) Each Debtor shall, within ten (10) days of obtaining knowledge thereof, advise the Secured Parties, in sufficient detail, of any material

adverse change in the Collateral, and of the occurrence of any event that would have a material adverse effect on the value of the Collateral or on the
Secured Parties' security interest, through the Agent, therein.    

 
(p) Each Debtor shall promptly execute and deliver to the Agent such further deeds, mortgages, assignments, security agreements,

financing statements or other instruments, documents, certificates and assurances and take such further action as the Agent may from time to time request
and may in its sole discretion deem necessary to perfect, protect or enforce the Secured Parties' security interest in the Collateral, including, without
limitation, if applicable, the execution and delivery of a separate security agreement with respect to each Debtor's Intellectual Property ("Intellectual
Property Security Agreement") in which the Secured Parties have been granted a security interest hereunder, substantially in a form reasonably acceptable
to the Agent, which Intellectual Property Security Agreement, other than as stated therein, shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof.

 
(q) Upon reasonable prior notice (so long as no Event of Default has occurred or continuing, which in either such event, no prior notice

is required), each Debtor shall permit the Agent and its representatives and agents to inspect the Collateral during normal business hours and to make
copies of records pertaining to the Collateral as may be reasonably requested by the Agent from time to time. 
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(r) Each Debtor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to diligently pursue and seek to preserve, enforce and collect any rights, claims,
causes of action and accounts receivable in respect of the Collateral.

 
(s) Each Debtor shall promptly notify the Secured Parties in sufficient detail upon becoming aware of any attachment, garnishment,

execution or other legal process levied against any Collateral and of any other information received by such Debtor that may materially affect the value of
the Collateral, the Security Interest or the rights and remedies of the Secured Parties hereunder.

 
(t) All information heretofore, herein or hereafter supplied to the Secured Parties by or on behalf of any Debtor with respect to the

Collateral is accurate and complete in all material respects as of the date furnished.
 
(u) The Debtors shall at all times preserve and keep in full force and effect their respective valid existence and good standing and any

rights and franchises material to its business.
 
(v) No Debtor will change its name, type of organization, jurisdiction of organization, organizational identification number (if it has

one), legal or corporate structure, or identity, or add any new fictitious name unless it provides at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the Secured
Parties of such change and, at the time of such written notification, such Debtor provides any financing statements or fixture filings necessary to perfect
and continue the perfection of the Security Interests granted and evidenced by this Agreement.

 
(w) Except in the ordinary course of business, no Debtor may consign any of its inventory or sell any of its inventory on bill-and-hold,

sale-or-return, sale-on-approval, or other conditional terms of sale without the consent of the Agent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed,
denied, or conditioned.

 
(x) No Debtor may relocate its chief executive office to a new location without providing thirty (30) days' prior written notification

thereof to the Secured Parties and so long as, at the time of such written notification, such Debtor provides any financing statements or fixture filings
necessary to perfect and continue the perfection of the Security Interests granted and evidenced by this Agreement.
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(y) Each Debtor was organized and remains organized solely under the laws of the state set forth next to such Debtor's name
in Schedule D attached hereto, which Schedule D sets forth each Debtor's organizational identification number or, if any Debtor does not have one, states
that one does not exist.

 
(z) (i) The actual name of each Debtor is the name set forth in Schedule D attached hereto; (ii) no Debtor has any trade names except as

set forth on Schedule E attached hereto; (iii) no Debtor has used any name other than that stated in the preamble hereto or as set forth on Schedule E for
the preceding five (5) years; and (iv) no entity has merged into any Debtor or been acquired by any Debtor within the past five years except as set forth
on Schedule E.
 

(aa) At any time and from time to time that any Collateral consists of instruments, certificated securities or other items that require or
permit possession by the secured party to perfect the security interest created hereby, the applicable Debtor shall deliver such Collateral to the Agent.

 
(bb) Each Debtor, in its capacity as issuer, hereby agrees to comply with any and all orders and instructions of Agent regarding the

Pledged Interests consistent with the terms of this Agreement without the further consent of any Debtor as contemplated by Section 8-106 (or any
successor section) of the UCC. Further, each Debtor agrees that it shall not enter into a similar agreement (or one that would confer "control" within the
meaning of Article 8 of the UCC) with any other person or entity.

 
(cc) Each Debtor shall cause all tangible chattel paper constituting Collateral to be delivered to the Agent, or, if such delivery is not

possible, then to cause such tangible chattel paper to contain a legend noting that it is subject to the security interest created by this Agreement. To the
extent that any Collateral consists of electronic chattel paper, the applicable Debtor shall cause the underlying chattel paper to be "marked" within the
meaning of Section 9105 of the UCC (or successor Section thereto).

 
(dd) If there is any investment property or deposit account included as Collateral that can be perfected by "control" through an account

control agreement, the applicable Debtor shall cause such an account control agreement, in form and substance in each case satisfactory to the Agent, to
be entered into and delivered to the Agent for the benefit of the Secured Parties.

 
(ee) To the extent that any Collateral consists of letter-of-credit rights, the applicable Debtor shall cause the issuer of each underlying

letter of credit to consent to an assignment of the proceeds thereof to the Secured Parties.
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(ff) To the extent that any Collateral is in the possession of any third party, the applicable Debtor shall join with the Agent in notifying
such third party of the Secured Parties' security interest in such Collateral and shall use its best efforts to obtain an acknowledgement and agreement from
such third party with respect to the Collateral, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Agent.

 
(gg) If any Debtor shall at any time hold or acquire a commercial tort claim, such Debtor shall promptly notify the Secured Parties in a

writing signed by such Debtor of the particulars thereof and grant to the Secured Parties in such writing a security interest therein and in the proceeds
thereof, all upon the terms of this Agreement, with such writing to be in form and substance satisfactory to the Agent.

 
(hh) Each Debtor shall immediately provide written notice to the Secured Parties of any and all accounts which arise out of contracts

with any governmental authority and, to the extent necessary to perfect or continue the perfected status of the Security Interests in such accounts and
proceeds thereof, shall execute and deliver to the Agent an assignment of claims for such accounts and cooperate with the Agent in taking any other steps
required, in its judgment, under the Federal Assignment of Claims Act or any similar federal, state or local statute or rule to perfect or continue the
perfected status of the Security Interests in such accounts and proceeds thereof.

 
(ii) Each Debtor shall cause each subsidiary of such Debtor to immediately become a party hereto (an "Additional Debtor"), by

executing and delivering an Additional Debtor Joinder in substantially the form of Annex A attached hereto and comply with the provisions hereof
applicable to the Debtors. Concurrently therewith, the Additional Debtor shall deliver replacement schedules for, or supplements to all other Schedules to
(or referred to in) this Agreement, as applicable, which replacement schedules shall supersede, or supplements shall modify, the Schedules then in effect.
The Additional Debtor shall also deliver such opinions of counsel, authorizing resolutions, good standing certificates, incumbency certificates,
organizational documents, financing statements and other information and documentation as the Agent may reasonably request. Upon delivery of the
foregoing to the Agent, the Additional Debtor shall be and become a party to this Agreement with the same rights and obligations as the Debtors, for all
purposes hereof as fully and to the same extent as if it were an original signatory hereto and shall be deemed to have made the representations, warranties
and covenants set forth herein as of the date of execution and delivery of such Additional Debtor Joinder, and all references herein to the "Debtors" shall
be deemed to include each Additional Debtor.

 
(jj) Each Debtor shall vote the Pledged Securities to comply with the covenants and agreements set forth herein and in the Notes.
 
(kk) Each Debtor shall register the pledge of the applicable Pledged Securities on the books of such Debtor. Each Debtor shall notify

each issuer of Pledged Securities to register the pledge of the applicable Pledged Securities in the name of the Secured Parties on the books of such issuer.
Further, except with respect to certificated securities delivered to the Agent, the applicable Debtor shall deliver to Agent an acknowledgement of pledge
(which, where appropriate, shall comply with the requirements of the relevant UCC with respect to perfection by registration) signed by the issuer of the
applicable Pledged Securities, which acknowledgement shall confirm that: (a) it has registered the pledge on its books and records; and (b) at any time
directed by Agent during the continuation of an Event of Default, such issuer will transfer the record ownership of such Pledged Securities into the name
of any designee of Agent, will take such steps as may be necessary to effect the transfer, and will comply with all other instructions of Agent regarding
such Pledged Securities without the further consent of the applicable Debtor.
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(ll) In the event that, upon an occurrence of an Event of Default, Agent shall sell all or any of the Pledged Securities to another party or
parties (herein called the "Transferee") or shall purchase or retain all or any of the Pledged Securities, each Debtor shall, to the extent applicable: (i)
deliver to Agent or the Transferee, as the case may be, the articles of incorporation, bylaws, minute books, stock certificate books, corporate seals, deeds,
leases, indentures, agreements, evidences of indebtedness, books of account, financial records and all other Organizational Documents and records of the
Debtors and their direct and indirect subsidiaries (but not including any items subject to the attorney-client privilege related to this Agreement or any of
the transactions hereunder); (ii) use its best efforts to obtain resignations of the persons then serving as officers and directors of the Debtors and their
direct and indirect subsidiaries, if so requested; and (iii) use its best efforts to obtain any approvals that are required by any governmental or regulatory
body in order to permit the sale of the Pledged Securities to the Transferee or the purchase or retention of the Pledged Securities by Agent and allow the
Transferee or Agent to continue the business of the Debtors and their direct and indirect subsidiaries.

 
(mm) Without limiting the generality of the other obligations of the Debtors hereunder, each Debtor shall promptly (i) cause to be

registered at the United States Copyright Office all of its material copyrights, (ii) cause the security interest contemplated hereby with respect to all
Intellectual Property registered at the United States Copyright Office or United States Patent and Trademark Office to be duly recorded at the applicable
office, and (iii) give the Agent notice whenever it acquires (whether absolutely or by license) or creates any additional material Intellectual Property.

 
(nn) Each Debtor will from time to time, at the joint and several expense of the Debtors, promptly execute and deliver all such further

instruments and documents, and take all such further action as may be necessary or desirable, or as the Agent may reasonably request, in order to perfect
and protect any security interest granted or purported to be granted hereby or to enable the Secured Parties to exercise and enforce their rights and
remedies hereunder and with respect to any Collateral or to otherwise carry out the purposes of this Agreement.

 
(oo) Schedule F attached hereto lists all of the patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, registered copyrights, and

domain names owned by any of the Debtors as of the date hereof. Schedule F lists all material licenses in favor of any Debtor for the use of any patents,
trademarks, copyrights and domain names as of the date hereof. All material patents and trademarks of the Debtors have been duly recorded at the United
States Patent and Trademark Office and all material copyrights of the Debtors have been duly recorded at the United States Copyright Office.

 
(pp) Except as set forth on Schedule G attached hereto, none of the account debtors or other persons or entities obligated on any of the

Collateral is a governmental authority covered by the Federal Assignment of Claims Act or any similar federal, state or local statute or rule in respect of
such Collateral.

 
(qq) Until the Obligations shall have been paid and performed in full, the Company covenants that it shall promptly direct any direct or

indirect subsidiary of the Company formed or acquired after the date hereof to enter into a Subsidiary Guarantee in favor of the Secured Party, in the form
of attached as an exhibit to the Purchase Agreement.
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5. Effect of Pledge on Certain Rights. If any of the Collateral subject to this Agreement consists of nonvoting equity or ownership interests
(regardless of class, designation, preference or rights) that may be converted into voting equity or ownership interests upon the occurrence of certain
events (including, without limitation, upon the transfer of all or any of the other stock or assets of the issuer), it is agreed by Debtors that the pledge of
such equity or ownership interests pursuant to this Agreement or the enforcement of any of Agent's rights hereunder shall not be deemed to be the type of
event which would trigger such conversion rights notwithstanding any provisions in the Organizational Documents or agreements to which any Debtor is
subject or to which any Debtor is party.
 

6. Defaults. The following events shall be "Events of Default":
 

(a) The occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in the Notes) under the Notes;
 
(b) Any representation or warranty of any Debtor in this Agreement shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when

made;
 
(c) The failure by any Debtor to observe or perform any of its obligations hereunder for five (5) days after delivery to such Debtor of

notice of such failure by or on behalf of a Secured Party unless such default is capable of cure but cannot be cured within such time frame and such
Debtor is using best efforts to cure same in a timely fashion; or

 
(d) If any provision of this Agreement shall at any time for any reason be declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability

thereof shall be contested by any Debtor, or a proceeding shall be commenced by any Debtor, or by any governmental authority having jurisdiction over
any Debtor, seeking to establish the invalidity or unenforceability thereof, or any Debtor shall deny that any Debtor has any liability or obligation
purported to be created under this Agreement.
 

7. Duty to Hold in Trust
 

(a) Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and at any time thereafter, each Debtor shall, upon receipt of any revenue, income,
dividend, interest or other sums subject to the Security Interests, whether payable pursuant to the Notes or otherwise, or of any check, draft, note, trade
acceptance or other instrument evidencing an obligation to pay any such sum, hold the same in trust for the Secured Parties and shall forthwith endorse
and transfer any such sums or instruments, or both, to the Agent, pro-rata in proportion to their respective then-currently outstanding principal amount of
Notes for application to the satisfaction of the Obligations (and if any Notes is not outstanding, pro-rata in proportion to the initial purchases of the
remaining Notes). 
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(b) If any Debtor shall become entitled to receive or shall receive any securities or other property (including, without limitation, shares of
Pledged Securities or instruments representing Pledged Securities acquired after the date hereof, or any options, warrants, rights or other similar property
or certificates representing a dividend, or any distribution in connection with any recapitalization, reclassification or increase or reduction of capital, or
issued in connection with any reorganization of such Debtor or any of its direct or indirect subsidiaries) in respect of the Pledged Securities (whether as an
addition to, in substitution of, or in exchange for, such Pledged Securities or otherwise), such Debtor agrees to (i) accept the same as the agent of the
Secured Parties; (ii) hold the same in trust on behalf of and for the benefit of the Secured Parties; and (iii) to deliver any and all certificates or instruments
evidencing the same to Agent on or before the close of business on the fifth (5 th) business day following the receipt thereof by such Debtor, in the exact
form received together with the Necessary Endorsements, to be held by Agent subject to the terms of this Agreement as Collateral.
 

8. Rights and Remedies Upon Default.
 

(a) Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and at any time thereafter, the Secured Parties, acting through the Agent, shall have the
right to exercise all of the remedies conferred hereunder and under the Notes, and the Secured Parties shall have all the rights and remedies of a secured
party under the UCC. Without limitation, the Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, shall have the following rights and powers:
 

(i) The Agent shall have the right to take possession of the Collateral and, for that purpose, enter, with the aid and assistance of
any person, any premises where the Collateral, or any part thereof, is or may be placed and remove the same, and each Debtor shall assemble the
Collateral and make it available to the Agent at places which the Agent shall reasonably select, whether at such Debtor's premises or elsewhere, and make
available to the Agent, without rent, all of such Debtor's respective premises and facilities for the purpose of the Agent taking possession of, removing or
putting the Collateral in saleable or disposable form. 

 
(ii) Upon notice to the Debtors by Agent, all rights of each Debtor to exercise the voting and other consensual rights which it

would otherwise be entitled to exercise and all rights of each Debtor to receive the dividends and interest which it would otherwise be authorized to
receive and retain, shall cease. Upon such notice, Agent shall have the right to receive, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, any interest, cash dividends
or other payments on the Collateral and, at the option of Agent, to exercise in such Agent's discretion all voting rights pertaining thereto. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, Agent shall have the right (but not the obligation) to exercise all rights with respect to the Collateral as it were the sole and
absolute owner thereof, including, without limitation, to vote and/or to exchange, at its sole discretion, any or all of the Collateral in connection with a
merger, reorganization, consolidation, recapitalization or other readjustment concerning or involving the Collateral or any Debtor or any of its direct or
indirect subsidiaries.   
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(iii) The Agent shall have the right to operate the business of each Debtor using the Collateral and shall have the right to assign,
sell, lease or otherwise dispose of and deliver all or any part of the Collateral, at public or private sale or otherwise, either with or without special
conditions or stipulations, for cash or on credit or for future delivery, in such parcel or parcels and at such time or times and at such place or places, and
upon such terms and conditions as the Agent may deem commercially reasonable, all without (except as shall be required by applicable statute and cannot
be waived) advertisement or demand upon or notice to any Debtor or right of redemption of a Debtor, which are hereby expressly waived. Upon each such
sale, lease, assignment or other transfer of Collateral, the Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, may, unless prohibited by applicable law which
cannot be waived, purchase all or any part of the Collateral being sold, free from and discharged of all trusts, claims, right of redemption and equities of
any Debtor, which are hereby waived and released.

 
(iv) The Agent shall have the right (but not the obligation) to notify any account debtors and any obligors under instruments or

accounts to make payments directly to the Agent, on behalf of the Secured Parties, and to enforce the Debtors' rights against such account debtors and
obligors.

 
(v) The Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, may (but is not obligated to) direct any financial intermediary or any other

person or entity holding any investment property to transfer the same to the Agent, on behalf of the Secured Parties, or its designee.
 
(vi) The Agent may (but is not obligated to) transfer any or all Intellectual Property registered in the name of any Debtor at the

United States Patent and Trademark Office and/or Copyright Office into the name of the Secured Parties or any designee or any purchaser of any
Collateral.
 

(b) The Agent shall comply with any applicable law in connection with a disposition of Collateral and such compliance will not be
considered adversely to affect the commercial reasonableness of any sale of the Collateral. The Agent may sell the Collateral without giving any
warranties and may specifically disclaim such warranties. If the Agent sells any of the Collateral on credit, the Debtors will only be credited with
payments actually made by the purchaser. In addition, each Debtor waives (except as shall be required by applicable statute and cannot be waived) any
and all rights that it may have to a judicial hearing in advance of the enforcement of any of the Agent's rights and remedies hereunder, including, without
limitation, its right following an Event of Default to take immediate possession of the Collateral and to exercise its rights and remedies with respect
thereto.

 
(c) For the purpose of enabling the Agent to further exercise rights and remedies under this Section 8 or elsewhere provided by

agreement or applicable law, each Debtor hereby grants to the Agent, for the benefit of the Agent and the Secured Parties, an irrevocable, nonexclusive
license (exercisable without payment of royalty or other compensation to such Debtor) to use, license or sublicense following an Event of Default, any
Intellectual Property now owned or hereafter acquired by such Debtor, and wherever the same may be located, and including in such license access to all
media in which any of the licensed items may be recorded or stored and to all computer software and programs used for the compilation or printout
thereof.



 
 

16



 
  



9. Applications of Proceeds. The proceeds of any such sale, lease or other disposition of the Collateral hereunder or from payments made on
account of any insurance policy insuring any portion of the Collateral shall be applied first, to the expenses of retaking, holding, storing, processing and
preparing for sale, selling, and the like (including, without limitation, any taxes, fees and other costs incurred in connection therewith) of the Collateral, to
the reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses incurred by the Agent in enforcing the Secured Parties' rights hereunder and in connection with collecting,
storing and disposing of the Collateral, and then to satisfaction of the Obligations pro rata among the Secured Parties (based on then-outstanding principal
amounts of Notes at the time of any such determination), and to the payment of any other amounts required by applicable law, after which the Secured
Parties shall pay to the applicable Debtor any surplus proceeds. If, upon the sale, license or other disposition of the Collateral, the proceeds thereof are
insufficient to pay all amounts to which the Secured Parties are legally entitled, the Debtors will be liable for the deficiency, together with interest thereon,
at the rate of 18% per annum or the lesser amount permitted by applicable law (the "Default Rate"), and the reasonable fees of any attorneys employed by
the Secured Parties to collect such deficiency. To the extent permitted by applicable law, each Debtor waives all claims, damages and demands against the
Secured Parties arising out of the repossession, removal, retention or sale of the Collateral, unless due solely to the gross negligence or willful misconduct
of the Secured Parties as determined by a final judgment (not subject to further appeal) of a court of competent jurisdiction.

 
10. Securities Law Provision. Each Debtor recognizes that Agent may be limited in its ability to effect a sale to the public of all or part of the

Pledged Securities by reason of certain prohibitions in the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or other federal or state securities laws (collectively, the
"Securities Laws"), and may be compelled to resort to one or more sales to a restricted group of purchasers who may be required to agree to acquire the
Pledged Securities for their own account, for investment and not with a view to the distribution or resale thereof. Each Debtor agrees that sales so made
may be at prices and on terms less favorable than if the Pledged Securities were sold to the public, and that Agent has no obligation to delay the sale of any
Pledged Securities for the period of time necessary to register the Pledged Securities for sale to the public under the Securities Laws. Each Debtor shall
cooperate with Agent in its attempt to satisfy any requirements under the Securities Laws (including, without limitation, registration thereunder if
requested by Agent) applicable to the sale of the Pledged Securities by Agent.
 
 

17



 
  

11. Costs and Expenses. Each Debtor agrees to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with any filing
required hereunder, including without limitation, any financing statements pursuant to the UCC, continuation statements, partial releases and/or
termination statements related thereto or any expenses of any searches reasonably required by the Agent. The Debtors shall also pay all other claims and
charges which in the reasonable opinion of the Agent is reasonably likely to prejudice, imperil or otherwise affect the Collateral or the Security Interests
therein. The Debtors will also, upon demand, pay to the Agent the amount of any and all reasonable expenses, including the reasonable fees and expenses
of its counsel and of any experts and agents, which the Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, may incur in connection with the creation, perfection,
protection, satisfaction, foreclosure, collection or enforcement of the Security Interest and the preparation, administration, continuance, amendment or
enforcement of this Agreement and pay to the Agent the amount of any and all reasonable expenses, including the reasonable fees and expenses of its
counsel and of any experts and agents, which the Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, and the Secured Parties may incur in connection with (i) the
enforcement of this Agreement, (ii) the custody or preservation of, or the sale of, collection from, or other realization upon, any of the Collateral, or (iii)
the exercise or enforcement of any of the rights of the Secured Parties under the Notes. Until so paid, any fees payable hereunder shall be added to the
principal amount of the Notes and shall bear interest at the Default Rate.

 
12. Responsibility for Collateral. The Debtors assume all liabilities and responsibility in connection with all Collateral, and the Obligations shall

in no way be affected or diminished by reason of the loss, destruction, damage or theft of any of the Collateral or its unavailability for any reason. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing and except as required by applicable law, (a) neither the Agent nor any Secured Party (i) has any duty (either
before or after an Event of Default) to collect any amounts in respect of the Collateral or to preserve any rights relating to the Collateral, or (ii) has any
obligation to clean-up or otherwise prepare the Collateral for sale, and (b) each Debtor shall remain obligated and liable under each contract or agreement
included in the Collateral to be observed or performed by such Debtor thereunder. Neither the Agent nor any Secured Party shall have any obligation or
liability under any such contract or agreement by reason of or arising out of this Agreement or the receipt by the Agent or any Secured Party of any
payment relating to any of the Collateral, nor shall the Agent or any Secured Party be obligated in any manner to perform any of the obligations of any
Debtor under or pursuant to any such contract or agreement, to make inquiry as to the nature or sufficiency of any payment received by the Agent or any



Secured Party in respect of the Collateral or as to the sufficiency of any performance by any party under any such contract or agreement, to present or file
any claim, to take any action to enforce any performance or to collect the payment of any amounts which may have been assigned to the Agent or to which
the Agent or any Secured Party may be entitled at any time or times.
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13 . Security Interests Absolute. All rights of the Secured Parties and all obligations of each Debtor hereunder, shall be absolute and
unconditional, irrespective of: (a) any lack of validity or enforceability of this Agreement, the Notes or any agreement entered into in connection with the
foregoing, or any portion hereof or thereof, against any other Debtor or Guarantor; (b) any change in the time, manner or place of payment or performance
of, or in any other term of, all or any of the Obligations, or any other amendment or waiver of or any consent to any departure from the Notes or any other



agreement entered into in connection with the foregoing; (c) any exchange, release or nonperfection of any of the Collateral, or any release or amendment
or waiver of or consent to departure from any other collateral for, or any guarantee, or any other security, for all or any of the Obligations; (d) any action
by the Secured Parties to obtain, adjust, settle and cancel in its sole discretion any insurance claims or matters made or arising in connection with the
Collateral; or (e) any other circumstance which might otherwise constitute any legal or equitable defense available to a Debtor, or a discharge of all or any
part of the Security Interests granted hereby. Until the Obligations shall have been paid and performed in full, the rights of the Secured Parties shall
continue even if the Obligations are barred for any reason, including, without limitation, the running of the statute of limitations. Each Debtor expressly
waives presentment, protest, notice of protest, demand, notice of nonpayment and demand for performance. In the event that at any time any transfer of
any Collateral or any payment received by the Secured Parties hereunder shall be deemed by final order of a court of competent jurisdiction to have been a
voidable preference or fraudulent conveyance under the bankruptcy or insolvency laws of the United States, or shall be deemed to be otherwise due to
any party other than the Secured Parties, then, in any such event, each Debtor's obligations hereunder shall survive cancellation of this Agreement, and
shall not be discharged or satisfied by any prior payment thereof and/or cancellation of this Agreement, but shall remain a valid and binding obligation
enforceable in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof. Each Debtor waives all right to require the Secured Parties to proceed against any other
person or entity or to apply any Collateral which the Secured Parties may hold at any time, or to marshal assets, or to pursue any other remedy. Each
Debtor waives any defense arising by reason of the application of the statute of limitations to any obligation secured hereby.

 
14. Term of Agreement. This Agreement and the Security Interests shall terminate on the date on which all payments under the Notes have been

indefeasibly paid in full and all other Obligations have been paid or discharged; provided, however, that all indemnities of the Debtors contained in this
Agreement (including, without limitation, Annex B hereto) shall survive and remain operative and in full force and effect regardless of the termination of
this Agreement. 
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15. Power of Attorney; Further Assurances.
 

(a) Each Debtor authorizes the Agent, and does hereby make, constitute and appoint the Agent and its officers, agents, successors or
assigns with full power of substitution, as such Debtor's true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with power, in the name of the Agent or such Debtor, to, after the
occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, (i) endorse any note, checks, drafts, money orders or other instruments of payment
(including payments payable under or in respect of any policy of insurance) in respect of the Collateral that may come into possession of the Agent; (ii) to
sign and endorse any financing statement pursuant to the UCC or any invoice, freight or express bill, bill of lading, storage or warehouse receipts, drafts
against debtors, assignments, verifications and notices in connection with accounts, and other documents relating to the Collateral; (iii) to pay or discharge
taxes, liens, security interests or other encumbrances at any time levied or placed on or threatened against the Collateral; (iv) to demand, collect, receipt
for, compromise, settle and sue for monies due in respect of the Collateral; (v) to transfer any Intellectual Property or provide licenses respecting any
Intellectual Property; and (vi) generally, at the option of the Agent, and at the expense of the Debtors, at any time, or from time to time, to execute and
deliver any and all documents and instruments and to do all acts and things which the Agent deems necessary to protect, preserve and realize upon the
Collateral and the Security Interests granted therein in order to effect the intent of this Agreement and the Notes all as fully and effectually as the Debtors
might or could do; and each Debtor hereby ratifies all that said attorney shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. This power of attorney is
coupled with an interest and shall be irrevocable for the term of this Agreement and thereafter as long as any of the Obligations shall be outstanding. The
designation set forth herein shall be deemed to amend and supersede any inconsistent provision in the Organizational Documents or other documents or
agreements to which any Debtor is subject or to which any Debtor is a party. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, after the occurrence and
during the continuance of an Event of Default, each Secured Party is specifically authorized to execute and file any applications for or instruments of
transfer and assignment of any patents, trademarks, copyrights or other Intellectual Property with the United States Patent and Trademark Office and the
United States Copyright Office.



 
(b) On a continuing basis, each Debtor will make, execute, acknowledge, deliver, file and record, as the case may be, with the proper

filing and recording agencies in any jurisdiction, including, without limitation, the jurisdictions indicated on Schedule C attached hereto, all such
instruments, and take all such action as may reasonably be deemed necessary or advisable, or as reasonably requested by the Agent, to perfect the
Security Interests granted hereunder and otherwise to carry out the intent and purposes of this Agreement, or for assuring and confirming to the Agent the
grant or perfection of a perfected security interest in all the Collateral under the UCC.
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(c) Each Debtor hereby irrevocably appoints the Agent as such Debtor's attorney-in-fact, with full authority in the place and instead of
such Debtor and in the name of such Debtor, from time to time in the Agent's discretion, to take any action and to execute any instrument which the Agent
may deem necessary or advisable to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement, including the filing, in its sole discretion, of one or more financing or
continuation statements and amendments thereto, relative to any of the Collateral without the signature of such Debtor where permitted by law, which
financing statements may (but need not) describe the Collateral as "all assets" or "all personal property" or words of like import, and ratifies all such
actions taken by the Agent. This power of attorney is coupled with an interest and shall be irrevocable for the term of this Agreement and thereafter as
long as any of the Obligations shall be outstanding.



 
16. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be subject to the notice provision of the Purchase

Agreement (as such term is defined in the Notes).
 
17. Other Security. To the extent that the Obligations are now or hereafter secured by property other than the Collateral or by the guarantee,

endorsement or property of any other person, firm, corporation or other entity, then the Agent shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to pursue,
relinquish, subordinate, modify or take any other action with respect thereto, without in any way modifying or affecting any of the Secured Parties' rights
and remedies hereunder.

 
18. Appointment of Agent. The Secured Parties hereby appoint [          ] to act as their agent ("[          ]" or "Agent") for purposes of exercising

any and all rights and remedies of the Secured Parties hereunder. Such appointment shall continue until revoked in writing by a Majority-in-Interest, at
which time a Majority-in-Interest shall appoint a new Agent, provided that [          ] may not be removed as Agent unless [          ] shall then hold less than
$100,000 in principal amount of Notes; provided, further, that such removal may occur only if each of the other Secured Parties shall then hold not less
than an aggregate of $250,000 in principal amount of Notes. The Agent shall have the rights, responsibilities and immunities set forth in Annex B hereto.

 
19. Miscellaneous.
 

(a) No course of dealing between the Debtors and the Secured Parties, nor any failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part
of the Secured Parties, any right, power or privilege hereunder or under the Notes shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise
of any right, power or privilege hereunder or thereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or
privilege.
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(b) All of the rights and remedies of the Secured Parties with respect to the Collateral, whether established hereby or by the Notes or by
any other agreements, instruments or documents or by law shall be cumulative and may be exercised singly or concurrently.

 
(c) This Agreement, together with the exhibits and schedules hereto, contains the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the

subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, with respect to such matters, which the parties acknowledge
have been merged into this Agreement and the exhibits and schedules hereto. No provision of this Agreement may be waived, modified, supplemented or
amended except in a written instrument signed, in the case of an amendment, by the Debtors and the Secured Parties holding two-thirds (2/3rds) or more of
the principal amount of Notes then outstanding, or, in the case of a waiver, by the party against whom enforcement of any such waived provision is
sought.

 
(d) If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal,

void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions set forth herein shall remain in full force and effect and shall in
no way be affected, impaired or invalidated, and the parties hereto shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to find and employ an alternative means
to achieve the same or substantially the same result as that contemplated by such term, provision, covenant or restriction. It is hereby stipulated and
declared to be the intention of the parties that they would have executed the remaining terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions without including any
of such that may be hereafter declared invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable.

 
(e) No waiver of any default with respect to any provision, condition or requirement of this Agreement shall be deemed to be a

continuing waiver in the future or a waiver of any subsequent default or a waiver of any other provision, condition or requirement hereof, nor shall any
delay or omission of any party to exercise any right hereunder in any manner impair the exercise of any such right.

 



(f) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and permitted assigns. The Company
and the Guarantors may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of each Secured Party (other
than by merger). Any Secured Party may assign any or all of its rights under this Agreement to any Person (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) to
whom such Secured Party assigns or transfers any Obligations, provided such transferee agrees in writing to be bound, with respect to the transferred
Obligations, by the provisions of this Agreement that apply to the "Secured Parties."  
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(g) Each party shall take such further action and execute and deliver such further documents as may be necessary or appropriate in order
to carry out the provisions and purposes of this Agreement. 

 
(h) Except to the extent mandatorily governed by the jurisdiction or situs where the Collateral is located, all questions concerning the

construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal
laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Except to the extent mandatorily governed by the jurisdiction or



situs where the Collateral is located, each Debtor agrees that all proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the Notes (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders,
partners, members, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of
Manhattan. Except to the extent mandatorily governed by the jurisdiction or situs where the Collateral is located, each Debtor hereby irrevocably submits
to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan for the adjudication of any dispute
hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to
assert in any proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such proceeding is improper. Each party
hereto hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any and all right to trial by jury in any legal proceeding arising out of
or relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

 
(i) This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original

and, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission, such
signature shall create a valid binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) the same with the same force and
effect as if such facsimile signature were the original thereof.

 
(j) All Debtors shall jointly and severally be liable for the obligations of each Debtor to the Secured Parties hereunder.  
 
(k) Each Debtor shall indemnify, reimburse and hold harmless the Agent and the Secured Parties and their respective partners, members,

shareholders, officers, directors, employees and agents (and any other persons with other titles that have similar functions) (collectively, "Indemnitees")
from and against any and all losses, claims, liabilities, damages, penalties, suits, costs and expenses, of any kind or nature, (including fees relating to the
cost of investigating and defending any of the foregoing) imposed on, incurred by or asserted against such Indemnitee in any way related to or arising
from or alleged to arise from this Agreement or the Collateral, except any such losses, claims, liabilities, damages, penalties, suits, costs and expenses
which result from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnitee as determined by a final, nonappealable decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction. This indemnification provision is in addition to, and not in limitation of, any other indemnification provision in the Notes, the Purchase
Agreement (as such term is defined in the Notes) or any other agreement, instrument or other document executed or delivered in connection herewith or
therewith. 
 
 

23



 
  

(l) Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to subject Agent or any Secured Party to liability as a partner in any Debtor or any if its
direct or indirect subsidiaries that is a partnership or as a member in any Debtor or any of its direct or indirect subsidiaries that is a limited liability
company, nor shall Agent or any Secured Party be deemed to have assumed any obligations under any partnership agreement or limited liability company
agreement, as applicable, of any such Debtor or any of its direct or indirect subsidiaries or otherwise, unless and until any such Secured Party exercises its
right to be substituted for such Debtor as a partner or member, as applicable, pursuant hereto.

 
(m) To the extent that the grant of the security interest in the Collateral and the enforcement of the terms hereof require the consent,

approval or action of any partner or member, as applicable, of any Debtor or any direct or indirect subsidiary of any Debtor or compliance with any
provisions of any of the Organizational Documents, the Debtors hereby represent that all such consents and approvals have been obtained.

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE OF DEBTORS FOLLOWS] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Security Agreement to be duly executed on the day and year first above written.
 
TERRA TECH CORP.  

 
By:  

Name:  
Title:  

 
 

GROWOP TECHNOLOGY LTD.  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

EDIBLE GARDEN CORP.  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

MEDIFARM, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

MEDIFARM I, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  
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MEDIFARM II, LLC  

 
By:  

Name:  
Title:  

 
 

IVXX, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

MEDIFARM I REAL ESTATE, LLC  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
 

IVXX, INC.  
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE OF HOLDERS FOLLOWS]
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[SIGNATURE PAGE OF HOLDERS TO SECURITY AGREEMENT]
 
Name of Investing Entity: ___________________________________________________
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing entity: _____________________________
 
Name of Authorized Signatory: _______________________________________________
 
Title of Authorized Signatory: ________________________________________________
 
 

27



 
  

DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES
(Security Agreement)

 
The following are the Disclosure Schedules (the "Disclosure Schedules") referred to in that certain Security Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2016 (the
"Agreement"), by and between Terra Tech Corp., a Nevada corporation (the "Company"), all of the Subsidiaries of the Company (such subsidiaries, the
"Guarantors" and together with the Company, the "Debtors") and the holders of the Company's 12% Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Notes, in the
aggregate principal amount of up to $[2,000,000] (the "Notes") signatory thereto, their endorsees, transferees and assigns (collectively, the "Secured
Parties").
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Schedule 4(d)
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Schedule A
Principal Place of Business of Debtors:

Locations Where Collateral is Located or Stored
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Schedule B
Ownership Interest to Collateral
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Schedule C
Filing Jurisdictions
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Schedule D
Legal Names and Organizational Identification Numbers
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Schedule E.
Names; Mergers and Acquisitions
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Schedule F
Intellectual Property

 
Patents/Patent Applications
 
Domain Names
 
Copyrights
 
Trademarks/Trademark Applications
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Schedule G
Account Debtors
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Schedule H
Pledged Securities

 
The Company is the owner of the membership interests of its subsidiaries, as follows:
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ANNEX A
to

SECURITY
AGREEMENT

 
FORM OF ADDITIONAL DEBTOR JOINDER

 
Security Agreement dated as of May [__], 2016 made by Terra Tech Corp. and its subsidiaries party thereto from time to time, as Debtors to and

in favor of the Secured Parties identified therein (the "Security Agreement").
 
Reference is made to the Security Agreement as defined above; capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the

meanings given to such terms in, or by reference in, the Security Agreement.
 
The undersigned hereby agrees that, upon delivery of this Additional Debtor Joinder to the Secured Parties referred to above, the undersigned

shall (a) be an Additional Debtor under the Security Agreement, (b) have all the rights and obligations of the Debtors under the Security Agreement as
fully and to the same extent as if the undersigned was an original signatory thereto and (c) be deemed to have made the representations and warranties set
forth therein as of the date of execution and delivery of this Additional Debtor Joinder. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE
FOREGOING, THE UNDERSIGNED SPECIFICALLY GRANTS TO THE SECURED PARTIES A SECURITY INTEREST IN THE COLLATERAL
AS MORE FULLY SET FORTH IN THE SECURITY AGREEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES TO THE WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL
PROVISIONS SET FORTH THEREIN.

 
Attached hereto are supplemental and/or replacement Schedules to the Security Agreement, as applicable.
  

An executed copy of this Joinder shall be delivered to the Secured Parties, and the Secured Parties may rely on the matters set forth herein on or after the
date hereof. This Joinder shall not be modified, amended or terminated without the prior written consent of the Secured Parties.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Joinder to be executed in the name and on behalf of the undersigned.
 

[Name of Additional Debtor]

Dated: ________________ By:
Name:
Title:

Address:
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ANNEX B
to

SECURITY
AGREEMENT

 
THE AGENT

 
1. Appointment. The Secured Parties (all capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the respective meanings provided in

the Security Agreement to which this Annex B is attached (the " Agreement")), by their acceptance of the benefits of the Agreement, hereby
designate [          ] ("[           ]" or "Agent") as the Agent to act as specified herein and in the Agreement. Each Secured Party shall be deemed irrevocably
to authorize the Agent to take such action on its behalf under the provisions of the Agreement and any other Transaction Document (as such term is
defined in the Purchase Agreement) and to exercise such powers and to perform such duties hereunder and thereunder as are specifically delegated to or
required of the Agent by the terms hereof and thereof and such other powers as are reasonably incidental thereto. The Agent may perform any of its duties
hereunder by or through its agents or employees.

 
2. Nature of Duties. The Agent shall have no duties or responsibilities except those expressly set forth in the Agreement. Neither the Agent nor

any of its partners, members, shareholders, officers, directors, employees or agents shall be liable for any action taken or omitted by it as such under the
Agreement or hereunder or in connection herewith or therewith, be responsible for the consequence of any oversight or error of judgment or answerable
for any loss, unless caused solely by its or their gross negligence or willful misconduct as determined by a final judgment (not subject to further appeal) of



a court of competent jurisdiction. The duties of the Agent shall be mechanical and administrative in nature; the Agent shall not have by reason of the
Agreement or any other Transaction Document a fiduciary relationship in respect of any Debtor or any Secured Party; and nothing in the Agreement or
any other Transaction Document, expressed or implied, is intended to or shall be so construed as to impose upon the Agent any obligations in respect of
the Agreement or any other Transaction Document except as expressly set forth herein and therein.

 
3. Lack of Reliance on the Agent. Independently and without reliance upon the Agent, each Secured Party, to the extent it deems appropriate,

has made and shall continue to make (i) its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries in
connection with such Secured Party's investment in the Debtors, the creation and continuance of the Obligations, the transactions contemplated by the
Transaction Documents, and the taking or not taking of any action in connection therewith, and (ii) its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and of the value of the Collateral from time to time, and the Agent shall have no duty or responsibility, either initially or on
a continuing basis, to provide any Secured Party with any credit, market or other information with respect thereto, whether coming into its possession
before any Obligations are incurred or at any time or times thereafter. The Agent shall not be responsible to the Debtors or any Secured Party for any
recitals, statements, information, representations or warranties herein or in any document, certificate or other writing delivered in connection herewith, or
for the execution, effectiveness, genuineness, validity, enforceability, perfection, collectability, priority or sufficiency of the Agreement or any other
Transaction Document, or for the financial condition of the Debtors or the value of any of the Collateral, or be required to make any inquiry concerning
either the performance or observance of any of the terms, provisions or conditions of the Agreement or any other Transaction Document, or the financial
condition of the Debtors, or the value of any of the Collateral, or the existence or possible existence of any default or Event of Default under the
Agreement, the Notes or any of the other Transaction Documents.  
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4. Certain Rights of the Agent. The Agent shall have the right to take any action with respect to the Collateral, on behalf of all of the Secured
Parties. To the extent practical, the Agent shall request instructions from the Secured Parties with respect to any material act or action (including failure to
act) in connection with the Agreement or any other Transaction Document, and shall be entitled to act or refrain from acting in accordance with the
instructions of a Majority-in-Interest; if such instructions are not provided despite the Agent's request therefor, the Agent shall be entitled to refrain from
such act or taking such action, and if such action is taken, shall be entitled to appropriate indemnification from the Secured Parties in respect of actions to
be taken by the Agent; and the Agent shall not incur liability to any person or entity by reason of so refraining. Without limiting the foregoing, (a) no
Secured Party shall have any right of action whatsoever against the Agent as a result of the Agent acting or refraining from acting hereunder in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement or any other Transaction Document, and the Debtors shall have no right to question or challenge the authority of, or the
instructions given to, the Agent pursuant to the foregoing and (b) the Agent shall not be required to take any action that the Agent believes (i) could
reasonably be expected to expose it to personal liability or (ii) is contrary to this Agreement, the Transaction Documents or applicable law.

 
5. Reliance. The Agent shall be entitled to rely, and shall be fully protected in relying, upon any writing, resolution, notice, statement, certificate,

telex, teletype or facsimile message, cablegram, radiogram, order or other document or telephone message signed, sent or made by the proper person or
entity, and, with respect to all legal matters pertaining to the Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and its duties thereunder, upon advice of
counsel selected by it and upon all other matters pertaining to this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and its duties thereunder, upon advice
of other experts selected by it. Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the Agent shall have no obligation whatsoever to any Secured Party to assure
that the Collateral exists or is owned by the Debtors or is cared for, protected or insured or that the liens granted pursuant to the Agreement have been
properly or sufficiently or lawfully created, perfected, or enforced or are entitled to any particular priority. 

 



6. Indemnification. To the extent that the Agent is not reimbursed and indemnified by the Debtors, the Secured Parties will jointly and severally
reimburse and indemnify the Agent, in proportion to their initially purchased respective principal amounts of Notes, from and against any and all
liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever which may
be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the Agent in performing its duties hereunder or under the Agreement or any other Transaction Document,
or in any way relating to or arising out of the Agreement or any other Transaction Document except for those determined by a final judgment (not subject
to further appeal) of a court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted solely from the Agent's own gross negligence or willful misconduct. Prior to taking
any action hereunder as Agent, the Agent may require each Secured Party to deposit with it sufficient sums as it determines in good faith is necessary to
protect the Agent for costs and expenses associated with taking such action. 
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7. Resignation by the Agent.
 

(a) The Agent may resign from the performance of all its functions and duties under the Agreement and the other Transaction
Documents at any time by giving 30 days' prior written notice (as provided in the Agreement) to the Debtors and the Secured Parties. Such resignation
shall take effect upon the appointment of a successor Agent pursuant to clauses (b) and (c) below.

 
(b) Upon any such notice of resignation, the Secured Parties, acting by a Majority-in-Interest, shall appoint a successor Agent hereunder.
 
(c) If a successor Agent shall not have been so appointed within said thirty (30)-day period, the Agent shall then appoint a successor



Agent who shall serve as Agent until such time, if any, as the Secured Parties appoint a successor Agent as provided above. If a successor Agent has not
been appointed within such thirty (30)-day period, the Agent may petition any court of competent jurisdiction or may interplead the Debtors and the
Secured Parties in a proceeding for the appointment of a successor Agent, and all fees, including, but not limited to, extraordinary fees associated with the
filing of interpleader and expenses associated therewith, shall be payable by the Debtors on demand.
 

8. Rights with respect to Collateral. Each Secured Party agrees with all other Secured Parties and the Agent (i) that it shall not, and shall not
attempt to, exercise any rights with respect to its security interest in the Collateral, whether pursuant to any other agreement or otherwise (other than
pursuant to this Agreement), or take or institute any action against the Agent or any of the other Secured Parties in respect of the Collateral or its rights
hereunder (other than any such action arising from the breach of this Agreement) and (ii) that such Secured Party has no other rights with respect to the
Collateral other than as set forth in this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents. Upon the acceptance of any appointment as Agent hereunder by
a successor Agent, such successor Agent shall thereupon succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties of the retiring
Agent and the retiring Agent shall be discharged from its duties and obligations under the Agreement. After any retiring Agent's resignation or removal
hereunder as Agent, the provisions of the Agreement including this Annex B shall inure to its benefit as to any actions taken or omitted to be taken by it
while it was Agent.
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EXHIBIT 10.36
 

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT
 

This Intellectual Property SECURITY AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated as of May 27, 2016, by Terra Tech Corp., a Nevada
corporation (the "Grantor"), in favor of [          ] as collateral agent (the "Collateral Agent") for the secured parties referred to below.
 

WHEREAS:
 

A. Reference is made to that certain Security Agreement, dated as of the date hereof (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time, the "Security Agreement"), entered into by andamong the Grantor, the other "Guarantors" party thereto, and the Collateral Agent,
which secures certain now existing and future arising obligations owing to the Secured Parties (as defined in the Security Agreement) under the
Transaction Documents as provided in the Security Agreement;

 
B. Pursuant to the Security Agreement, the Grantor is required to execute and deliver to the Collateral Agent this Agreement;
 
C. Pursuant to the terms of the Security Agreement, the Grantor has granted to the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, a

security interest in substantially all the assets of the Grantor, including all right, title and interest of the Grantor in, to and under all now owned and
hereafter acquired (1) trademarks, patents, and copyrights; (2) trademark applications, patent applications, and copyright applications; and (3) trademark
licenses, patent licenses, and copyright licenses, and all products and proceeds thereof, to secure the payment of the Obligations (as defined in the Security
Agreement).

 
NOW, THEREFORE,  in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth herein and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Grantor hereby grants to the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, to secure the
Obligations, a continuing security interest in all of the Grantor's right, title and interest in, to and under the following, whether presently existing or
hereafter created or acquired:

 
1. Each United States and foreign trademark and trademark application, including, without limitation, each United States federally registered

trademark and trademark application referred to in Schedule 1 annexed hereto, together with any reissues, continuations or extensions thereof and all
goodwill associated therewith;

 
2. Each trademark license, including, without limitation, each trademark license listed on Schedule 1 annexed hereto, together with all goodwill

associated therewith;
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3. All products and proceeds of the foregoing items 1 through 2, including, without limitation, any claim by the Grantor against third parties for
past, present or future infringement, misappropriation, dilution, violation or other impairment of any trademark, including, without limitation, any
trademark referred to in Schedule 1 annexed hereto, any trademark issued pursuant to a trademark application referred to in Schedule 1 and any trademark
licensed under any trademark license listed on Schedule 1 annexed hereto (items 1 through 3 being herein collectively referred to as the "Trademark
Collateral");

 
4. Each United States and foreign patent and patent application, including, without limitation, each United States federally registered patent and

patent application referred to in Schedule 2 annexed hereto, together with any reissues, continuations or extensions thereof and all goodwill associated
therewith;

 
5. Each patent license, including, without limitation, each patent license listed on Schedule 2 annexed hereto, together with all goodwill

associated therewith;
 
6. All products and proceeds of the foregoing items 4 through 5, including, without limitation, any claim by the Grantor against third parties for

past, present or future infringement, misappropriation, dilution, violation or other impairment of any patent, including, without limitation, any patent
referred to in Schedule 2 annexed hereto, any trademark issued pursuant to a patent application referred to in Schedule 2 and any patent licensed under
any patent license listed on Schedule 2 annexed hereto (items 4 through 6 being herein collectively referred to as the "Patent Collateral");

 
7. Each United States and foreign copyright and copyright application, including, without limitation, each United States federally registered

copyright and copyright application referred to in Schedule 3 annexed hereto, together with any reissues, continuations or extensions thereof and all
goodwill associated therewith;

 
8. Each copyright license, including, without limitation, each copyright license listed on Schedule 3 annexed hereto, together with all goodwill

associated therewith;
 
9. All products and proceeds of the foregoing items 7 through 8, including, without limitation, any claim by the Grantor against third parties for

past, present or future infringement, misappropriation, dilution, violation or other impairment of any copyright, including, without limitation, any
copyright referred to in Schedule 3 annexed hereto, any copyright issued pursuant to a copyright application referred to in Schedule 3 and any copyright
licensed under any copyright license listed on Schedule 3 annexed hereto (items 7 through 9 being herein collectively referred to as the "Copyright
Collateral"; items 1 through 9 being herein (i.e., the Trademark Collateral, the Patent Collateral, and the Copyright Collateral) collectively referred to as
the "IP Collateral").
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This security interest is granted in conjunction with the security interests granted to the Collateral Agent, for itself and on behalf of the other
Secured Parties, pursuant to the Security Agreement. The Grantor hereby acknowledges and affirms that the rights and remedies of the Collateral Agent
with respect to the security interest in the IP Collateral made and granted hereby are more fully set forth in the Security Agreement, the terms and
provisions of which are incorporated by reference herein as if fully set forth herein. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the respective
meanings ascribed thereto in the Security Agreement.

 
Grantor shall give Collateral Agent prior written notice of no less than five (5) Business Days before filing any additional application for

registration of any trademark and prompt notice in writing of any additional trademark registrations, patent registration, or copyright registrations granted
therefor after the date hereof. Without limiting Grantor's obligations under this paragraph, Grantor hereby authorizes Collateral Agent unilaterally to
modify this Agreement by amending Schedules 1, 2, or 3 to include any future United States registered trademarks, patents, copyrights or applications
therefor of Grantor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no failure to so modify this Agreement or amend Schedules 1, 2, or 3 shall in any way affect,
invalidate or detract from Collateral Agent's continuing security interest in all Collateral, whether or not listed on Schedule 1, 2, or 3.

 
Grantor hereby agrees that, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, such Grantor shall assume full and complete responsibility for the

prosecution, defense, enforcement or any other necessary or desirable actions in connection with their trademarks subject to the security interest hereunder.
 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed

shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Signature pages may be detached from
multiple separate counterparts and attached to a single counterpart.

 
This Agreement is a Transaction Document.
 
This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and all questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and

performance of this Agreement and all disputes arising hereunder shall be governed by, the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any
choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws
of any jurisdictions other than the State of New York. The parties hereto (a) agree that any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement or
any other agreement, document, or other instrument executed in connection herewith or therewith, shall be brought in any state or federal court located
within the City of New York, New York, (b) irrevocably waive any objections which either may now or hereafter have to the venue of any suit, action or
proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or any other agreement, document, or other instrument executed in connection herewith, brought
in the aforementioned courts and (c) further irrevocably waive any claim that any such suit, action, or proceeding brought in any such court has been
brought in an inconvenient forum.
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank; Signature Page Follows]
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The Grantor has caused this Intellectual Property Security Agreement to be duly executed by its duly authorized officer thereunto as of the date
first set forth above.
 

 TERRA TECH CORP.,
a Nevada corporation  

    
By:  

  Name:  
  Title:  
 
Acknowledged:  
 
[           ],
as Collateral Agent
   
By:  
 Name:  
 Title:  
   

 
By:

Name:
Title:
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SCHEDULE 1
to

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT
 

Trademark Collateral
 

FILE NO. COUNTRY MARK
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SCHEDULE 2
to

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT
 

Patent Collateral
 

US Provisional Patent Application No. [__________]
 
Filing Date: [__________]
 
Title: [__________]
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SCHEDULE 3
to

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT
 

Copyright Collateral
 

Domain Names
 
[__________].[_]
 
Copyrights
 
[__________]
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